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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Ye (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. MU Haijie
Mr. JIN Yuan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow
Mr. ZHOU Joe
Mr. CHEN Zhongjue

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jun
Mr. WANG Hengzhong
Ms. ZHANG Qi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Hengzhong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Jun
Ms. ZHANG Qi
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Mr. ZHOU Ye (Chairman)
Ms. ZHANG Qi
Mr. LIU Jun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. ZHANG Qi (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Hengzhong
Mr. ZHOU Ye

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. JIN Yuan
Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. JIN Yuan
Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty

REGISTERED OFFICE

The offices of Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Centre

27 Hospital Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN PRC

Block C5

Putian Industrial Park Phase Il
No. 700 Yishan Road

Xuhui District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

40th Floor, Sunlight Tower
No. 248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Center
27 Hospital Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman lIslands

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
27/F Grand Millennium Plaza
181 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

As to Hong Kong law
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
55th Floor, One Island East
Taikoo Place, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.,
Shanghai Xuhui Branch

1/F, Xujiahui International Tower

No. 1033 Zhaojiabang Road
Shanghai

PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation,
Business Department of Shanghai Branch
Room 2702

No. 200 Huaihai Middle Road

Shanghai

PRC

STOCK CODE
1806

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.huifu.com

DATE OF LISTING
15 June 2018
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ME I BREE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31BLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154 20164 20174 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ARET T AR®BTR
Revenue 'ON 555,715 1,094,777 1,726,256 3,246,493
Cost of sales HERKA (297,511) (630,681) (1,159,234) (2,357,014)
Gross Profit EA 258,204 464,096 567,022 889,479
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHMAX (65,203) (81,920) (94,978) (132,541)
Administrative expenses THRAX (118,025) (146,029) (215,853) (294,078)
Research and development expenses T 3% i &7 (79,763) (93,271) (130,780) (231,704)
Finance costs A KA (1,534) (15,167) (22,285) (24,451)
Share of (losses)/gains of associates ~ FE{H B & A &
(B1#8),/ Wz (45) (9,689) (7,129) 3,051
Fair value gains on financial assets at A2 A4 BEF =LA
fair value through BRmemEEY
profit or loss DR EERE - - - 4,410
Other expenses H (75,188) (72,451) (65,289) (91,467)
Other income and gains H e A R ez 85,108 94,126 124,688 65,868
Profit before tax B A1 3,554 139,695 155,396 188,567
Income tax expense MY (11,128) (20,962) (22,570) (14,001)
Profit and total comprehensive AEEFEARAMEZE
income for the year W 2= (7,574) 118,733 132,826 174,566
Profit attributable to: TF & A FIE -
Owners of the parent BREIHEAA (7,574) 125,193 138,239 176,065
Non-controlling interests RS - (6,460) (5.413) (1,499)
(7,574) 118,733 132,826 174,566
31 December
12A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154 20164 20174 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETF T ARETF T AR TR
Total assets BELE 4,226,458 6,402,792 8,124,056 9,786,150
Total liabilities BEEH (3,819,792) (5,863,085) (7,417,829) (7,802,555)
Non-controlling interests FEREE — (6,672) (1,259) (4,251)
406,666 533,035 704,968 1,979,344

Huifu Payment Limited SCRAf X F B R 27 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 #§
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to each of our shareholders. 2018 is
a milestone in the development history of our Company. We were
successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
were subsequently included in the List of Hong Kong Stock Connect.
We earned tremendous achievements in business growth, middle-
platform development, technological enhancement, cultivation of
talents and compliance as well as risk management.

RESULTS OVERVIEW FOR 2018

In 2018, the overall results of the Company maintained a rapid
growth, as payment transaction volume increased year-on-year by
58% from RMB1,100 billion to RMB1,800 billion; revenue increased
year-on-year by 88% from RMB1.73 billion to RMB3.25 billion; gross
profit increased year-on-year by 57% from RMB570 million to
RMB890 million; adjusted net profit increased year-on-year by 51%
from RMB174 million to RMB263 million. The Company’s gross profit
margin of each segment remained stable and its overall scale
expanded rapidly; the proportion of mobile-end payment has also
increased.

In 2018, each mature business segment of the Company maintained
a rapid growth. Meanwhile, the Company has made comprehensive
layout for innovative businesses that collaborate with SaaS, including
new retail business, account service solutions and cross-border
payment, increasing the investment in middle-platform, technology
and personnel construction for the digitalization in the future.

REVIEW AND ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2018

1. Maintained rapid growth in mature businesses
including small and micro mobile payment and
industry solutions

In 2018, all of the Company’s mature businesses grew rapidly.
Our mobile-end payment transaction volume for small and
micro merchants increased year-on-year by 91%; value-added
service revenue for small and micro merchants increased year-
on-year by 208%. Meanwhile, with the refined solutions for
the air travel industry, the transaction scale achieved a year-
on-year growth of 250%. The number of industry clients
increased from 5,700 at the end of 2017 to 8,700.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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2. Carried out comprehensive layout for various
innovative business, which showed rapid
development trend and gained bright market
prospects
(1) Ongoing strengthening of in-depth

cooperation with Saa$ to achieve a
comprehensive layout in new retail sector

In 2018, the SaaS suppliers which collaborate with the
Company increased significantly to 137 from 10 at the
end of 2017. Meanwhile, by continuing to improve our
omni-channel payment services, we achieved our initial
goal of reaching 2 million transactions per day at the
end of 2018, which represents a monthly compound
growth rate of over 70% over the year. We are also
capable of providing data and financial value-added
services.

(2) Account service successfully expanded from
the internet finance industry to insurance
and supply chain industries

Relying on the core product technologies which are
accumulated in the internet finance industry, we
launched new account service product “Qizhangtong”
(> AR#M). We have successfully engaged with leading
customers in insurance and supply chain industries such
as Taikang Insurance and Liby Group. At the year end of
2018, our accumulated number of accounts has
increased from 27 million at the end of 2017 to 31
million.

(3) Rapid increase in transaction scale for cross-
border business and exclusive strategic
cooperation with well-known international
company

The scale of cross-border payment transactions increased
by 300% compared with the same period last year. We
have collaborated with various well-known cross border
e-commerce providers. We have become the exclusive
PRC strategic partner of First Data, an internationally
renowned payment service provider.

(1)

(2)

(3)

HRESAFEY 2RERY
2 A

LB EIZ T 5 A =

BiSaaStFAE 32 RE S 1F » T HF
FERGMEH 2 E MG

20184 - A Al & fERYSaaSHt FE 7 H
2017 FEMIOR AEBIRAEI137R - [
B BBBERERAIMNERE &
018F REHE AR S FEEH008 £
MYLZER FRNARESGEREER
70% -+ WE EEEHIEE S B g E R
HgE S o

BR P AR 7 1 T AR & B 17 S [ 1R
B R (R IERETT E T IR

BRI EREEBBEmMITETA
18 R B AR 0 EE fn B 10 4 BT BR P AR
BERICERB RIWFLHRER
BUBHSEESRBEEEEESD
EHEFE - #IE2018F K - 25 R
R P EIE MH20174 K #2,7008 1 &
3,1008 -

TREBX G REIREIRH B
B[R A & 23 B K 18 X B = 1F

BREIXNZZHRERLLLER300% 8
REZMEBEREBRRRAE - RMACD
X 2 BB A0 A S R 75 4R R First
DatafE F IR N BREM S ERF -
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3.

Laying a foundation of comprehensive
development of technology and talent for digital
transformation

In 2018, the total investment in R&D of the Company saw a
significant increase to RMB230 million from RMB130 million in
2017, representing a year-on-year growth of 77%. By
enhancing the investment in areas such as development of
technology talents, research and development of innovative
technology and system safety and security, our technological
ability improved comprehensively, reaching the technology
development level of a leading enterprise in the industry.

(1) Transaction processing competency: Based on the flexible
scalability of the cloud computing framework, it can support a
daily processing capacity of 50 million transactions and a peak
processing capacity of 5,000 transactions per second. (2) Cloud
computing service capability: We have cooperated with the
world-class cloud computing service organizations including
Alibaba Cloud and Tencent Cloud, and through smooth
deployments of public cloud, private cloud and cloud nearby,
we greatly improved our business competency, research
efficiency and safety and disaster prevention ability. We
engaged in in-depth research and knowledge with regard to
cloud methodology. Our talent reserve with clouding
computing expertise is one of the finest in the industry. (3) Big
data technology: We have currently accumulated more than
200 billion units of structuralized data, a year-on-year increase
of 100%. We completed a visualized label system covering
570 types of labels. It is widely used in scenarios such as risk
control, marketing and operation.

We continue to optimize our staff team structure. Our staff
increased from 943 at the end of 2017 to 1,142 at the end of
2018, of which the proportion of research and development
staff increased from 36.7% at the end of 2017 to 41.9%.The
proportion of staff with technological, financial or overseas
backgrounds increased from 65% at the end of 2017 to
70%.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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4. Continuously strengthening compliance and risk
control capabilities for sustainable and steady
business development

Facing the maturing regulatory environment, we continued to
promote compliance awareness and enhance compliance
management ability. We have completed the switch of
payment channel and centralized deposit of client reserve
funds, thus maintaining a good record in terms of regulations
and control. Meanwhile, due to our effort to enhance risk
control capabilities with the aid of full-fledged big data
technology, the rate of potential frauds remained at a low
level of 0.03BP, at a leading position in the industry.

We maintain our close cooperation with corporations such as
UnionPay and NetsUnion in various areas such as products
innovation, marketing and promotion, technology development
and cross-border payment, with a view to building a good
payment industry ecosystem with industry peers.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES IN 2019

We remain optimistic about the overall trend of the payment
industry in 2019. The payment market is still undergoing the
developing process of continuous expansion. However, as the
industry structure reforms at a faster pace, the usage of accounts
and wallets also expand rapidly. It is a challenge as well as a massive
market opportunity for us. Meanwhile, as digitalization has become
the epochal trend of development, the integration between
digitalization and all industries has led to a number of creative
business models, such as Industry 4.0, new retail, fintech and shared
services.

Given the development trend of the industry that presents both
opportunities and challenges as well as the reforming of
digitalization in the era, we believe that possessing strong
technological and operating ability, digitalized payment and account
services and plentiful talent and capital reserve shall make us emerge
become frontrunners and enjoy long-term advantages in the future
regulation and market environment.

All-round digitalization is the core strategic direction of the
Company. Our vision is the belief that technology will change
the methods of payment, which will in turn connect to the
scenarios; then, the scenarios will precipitate the data, which
will eventually create value. It is our mission to provide
payment processing and account settlement services in the
digital era through our leading technology and excellent
operation while protecting clients’ data and assets and
continue to create value for them.
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To achieve our vision and mission, we shall develop three core
abilities and continue to incessantly enhance our technological
research and development, whilst investing in talent cultivation and
capital cooperation around four main business directions.

We shall focus on four main business directions. (1) Comprehensive
bankcard acquiring business will continue to expand transaction scale
and satisfy the demand for value-added financial services from micro
and small merchants. (2) New retail business will seize market
development opportunities and continue to strengthen its in-depth
cooperation with SaaS providers to refine its value-added service
presence in financial technology, predictive marketing, digital
operation, etc. (3) Industry-specific business will strive to satisfy
customers’ need for self-constructed account system and wallet
application and help traditional industries including travel, logistics
and supply chain to complete their digital transformation. (4) Cross-
border and international business will proactively echo with the
direction of the regulatory policy “payment institutions going
abroad”, fully expand our overseas business layout and enhance our
strategic cooperation with international leading enterprises,
optimizing our cross-border payment solutions.

We shall develop three core abilities. (1) We will develop the
payment processing and operating ability for large amount of
transactions, through which we will comprehensively increase the
extensibility and adaptability of transaction processing, and continue
to perfect our risk management ability, cost optimizing ability and
operation service efficiency. (2) We will develop the ability to
support multi-scenario account system and wallet, and the ability to
support multi-scenario payment settling and value-added service
functions, gradually achieving the enhancement of user experience
and the construction of predictive marketing. (3) We will develop the
ability of data-driven intellectual analysis and decisions, continue to
improve data governance, model algorithm and data visualization as
well as implement reliable protection for customer information and
assets.

We will continue to enhance the research and development and
application of technologies such as mobile internet, big data,
artificial intelligence and cloud computing, and adhere to
methodology of agile development and continuous delivery.
Compiling with the technological development trends in the 5G era,
we will improve user experience through multi-user and multi-screen
support, thereby offering strong technological support and system
protection for our digital transformation.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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We shall focus on the capital cooperation with digitalized new
enterprises and continue to increase our investment in talents for
digital transformation. We will commence digital personnel trainings
for all employees, and create an incentive system, organizational
structure and authorization mechanism which is suitable for strategic
development.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and all employees of Huifu Payment, |
hereby express my sincere appreciation to all customers. | would also
like to express my gratitude to all shareholders and stakeholders for
their trust and support for the Company. | would also like to express
my appreciation to all employees and the management team for
their dedication and efficient collaboration at work. We will be
mindful of our vision and mission and devote ourselves to such
vision and mission for the future of digitalization.

ZHOU Ye
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, the PRC
26 March 2019
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

We remain optimistic towards the general development trend of the
payment industry. Although the payment industry is still in the
course of development with continuous expansion, the
transformation of the industry structure is accelerating. There is a
rapid increase in chance of using accounts and wallets. Moreover,
digital transformation has become the development trend of the
times. The integration of digitalization and various industries has
brought about such creative business models as Industry 4.0, new
retail, fintech and shared services. Digitalization is also reshaping the
development path of the payment industry. Monumental capacity for
transaction handling and operation, account system and wallet
support functions for multiple scenarios, data-driven intelligential
analysis and decision-making ability are bound to become core
competitive edges of the payment industry in the future.

Among the customers we served, we anticipate that the demand for
value-added financial services of micro and small merchants will see
a continuous increase. New retail customers have a strong desire for
value-added financial services, predictive marketing and digital
management. There has been a keen demand among industry
customers for a gradual improvement of self-developed account
system and wallet application solutions. Cross-border and
international customers’ needs for the account service system and
value-added financial services are becoming prominent.

In such technology development trend, technologies such as mobile
technology, artificial intelligence, big data, cloud service, Internet of
Things, social network, 5G will be widely applied and serve as the
primary driver of rapid growth of the industry. Meanwhile, principles
like agile development, continuous delivery and stronger emphasis on
user experience and concise design are emerging as the prevalent
methodology of the industry.

Faced with the industry development trend which has brought
opportunities as well as challenges and the profound transformation
of the digital era, we believe that payment institutions which have
strong technology and operation capabilities, digital payment and
account services and a rich talent pool and capital reserve will be in
a better position amidst future regulatory and market conditions
over a long run.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2018, the Group’s matured businesses, namely micro and small
merchant mobile payment business and vertical industry solutions
business, maintained high growth. The number of the Group’s micro
and small merchants customers increased from approximately 5.8
million as of the end of 2017 to approximately 8.3 million. The
number of customers in industry verticals increased from
approximately 5,700 at the end of 2017 to approximately 8,700. The
Group put forward its comprehensive development plan in various
new businesses, which showed rapid development trend: (1) the
Group continued to strengthen its in-depth cooperation with the
Group's Software as a Service (“SaaS") providers, the number of SaaS
providers cooperating with the Group grew from 10 at the end of
2017 to 137 as a result, (2) the number of accounts served by the
Group increased from 27 million at the end of 2017 to 31 million,
and (3) the transaction scale of the Group’s cross-border business
achieved a strong growth and exclusive strategic partnerships were
agreed with renowned international companies.

The following table sets forth the comparative figures of payment
volume processed through the different channels of the payment
services of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018, respectively.

Unit: RMB billion

EBmm

E2018F - SEE/ BB B BT E R
FREXNAEBTFRBRRIER  NEBEDHE
F 20179 JE /) 495808 R 18 &= 498308 X : [A
B (TERFHEH2017F KM A5, 700K E 4
8700R - KB 2EMBSHEFER  2HIR
BREEY  (MEAEERGAARK ([ Saas |) (&
PR E MR RE A E - & 1EfSaaSHt FE R 2017
FEMIORZEAZRIZTR : QAXREE R RBHER
FHEHR2017FK/2,7008 £ 53,1008 : Q)&
EMERESRZAEBRRIEA  BEBRMNEQ
FLER B REBE A (E -

TRDBIH T EH E2017F X2018F 128310 IEF
EALEBATRRERENINRERSEDN
LEEEE

By AREA+ET

For the years ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
20184 20174 SBULBEDLE

Payment Volume TRRGE

Payment Services X R

— POS services — POSHR 7% 60.2 55.7 8%
— Mobile POS services — B EPOSHR % 1,152.4 603.7 91%
— Internet payment services — BE S AR 368.4 321.7 15%
— Mobile payment services — B I ANRB 200.1 153.9 30%
— Cross-border payment services — BRI N RB 20.2 4.9 312%
Total &t 1,801.3 1,139.9 58%

Based on the above, for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
payment volume processed through different channels of the
payment services of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1,801.3 billion in aggregate, representing an increase of
approximately 58% as compared to the year ended 31 December
2017.

EIAA EFrat - B E20185F12A31B IEFE - K&
ERRATRARBEENINBRERZEATHA
ARB18,0131B 70 - &KEE2017F12A31HLLFE
# R #58% °
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REEBENR DN
BHZE2017F12A318 L FEHEE E2018F
12A31B L FEELE

TR D BIE ZE20174 %2018F12A31H IH4F
S M) b BB

OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended 31 December 2017 Compared to Year
Ended 31 December 2018

The following table sets forth the comparative figures for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively.
Unit: RMB’000 By - ARET T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
20185 20174 #BtEDL
Revenue A 3,246,493 1,726,256 88%
Cost of sales EizR=PD %N (2,357,014) (1,159,234) 103%
Gross profit EF 889,479 567,022 57%
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAX (132,541) (94,978) 40%
Administrative expenses THRHAX (294,078) (215,853) 36%
Research and development expenses Tt 3% 5 2 (231,704) (130,780) 77%
Finance costs b & B AR (24,451) (22,285) 10%
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FEAG B A B,
(E#E) 3,051 (7,129) (143%)
Net gains on financial assets at fair value AR AR EEE WA
through profit or loss AEBmNEmEE
ZOFE R 4,410 — N/A T3 A
Other expenses H A 2 (91,467) (65,289) 40%
Other income and gains H A WA Rz 65,868 124,688 (47%)
Profit before tax A1 A A 188,567 155,396 21%
Income tax expense R #i (14,001) (22,570) (38%)
Profit for the year KEERE 174,566 132,826 31%
Profit/(loss) attributable to: T A& EARFE,
(E518) :
Owners of the parent INGIEF =N 176,065 138,239 27%
Non-controlling interests FEERR B = (1,499) (5,413) (72%)
174,566 132,826 31%
Non-IFRSs Financial Measures FECE B BT 7% 3R & 2E B ) Y 7 51 8 5 0%

Reconciliation of profit for the year to EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA

AR EE R EEBITDA N 45 #8 22 EBITDA 2 1 BR

EBITDA EBITDA 470,597 302,936 55%

Adjusted EBITDA &A% EBITDA 558,968 344,380 62%
Reconciliation of profit for the year to adjusted net profit AEENEESCHRZNE 2 HR

Adjusted net profit BAERE 262,937 174,270 51%

14  Huifu Payment Limited SC4 K T AR 27 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 %



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REVENUE N

The Group’s revenue increased by around 88% to RMB3,246.5 AE£EUWAREE2018F12A318EFE N4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, compared to 88%Z A R#3,246.558 & L & £2017F12A
RMB1,726.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily 31BItEEBIAARE1,7263F &L T2 R
attributable to the increase in the payment volume. IR GEEMATE -

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue T ZR& 5 FT/R HA R A & B 2 R & & g BHE AR
into payment services and fintech enabling services for the period  #HI&H 75 WA -

indicated:
Unit: RMB’000 By AREFT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
20184 20174 #ltESE
Payment Services X3 R

— POS services — POSHR 7% 83,373 68,325 22%
— Mobile POS services — B EPOSAR 5 2,585,796 1,208,193 114%
— Internet payment services — BEE S IR 348,781 240,175 45%
— Mobile payment services — B8 I IRB 118,978 92,137 29%
— Cross-border payment services — BRI NIRB 29,995 13,963 115%
Sub-total NEE 3,166,923 1,622,793 95%
Fintech Enabling Services SRMBRERS 72,713 99,937 (27 %)
Others Ht 6,857 3,526 94%
Total &5t 3,246,493 1,726,256 88%

Huifu Payment Limited SCff X F B R 27  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#& 15
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The revenue of the Group primarily consists of revenue from
payment services and fintech enabling services, among which, the
revenue of the payment services amounted to approximately
RMB3,166.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 95% as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2017, primarily attributable to (i) the
Group’s matured businesses, namely micro and small merchant
mobile payment business and industry solutions business, maintained
high growth; (ii) the Group put forward its comprehensive
development plan in various new businesses, which showed rapid
development trend and gained bright market prospects; and (iii) a
significant increase in the cross-border transaction volume processed
by the Group and the improvement of user stickiness due to
deepened cooperation in solutions to exports e-commerce
merchants.

The revenue generated from the fintech enabling services amounted
to approximately RMB72.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a decrease of approximately 27% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily attributable to the
influence of internet finance regulation on the overall industry
development. The Group as a third-party payment service provider
which provides the internet financial industry solutions was affected
to some extent.

COST OF SALES

The following table sets forth the cost of sales of the Group by
nature for the period indicated.

Unit: RMB’000

AEEHRAETEZRIEINRE LR B RS
U o A 32 iR %5 B I A R 8 £2018F 12 A
BTEHEFEENARKES 6698 E T B#HE
2017F12A31B L FEHELIS%  TEFRN : ()
AEEBE MBI NETEMRATRERNAE
BHRRBFRBEE () 2EHRSHEAIFER
EEERERED  AEREZMENS ki@
REHE N EREREFHATRNRLELEE 2
AEBBEEMNBERRHEAREN  RNRES
BEFM -

SERBE R TEE MKW AREZ2018F12431
BIEEREIOARENRIBE T  BHE20174F
NRANBIEFERDL27%  TEHREHES
BRETHRRETELEREELAYE A5EHKE
ARHEBECRITERRARNE=FINA

AR —ERE -

& R A
TR BB R B0 R M 5 e 7 S U -

7 ARBTFT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLLEE
Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
20184 20174 #tESH
Commission and fees HekEA 1,638,116 831,506 97%
Processing fee i 444,773 189,748 134%
Depreciation of payment terminals X m i & 225,377 98,341 129%
Customer identification fee EP#AE 18,986 23,689 (20%)
Cost of payment terminals ERNES DN 2,192 3,777 (42%)
Others H 27,570 12,173 126%
Total &5t 2,357,014 1,159,234 103%

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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The cost of sales of the Group increased by around 103% from
approximately RMB1,159.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB2,357.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable to (i) an
increase of around 97% in the commission and fees in light of the
increase of revenue of the Group as a result of the increase of the
payment volume of mobile POS services customers acquired through
ISOs, (i) an increase of around 134% in processing fee due to the
increased payment volume processed by the Group, and (iii) an
increase of around 129% in the depreciation of payment terminals
due to the increased deployment of payment terminals.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group increased by around 57% from
approximately RMB567.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB889.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, and the overall gross profit margin of the Group
decreased to 27.4% for the year ended 31 December 2018, as
compared with 32.8% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s gross
profit from payment services and fintech enabling services for the
period indicated:

RNEBHEKRAREE2017F128318 FFEE
ARM1,159 28 B LI RK103% £ H £2018F12
A31B IEFEHARY2,357.08 & 7T s2%0E T
ZRBER  (EEASBRAZEMNSHASRE
FAHE N #997% 1t 7Y 8 7 i MBISOKE 15 9 72 B)POS
REEFNINRZZEEMATE: ()VEEEE M
#134% LA RASEREN I AR S EE N
FREs R (i) 2 82w T B8 hN49129% » b Ty R
0 37 A AR S B0 A BRBT BR ©

EX
AEEETHEEE2017F12A3IBLEFEHAR
#567.06 Bt R457% E # £2018%F12A318
IFEHARBEISHE L AEEH =2018F
ABLEFEMNBEENETFE27.4% - ME
E2017F12A318 L FE A A32.8% °

TREH A REBAEE RS XNRE 2 /F
BBRT H)E N A A

Unit: RMB’000 Bl - ARETT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2017
20174
Percentage
Changed
Gross Gross Gross in gross
margin profit margin profit
ERZ
E R xR EM EFE Ei1
Payment Services X At IR
— POS services — POSHR & 24,657 29.6% 23,097 33.8% 7%
— Mobile POS services — B EPOSHR 553,781 21.4% 252,492 20.9% 119%
— Internet payment services — BEBEZNRE 150,473 43.1% 134,969 56.2% 1%
— Mobile payment services — BT R® 83,528 70.2% 64,528 70.0% 29%
— Cross-border payment services — 3 3 R 7% 16,171 53.9% 7,363 52.7% 120%
Sub-total Nt 828,610 26.2% 482,449 29.7% 72%
Fintech Enabling Services S RBER®E 60,102 82.7% 84,300 84.4% (29%)
Others Hth 767 11.2% 273 7.8% 181%
Total &5t 889,479 27.4% 567,022 32.8% 57%
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The gross profit of the Group’s payment services increased by
around 72% from approximately RMB482.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB828.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, and its gross profit margin
decreased to 26.2% for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing a slight decrease as compared with the year ended
31 December 2017. The gross profit margins for all business lines of
the Group remained stable, while the overall business scale grew
rapidly. Such decrease in gross profit margin was primarily
attributable to the payment services provided by mobile POS
accounted for a higher percentage compared to 2017, while the
gross profit margin of mobile POS services increased slightly
compared to 2017.

The gross profit of the Group’s fintech enabling services decrease by
around 29% from approximately RMB84.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB60.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, and its gross profit margin was
82.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a slight
decrease as compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group increased by
around 40% from approximately RMB95.0 million for the vyear
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB132.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily
attributable to (i) an increase in staff cost due to the increase of
equity-settled share option expense and the increase in number of
sales and marketing employees as a result of the business growth of
the Group and the corresponding increase in basic salaries, and (ii)
an increase in advertising and business development fees with
further development of the Group’s business.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by around 36%
from approximately RMB215.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB294.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable
to (i) an increase in staff cost due to the equity-settled share option
expense and the increase in number of the administrative employees
as a result of the business growth of the Group and the
corresponding increase in basic salaries, and (ii) an increase in
professional fees which primarily consist of professional service fees
in relation to the Global Offering and payment to intermediaries for
Listing on the Stock Exchange.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

The research and development expenses of the Group increased by
around 77% from approximately RMB130.8 million for the vyear
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB231.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily due to
an increase in the number of research and development staff and an
increase in R&D investments of the Group.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs of the Group include interest expenses on bank
borrowings and other borrowings. The interest expense on bank
borrowings represents the interest the Group paid to commercial
banks for borrowings.

The finance costs of the Group increased by around 10% from
approximately RMB22.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB24.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
loans amounted to HK$355.0 million incurred in January 2018 and
US$17.7 million incurred in February 2018 and repaid in June 2018,
respectively, which in turn increased the average balances of the
bank borrowings of the Group.

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group's other expenses primarily include (i) impairment of
contract assets and other receivables, (ii) loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, and (iii) impairment of investments in
associates.

Other expenses of the Group increased by around 40% from
approximately RMB65.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB91.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in the normal payment terminals deterioration.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s other income and gains primarily includes (i) interest
income of wealth management products; and (ii) government
subsidies.

The other income and gains of the Group decreased by around 47%
from approximately RMB124.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB65.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to (i) a decrease in the Group's confirmed government subsidies (as
such subsidies were granted on a case-by-case basis); (i) a decrease
in the balances of the investment products purchased by the Group
and the investment income on financial assets as a result of the
maturity and sale of certain investment products by the end of
2017; and (iii) a decrease in the interest income due to the
centralized depository supervision requirements of reserve fund
issued by the PBOC.

W8 B X

NEBWBEFZHEE2017F12831BIEFELD
AR1308BE L RNT7%ZEEH E2018F 124
BMEIEEEHOARKINTIEE T EHEETE
AR AEBNEES ASAERTEINRFERA
NPT R -

a & R A

AR B B A AR 4R SR AT 1 R K b 1 3R 7 8
PI c BITH R B PIX IR RBAALRTX
3R 8 -

ANEBEBERNEEZE2017F12A831B LFED
AREED23HE LR 410% 2 & £2018F 128
BMMBUEENARE2488 T - EHIEETEHR
R2018F 1 AEAMEREME ©5E355.08 BB TN
K A201852 8 E A W R2018F6 A B EME b
AeEBI77EBET MEMT AEBBITER
B4 o

HbF <

AEBEMASXEIZRE  VEHNEEREME
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(iR B2 R R R R ERE °
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FEHARBI24TEB TR D H47T%EE E2018
FNRANALEFEHNARYECSIBE T - BHERIE
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FZE AR X MBI EFT157), a subsidiary of the Group was
certified as key software enterprise, which was entitled to
preferential corporate income tax policies and subject to the
statutory rate of 10%. The income tax expense of the Group
decreased by around 38% from approximately RMB22.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB14.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such decrease was primarily
because certain subsidiaries of the Group were entitled to 75%
deduction of R&D expenses for calculation of income tax due to the
newly released finance and taxation policies in 2018.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the above-mentioned reasons and changes, the profit
for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the Group increased by
around 31% to approximately RMB174.6 million from approximately
RMB132.8 million for the same period last year.

NON-IFRSs FINANCIAL MEASURES

To supplement the Company’s consolidated financial statements
which are presented in accordance with IFRS, the Company also uses
three non-IFRS measures, including EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA and
adjusted profit, as additional financial measures, which are not
required by, or presented in accordance with, IFRS. The Company
believes that these three non-IFRS measures facilitate comparisons of
operating performance from period to period and company to
company by eliminating potential impacts of items that the
management of the Company does not consider indicative of the
Company’s operating performance. The Company believes that these
measures provide useful information to investors and others in
understanding and evaluating its consolidated results of operations in
the same manner as the management of the Company. However, the
presentation of EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted profit may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other
companies. The use of these non-IFRS measures has limitations as an
analytical tool, and the investors and Shareholders should not
consider them in isolation from, or as substitute for analysis of, the
Company’s results of operations or financial condition as reported
under IFRS.

The EBITDA is defined as profit for the year adjusted by adding
income tax expense, finance costs, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and amortization of intangible assets. The adjusted
EBITDA is defined as EBITDA adjusted by adding equity-settled share
option expense and one-off listing expense. The adjusted profit is
defined as profit for the year adjusted by adding equity-settled share
option expense and one-off listing expense.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%
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The following table reconciles the Group’s EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA
and adjusted net profit for the periods presented to the most
directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in
accordance with the IFRS for the period indicated:

Unit: RMB’000

TRE Y ZFEE AR KK BEEBITDA » &£ 5 &
EBITDA K 45 38 22 FI) Jf 5 %8 63 1% PR C B B B 75 R 15 2
ANFTERZNNEAEET L ENPTBT 2R
7 AR

Bl ARETFT

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLFEE
Percentage
2017 Changed
20174 ZiLEDL
Reconcile of profit for the year to 7N £ R B BEHEBITDA
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA & & A ZEBITDA
AR
Profit for the year AN F EF)
Add: hn 174,566 132,826 31%
Income tax expense FrisfiAx 14,001 22,570 (38%)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 24,451 22,285 10%
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREZHE
equipment e 249,128 117,174 113%
Amortization of intangible assets MBS 8,451 8,081 5%
EBITDA EBITDA 470,597 302,936 55%
Add: -
Equity-settled share option expense VAR AN 45 B 1 B A 1
B 52 70,800 33,694 110%
One-off listing expense — R EWRX 17,571 7,750 127%
Adjusted EBITDA #& F ZEBITDA 558,968 344,380 62%
Profit for the year NG ER D 174,566 132,826 31%
Add: hn
Equity-settled share option expense LA BR 7 45 5 9 B A
Fl X 70,800 33,694 110%
One-off listing expense — XM EMRAX 17,571 7,750 127%
Adjusted net profit RAERMNBFE 262,937 174,270 51%

One-off listing expense includes fees paid to the intermediaries
involved in the Global Offering and Listing of RMB18.4 million in
2018 and exclusive of the effect of corresponding income tax of
RMBO0.8 million.

The EBITDA of the Group increased by around 55% from
approximately RMB302.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB470.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018.

—RE T HEEBEER2018FERMLEERBEER
EFTRFANATZIFARBIS4AEETHNER I
SBYUEMNARBOSEETHMERTE -

N EEWEBITDARE Z2017F12A31B IEFEED
AR#302.98 & L IN#AI55% = H E2018F 12 A
BMHLEFEHARKLA7T06BE T -
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The adjusted EBITDA of the Group increased by around 62% from
approximately RMB344.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB559.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The adjusted net profit of the Group increased by around 51% from
approximately RMB174.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB262.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Current assets and liabilities and adjusted current
assets and liabilities

Due to the nature of its business, the Group has a highly liquid
balance sheet. Substantially all of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are due within one year. The Group receives, processes and transfers
a significant amount of funds on behalf of its clients on a daily
basis.

The following table sets forth the selected financial information from
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as of

the dates indicated.

Unit: RMB’000

IR & B ) 48 8 FREBITDAR B £2017F12 8318 1
FENARB34445 ETTIEIN4I62% EEH £2018
FRAMBIEFELHARESE9.0H8E T ©

AEBEMCHEN B FEHRB Z2017F12A3168
HEEHARKI7T43BE TE MA51%EEH E
2018F12A31H IEFEH ARE2629H E T °

Bt 5 AR 5
NBEEHRABREAERDEEHEE
HREBHEENRE  ASENEERBERASR
BROREE AEERBABIEEREER—
FAIP - AKERAERREPRE BENE
EXEES -

TREINBEMTARAEELES M BN KD
BB B IS B A

Bl ARETFT

As of As of
31 December 31 December Percentage
2018 2017 Changed

H £2018% HZE20174
124318 12A31H #ltEDE
Current assets MENE E 8,831,113 7,235,494 22%
Current liabilities mEN A E 7,619,315 7,382,829 3%

Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(AE)

i 1,211,798 (147,335) (922%)
Non-current assets IRBEE 955,037 888,562 7%
Non-current liabilities REAaE 183,240 35,000 424%
Total equity ERBE 1,983,595 706,227 181%
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The Group holds client funds in segregated accounts which are
payable to its clients, also known as the client reserve funds. The
amount of such client reserve funds fluctuates significantly from time
to time based on the clients’ business activities, payment volume,
timing of clearing and settlement and other external factors that are
largely unrelated to the financial condition of the Group but can
cause significant changes to its balance sheet. As such, the Company
believes the amount of its client reserve funds is not a meaningful
indicator of its current assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Group
presents the adjusted current assets and liabilities in the following
table to exclude the effect of client reserve funds as of the dates
indicated:

Unit: RMB’000

AEERBIRFHEEFPES ZFETEX
NFEF(IBATEFENR) WMEFFPENS
MEBRBRBEEFPNER LY IXNX58 8
ERFBEERLEMIBAR (ZEFERRRAEE
LEAKSENMBARNER BRI EXKEE
ERBERNEAZY MIAKELERNKY - A
b ARARBE Eﬁﬁﬁ%méﬁiﬁﬁm
EERAEMAERRER B ARFERNT
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%'umﬁﬁéﬁi
FHEFHRNENTE:

B ARETT

As of As of
31 December 31 December Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
# Z2018F HE2017F
12A31H 12A31H 2LEDHL
Adjusted current assets® KAERSHEED 1,850,030 967,388 91%
Adjusted current liabilities? KRARTEHEE? 1,212,276 1,621,642 (25%)
Adjusted net current assets/(liabilities)® — &HBEREBEE
(BE)FE® 637,754 (654,254) (197%)
Notes: Bt &
(1) Adjusted current assets equal to total current assets less receivable on behalf of (1) KARRDEESNADEERBERRREPBKRHK
clients and cash received on behalf of clients. HERREPEUROHEKE S -
(2) Adjusted current liabilities equal to total current liabilities less payable on behalf — (2) KAERDBEEATDEELERRERZPEMNOR
of clients. B e
(3) Adjusted net current assets/(liabilities) equal to adjusted current assets less adjusted (3) f\é‘é:ﬂ%miﬁﬁé/ B FEERERABTHEERL

current liabilities.

The Group’s net current liabilities as of 31 December 2017 have
turned into net current assets as of 31 December 2018 primarily
attributable to the increase in the current assets due to the funds
raised in the Global Offering and the profit for the year ended
31 December 2018.

HERBHARE

AEBECHEE2017F12A3BN RS AEFE
EEKEET2018F12A3BM R EEFE
ZHREHBEMBSERRNES R E2018F
NRAMBIHESFERNBS REEERL I -
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The Group’s restricted cash decreased by around 50% to
approximately RMB1,610.7 million as of 31 December 2018 from
approximately RMB3,216.2 million as of 31 December 2017,
primarily attributable to a decrease in cash received on behalf of
clients for internet finance platforms. In addition, the Group’s
restricted cash as of 31 December 2018 also included security
deposits for letters of guarantee and other uses relating to its
payment services, as well as time deposits pledged for long term
loans.

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the selected financial information from
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the
period indicated.

Unit: RMB’000

AEBZRFBELAEE2017F12A31IBHOAR
#3,216.25 8 7T 2 #50% = & 22018412 A31
HOARKEI16107EEL  T2HREHED R
FEaREFPHMNESMD - o REEE F2018F
NANANEZRHIRSCERDIERINRES - Eft
ERIHEBNREFSLEHEREGHNTEHT

Eo
N

RERBDW
TERRIBEMTENARESARLRERS
5 ) BT B R o

7 ARBTFT

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
Percentage
2018 2017 Changed
20185 20174 SBADL
Net cash flow from operating activities LEEBMERE
MmEFEE 719,449 775,542 (7%)
Net cash flow used in investment REETBMARE
activities mE R (790,751) (310,250) 155%
Net cash flow from/(used in) BEFBAE(FTA)
financing activities REeEmEFr 1,208,986 (336,509) (459%)
Net increase in cash and cash RekREeEEBEY
equivalents B hNFE R 1,137,684 128,783 783%
Cash and cash equivalents at the FMHEeERE
beginning of the year ZEY 304,736 175,953 73%
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEEZRZBHH
changes, net FEE 72,546 — N/A A3 A
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FXREERES
of the year ZEY 1,514,966 304,736 397%

The Group’s cash from operating activities mainly consists of revenue
from the payment services and fintech enabling services of the
Group. The Group’s net cash flow from operating activities
decreased by around 7% to approximately RMB719.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately RMB775.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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The Group’s cash used in investing activities mainly consists of the
purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment and investment in associates. The
Group’s net cash flow used in investing activities increased to
approximately RMB790.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately RMB310.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, primarily attributable to net cash outflow of
approximately RMB156.8 million for investments in financial assets in
2018 and the cash outflow of approximately RMB617.1 million due
to the purchase and disposal of properties, plants and equipment.

The Group's cash from financing activities mainly consists of the
funds raised in the Global Offering, borrowings and payments of
borrowings. The Group’s net cash from financing activities increased
to a cash inflow of approximately RMB1,209.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from a cash outflow of approximately
RMB336.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily
attributable to (i) the funds raised in the Global Offering; and (ii) the
settlement of outstanding balances due from management personnel
and the outstanding balances due from related parties of non-trade
nature.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2018, the total equity of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,983.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB1,277.4 million as compared to the beginning of
2018, among which, (a) the equity interest attributable to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,979.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,274.4 million as
compared to the beginning of 2018, which was primarily attributable
to (i) the proceeds of approximately RMB1,369.6 million from the
issuance of Shares in the Global Offering; and (i) the profit of
approximately RMB176.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 and approximately RMB70.8 million share option arrangement
which was settled by equity and was partially offset by a special
dividend of approximately US$63.1 million distributed in the first two
months of 2018; (b) the equity interest of minority shareholders
increased by approximately RMB3.1 million as the additional capital
contribution and was partially offset by a loss of approximately
RMB1.5 million due to the loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

As of 31 December 2018, the Company had an aggregate of
1,251,075,586 issued shares. The total market capitalization of the
Company was approximately HK$4,041 million (calculated based on
the closing price of the Shares as of 31 December 2018).

AEBERETHHIERSTERE BEUAR
BENEVFABENSREE -VE BEK
B RREBENR - AEEREEHHAE
CREBFEHEE2017F2A3MBLEFEHAR
¥3103E &L EEH E2018F12A31HIEFED
ARK7INSEE L TZANR018FEREENR
EMBEES R FEOARKIS6SEELRLEED
¥ BELEHENRSTELOARBI7T1BET -

AEERETDAMGSRCIEREEREEMSE
ENES BREREFR AEERETHAMER
CREBFEHREE2017F12A3MBLEFENR ¢
M ARK33658BLIEMEEZE2018F 124
BMEIEFEMNRESRANARE,209.08 & T
FTEAR:()VRRBEEMEENEDS  RNEERE
B 3B N B FRTE I R (8 2 45 85 A I B Uk B 5 3E
EHMHERBENREELS -

BEXRGERE

HE2018F12A318  AEBEBBEENAR
#1,083.6F & JT ' K2018F 1 K H A R ¥
1277488 L -Hob  @QBRFEELEZNAAR
#1,07938 B T B2018F 1 K H A R ¥
127448 87T TEHR - )V RRBEEETREZR
HAEBEERBSRBHARBE1,369688TT: &
(DB E2018F 12 A31HIEFEFBLHARE176.1
BETMURANEENEREZHEHOARET08
BEL A0 H2018F MM ARMNNL63.168E
ETHERIR SIS (b)) BaE 25 AR 3R #38 H
EMBEEHAREINEE L 2 HE 20184
NANBLEFEMNBEOARBISEELIEE -

H E2018F128318 A A & B % 17 & #£
1,251,075,586% f 15 - " A BB THEH &24,0418
BAET(ERNEH 22018F12A31H R WL E &
")
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BANK LOANS

As of 31 December 2018, the aggregate balance of the Group’s
interest-bearing bank loans was approximately RMB717.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB302.0 million as
compared to the beginning of 2018, primarily attributable to (i) the
Non-Resident Account loan agreement entered into between the
Group and Ping An Bank in January 2018 for the purpose of the
offshore financing against domestic guarantee for dividend
distribution, under which the ending balance of the loan amounted
to HK$215.0 million as of 31 December 2018 with an interest rate
of 2.3243% per annum, and (i) the mortgage loan agreement
entered into between the Group and Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank Co., Ltd. in December 2018, under which the ending balance
of the loan amounted to RMB192.0 million as of 31 December 2018
with an interest rate of 4.75% per annum.

INTEREST RATE RISK AND EXCHANGE RATE
RISK

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC with
most transactions settled in RMB, and the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the United States dollar and the Hong Kong
dollar. Therefore, foreign exchange risk primarily arose from
recognized assets and liabilities in the Group when receiving or to
receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign
currencies to, overseas business partners. In November 2018, the
Group entered into RMB/HKD swap agreements with a financial
institution amounted to RMB200 million for one month. The
arrangement has been completed by the end of 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

In 2018, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group pledged its assets as securities in favor of several banks
to obtain certain loans. As of 31 December 2018, the total pledged
assets of the Group amounted to approximately RMB425.3 million.
The Group did not have any pledged assets at the beginning of
2018.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND INVESTMENT

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily consist of expenditures for
the purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
other long-term assets. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
capital expenditures of the Group were approximately RMB662.5
million, primarily attributable to (i) residual expenses for the purchase
of payment terminals and buildings, (ii) capital contribution to
investments in associates of RMB30.5 million made by the Group,
and (iii) capital contribution commitment to China Nets Union
Clearing Corporation (4355 & A BR A 7)) of RMB23.6 million made
by the Company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus, the Company intends to use
approximately 20% of the net proceeds from the Global Offering
for pursuing selective acquisition of, or strategic investment in,
payment technology companies, payment service providers and/or
SaaS providers. The Company has been looking for proper
acquisition or investment targets during its daily operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

EXHAEZRRE
REBEAASZEZRREEEWE - BE M&E -
mEEEREMRIBEEMNRSE - B E2018F12
A3MBLFE AEBEERAAIZHNAEAREE62.5
BET TZ2HR  (VEBE & MEFRBK
EHMRSZ  (NASEBEREEQBELETEARE
3055 &L RNVAAR BB SERBRQAME
HEXRFTEARE236BET -

EAREREXREENRREE

HIMABRERIRRF S MAEFORAE] — &K
B ARARESERBEEMERBEFED20%
AREXNEM AR - X RBHER K HSaas
HEBETERERBRBREKRE -ARFRNA
FEET - ESKRAEMNEEXRERR -

XERE

HE2018F12A31H AR B WETMEANSE
afE -

FEHBLEER

For the year ended
31 December

HBE12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Gross margin® FEFEO 27.4% 32.8%
Net profit margin® FRE @ 5.4% 7.7%
Adjusted net profit margin® AR EOF R B RO 8.1% 9.6%
EBITDA margin EBITDAR 14.5% 17.5%
Adjusted EBITDA margin® 48 FEEBITDAFI R @ 17.2% 19.5%
As of As of
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
# Z2018F HZ=2017F
12A31H 12A31H
Gearing ratio® BEARBRALEO 76.1% 91.0%
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Notes:
(1) Gross margin equals gross profit divided by revenue and multiplied by 100%.

(2) Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue and multiplied by
100%.

(3) Adjusted net profit margin equals adjusted net profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(4) Adjusted EBITDA margin equals adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue and multiplied
by 100%.

(5) Gearing ratio equals to net debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and net
debt. The Group includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank loans, trade
payables, other payables, deposits received and accruals and amounts due to

related companies less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity

attributable to owners of the parent.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As at the date of this report, there are no material events
subsequent to 31 December 2018 which could have a material
impact on the Group’s operating and financial performance.

PROSPECTS

All-round digitalization is the core strategic direction of the
Company. Our vision is the belief that technology will change the
methods of payment, which will in turn connect to the scenarios;
then, the scenarios will precipitate the data, which will eventually
create value. It is our mission to provide payment processing and
account settlement services in the digital era through our leading
technology and excellent operation while protecting clients’ data and
assets and continue to create value for them.

To achieve our vision and mission, we shall develop three core
abilities and continue to incessantly enhance our technological
research and development, whilst investing in talent cultivation and
capital cooperation around four main business directions.
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We shall focus on four main business directions. (1) Comprehensive
bankcard acquiring business will continue to expand transaction scale
and satisfy the demand for value-added financial services from micro
and small merchants. (2) New retail business will seize market
development opportunities and continue to strengthen its in-depth
cooperation with SaaS providers to refine its value-added service
presence in financial technology, predictive marketing, digital
operation, etc. (3) Industry-specific business will strive to satisfy
customers’ need for self-constructed account system and wallet
application and help traditional industries including travel, logistics
and supply chain to complete their digital transformation. (4) Cross-
border and international business will proactively echo with the
direction of the regulatory policy “payment institutions going
abroad”, fully expand our overseas business layout and enhance our
strategic cooperation with international leading enterprises,
optimizing our cross-border payment solutions.

We shall develop three core abilities. (1) We will develop the
payment processing and operating ability for large amount of
transactions, through which we will comprehensively increase the
extensibility and adaptability of transaction processing, and continue
to perfect our risk management ability, cost optimizing ability and
operation service efficiency. (2) We will develop the ability to
support multi-scenario account system and wallet, and the ability to
support multi-scenario payment settling and value-added service
functions, gradually achieving the enhancement of user experience
and the construction of predictive marketing. (3) We will develop the
ability of data-driven intellectual analysis and decisions, continue to
improve data governance, model algorithm and data visualization as
well as implement reliable protection for customer information and
assets.

We will continue to enhance the research and development and
application of technologies such as mobile internet, big data,
artificial intelligence and cloud computing, and adhere to
methodology of agile development and continuous delivery.
Compiling with the technological development trends in the 5G era,
we will improve user experience through multi-user and multi-screen
support, thereby offering strong technological support and system
protection for our digital transformation.

We shall focus on the capital cooperation with digitalized new
enterprises and continue to increase our investment in talents for
digital transformation. We will commence digital personnel trainings
for all employees, and create an incentive system, organizational
structure and authorization mechanism which is suitable for strategic
development.

BABEGMAREBT A - ()iFa WEXB K
BRERARZHAR  An/ P HEPNESREER
BREF QFTEXBHILERANTISERE
B FEESaSHEENERESE TESRB
o TEAXEE  BRECELFRERBHRE Q)
TEEHEBEBRINMEEFPERKRFEBAM
EBEBNZOFTR  BAMIEK YR HERSE
BHRTETRBFCEL  (4ERABREHK
MEREREESBI XNHBLEINBERER -
EEHBRBIEBHR BERERLEEMERE
BEAF EEBRINBRTER -

BAEER=ZRZOEN - (NPKBRARNR
ZRBNELR] 2HRAXZIEENTHER
HESAURAE BETERREREN KAEL
BENMELMBYE : QEKZHZNESRL
MEEXFEN XRZERNNEENEE
Riee BT EBRRBP BRI AL ZH
BENBE: QERBEBEESNE R IRE
B REMESEAE BRUEEMNBBEAR
bR YNEREEFPFHEBEEELR -

B RHENRBBHEHE  ABE  ATERE
EHESRMOMBLEER  REHERAE
BT AR R - IBESGH A Bl 3
RBE BREZEFPH ZRIXBREARFPE
B REFH IR H RN XM TN RLER

i -

BABHEHFHFAECEARERNAIE RE
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FAEAT I - WiRTE A BAE R A B B
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DIRECTORS 5E
Name Age Date of appointment Position
" A Fir ZEHE Bz
Mr. ZHOU Ye 52 21 December 2017 Chairman of the Board, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
JE R S A 52 20174124218 EZgXF RITEERERNTE
Ms. MU Haijie 47 2 March 2018 Executive Director and President
BERZT 47 20183 H2H BITESEREH
Mr. JIN Yuan 44 2 March 2018 Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer
and Joint Company Secretary
BIRFEE 44 201853 H2H BITEE ERVBERBELAAWSE
Mr. CHYE Chia Chow 47 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director
BEERE A 47 201843 H2H HEHITER
Mr. ZHOU Joe 57 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director
ZHOU Joest & 57 201843 H2H HEHITER
Mr. CHEN Zhongjue 40 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director
BR 7 R 5 A& 40 201843 H2H HEHITER
Mr. LIU Jun 58 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director
2 5% 58 20183 A28 BYFATESF
Mr. WANG Hengzhong 50 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director
TEAKE 50 201843 H2HM BYHITES
Ms. ZHANG Qi 59 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director
RE L+ 59 201843 H2HM BYHITES
Note: B 5
(1) Effective from the Listing Date. (1) BLEMBEEBER-
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Mr. ZHOU Ye, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director in
December 2017 and the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer in March 2018. He is also the chairman of the
board of directors of PnR Network, the chairman of the board of
directors and the chief executive officer of China PnR and the
chairman of the board of directors of PnR Data. Mr. ZHOU currently
serves as a director of the Management Company; a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings, PnR (Cayman), Paytech Holdings and 14
members of the Excluded Group and a limited partner of Shanghai
Huifu Internet Financial Information Venture Capital Investment
Center (Limited Partnership) (/8 & B 848 € 5= B R8I 4%
B (BRAE)). Mr. ZHOU has over 29 years of experience in
computer technology, electronic payments and finance and corporate
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. ZHOU's previous work
experience primarily includes: serving as a software engineer in the
No. 32 Institute of Electronics Industrial Ministry (& F T 3 &F 5324
ZEFT, currently known as the Technology No. 32 Institute of China
Electronics Technology Group Corporation (FF B E ¥Rl K& BH A 7
F£ =+ =5 A) from June 1989 to February 1993; the manager of
the sales department, a vice president and a senior vice president of
Shanghai Huateng Software System Co., Ltd. (E/BERB (T EZHE
fR 2 7]) from February 1993 to June 2000; and an executive director
and the general manager of ChinaPay Electronic Payment Service
Co., Ltd. (/BRI E F X A ARB B R A F) from June 2000 to May
2006.

BBELE 4 5255 M2017ENAKEG ARITTE
- WAR018F3AARARAEZTSEEREREH
TE - HENEMENESNESS IR EMNXK
THESSIRRERIMTERENSENES
SEF - ALEBEAMECENEEMNES PR
Holdings * PnR (Cayman) * Paytech Holdings} 14
B EMEBEKNERNERNTES  UR EEBEN
EEcREEREEAERERL(BREE)H
EREBA - BAREENEHREN BEFIHK
CRUARAAEE ST EAERB29FHLRH - MA
REBA AAEBENIEECEEERE: B
1989673 £1993F2 7 + £ A & F T % 2 F32%H
KB EATHEETFREEEARE =+ ZMH%
BT B8+ TR2HD - 81993428 £20004F6 8 @ &
FEBEBRBHERGEERABIMHELLE 7
wH &= A E BH & 82000668 £200655
A EALEESRBETFIZNREBR A AT
EERBEE-
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Mr. ZHOU obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in wireless
electronics from the department of electronic engineering of Fudan
University in Shanghai, the PRC in July 1986; a master’'s degree of
engineering in communication and electronic systems from the
department of wireless electronics of Shanghai University of Science
and Technology (/8 RHE R {iTKEZ, currently known as Shanghai
University) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 1989; and a master’s
degree in business administration from China Europe International
Business School in Shanghai, the PRC in April 2002. Mr. ZHOU
graduated from the DBA Global Finance Program of Shanghai
Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in
Shanghai, the PRC and obtained a doctor's degree of business
administration in Global Financial Management from Arizona State
University in May 2015. Mr. ZHOU was awarded the “Leading Talent
of Shanghai City for the Year of 2011 (2011 L8 M4EE AF)" by
the Organization Department of CPC Shanghai Committee (7 £t /&
™ £ ##%8) and Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau (L8 A 1 &R+t & {RIE D) in December 2011
and the “Top Ten Financial Innovation Figures for the Year of 2012
(2012E E+ K& R AIFT A®)" jointly by Xinhua News Agency
Shanghai Bureau (¥TZE 4t /&% 4t), Shanghai Financial Association
(E/B£ B ZEH A <) and institutions in December 2012. Mr. ZHOU
currently serves as a member of the Internet Finance Committee of
Asset Management Association of China; a vice chairman of the
Association of Shanghai Internet Financial Industry; an executive
director of Shanghai Finance Institute; and a part-time professor of
the Shanghai National Accounting Institute.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. ZHOU directly held 60,060,000
ordinary shares in China PnR, which was pledged to PnR Network
under the Contractual Arrangements; and 30,000 ordinary shares in
the Management Company, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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Ms. MU Haijie, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
and the President of the Company in March 2018. She is also a
director of PnR Network, PnR JH Tech Co., Ltd. (/& EMRH =8
BT BB A al), Shanghai Yifu Cloud Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. (/85N EEBRHEEAR A F]) and Nanjing Dechen Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (A RERESRMBR A F), a director and
the president of China PnR; and a director and the general manager
of PnR Data. Ms. MU currently serves as a director of the
Management Company; a non-executive director of PnR Holdings,
PnR (Cayman), Paytech Holdings and four members of the Excluded
Group. Ms. MU has over 24 years of experience in financial and
accounting, electronics payment and corporate management. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. MU’s previous work experience primarily
includes: at Shanghai Xingda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (£
BEKEEZREARAA) from August 1993 to November 1996;
finance manager of Nike Sports (China) Co., Ltd. (fR 52 g€ & (R )
ABR AR from October 1996 to September 2000; and finance
manager and assistant general manager of ChinaPay Electronic
Payment Service Co., Ltd. (EGRBEF XK ERAF) from
October 2000 to May 2006. Ms. MU served as a senior vice
president of China PnR from July 2006 to March 2018.

Ms. MU graduated in international finance from Shanghai Finance
College (BB & RmEHEREZR) (currently known as the Shanghai
Lixin University of Accounting and Finance) in Shanghai, the PRC, in
July 1993; and obtained an Executive Master’'s degree of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School in
Shanghai, the PRC in October 2013. Ms. MU was awarded the
“EMBA 2011 Outstanding Graduate Award” by China Europe
International Business School in October 2013 and the “Shanghai
Pioneer Award for Conversion of High-Tech Achievements (/& & #T
Bk Rl 588 AW HE)" jointly by the Technology Venture Centre
of Shanghai (E/8M & AIZ# 1:) and the Talent Service Centre of
Shanghai (_E/87T A BR7% &) of Shanghai in October 2017. Ms.
MU currently serves as a standing member of the council of the
Payment & Clearing Association of China.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. MU directly held 10,010,000
ordinary shares in China PnR, which were pledged to PnR Network
under the Contractual Arrangements; and 10,000 ordinary shares in
the Management Company.
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Mr. JIN Yuan, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director and
a Joint Company Secretary in March 2018 and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company in December 2017. He is also the chief
financial officer of China PnR and a director of PnR Network. Mr. JIN
currently serves as an independent director of Shanghai Tong Shi
Network Corporation (/8 ZE A& B H R M ER A7) (@ company
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations, stock code:
833377). Mr. JIN has over 20 years of experience in financial and
accounting, capital operation and corporate management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. JIN's previous work experience primarily
includes: consecutively serving as the financial manager, financial
controller and board secretary, and a vice president and the chief
financial officer of Shanghai Huateng Software System Co., Ltd. (Lt
FERE M ZE AR A R) from July 1997 to December 2011; and
general manager of the financial management center of Chinasoft
International Co., Ltd. (FEEIBEB R A F) and the chief financial
officer of its professional service group from January 2012 to April
2014. Mr. JIN joined the Group in April 2014 and has consecutively
served in several positions, including as vice president of Shanghai
Huifu Technology Ltd. (/8 E B AR 2 A]) from April 2014 to
January 2015 and as financial controller of China PnR since February
2015.

Mr. JIN obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in Shanghai, the PRC in July
1997; and a master's degree in professional accountancy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2006.
Mr. JIN obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant from the
Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in
December 2013. Mr. JIN is currently a member of the Accounting
Information Committee of the Accounting Society of China; a part-
time postgraduate tutor at Shanghai National Accounting Institute;
and a part-time postgraduate tutor at the Management School of
Shanghai University.
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Mr. CHYE Chia Chow, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2018. He is also a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings and PnR (Cayman). Mr. CHYE currently
serves as a director of Trixen Enterprises Ltd. In addition, he serves
as a non-executive director in several companies involved in various
industries, including agriculture, property, forestry and
telecommunications. Mr. CHYE has over 22 years of experience in
financial, investment and corporate strategy and management. Mr.
CHYE's previous work experience includes: serving as a manager in
Tokai Bank, Ltd from June 1996 to October 1999; and consecutively
served as several positions in Boston Consulting Group from October
1999 to April 2007, including serving as the principal.

Mr. CHYE obtained a bachelor’'s degree of business with first-class
honors from Nanyang Technological University in Singapore in June
1996. Mr. CHYE obtained the qualification of Chartered Financial
Analyst from the Association for Investment Management and
Research in June 1999.

Mr. ZHOU Joe, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company in March 2018. He also serves as a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings, PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings. Mr.
ZHOU has served as a managing partner at Keytone Ventures, a
China-focused venture capital partnership, since 2008. Before
founding Keytone Ventures in 2008, he served as the chief
representative of Softbank China Venture Capital Beijing Office from
the end of 1999 to October 2001, and as a managing partner of
KPCB China from early 2007 to April 2008. He also formerly served
as a partner of SAIF Partners.

Mr. ZHOU obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering from Beijing
University of Technology (3t 2 T % K £) in Beijing, the PRC in July
1982; and a master’'s degree in electrical engineering from New
Jersey Institute of Technology in the State of New Jersey, the United
States in September 1990. Mr. ZHOU was awarded the “Top 20
Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2001 (20014 f Bl & & I #) & k&
& N)" jointly by Digital Fortune Magazine (¥ Bf & & #54t) and
Zero2IPO, Ltd.; and the “Top 10 Most Active Venture Capitalists of
the Year of 2005 (H B+ KJEREIZ1&E A)”, the “Top 10 Most
Active Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2006 (FF B+ A& B AIZ%
& A)" and “Top 10 Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2007 (2007
FHBAIERERION)" by Zero2lPO, Ltd., respectively. He was
accredited the “Venture Capital Professional of the Year 2010 (2010
FEERMBILER)" by Asian Venture Capital Journal (AVC)) in
November 2010.
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Mr. CHEN Zhongjue, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2018. He is also a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings and PnR (Cayman). Mr. CHEN is currently a
managing director of Bain Capital, LP; a director of ASIMCO
Technologies Group Limited, RISE Education Cayman Ltd. (a company
listed on NASDAQ, stock code: REDU) and Trans Maldivian Airways
(Pvt) Ltd. Mr. CHEN has over 13 years of experience in private equity
industry, and his focus is on the technology, education, business and
financial services sectors. Mr. CHEN's previous work experience
includes: serving as an associate consultant in Bain & Company from
August 2001 to July 2003; and serving in the headquarters of Bain
Capital Private Equity in the United States from September 2005 to
July 2007.

Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts (magna cum laude)
in economics from Harvard College in June 2001, and a master’s
degree in business administration from Harvard Business School in
June 2005 in the State of Massachusetts, the United States,
respectively.

Mr. LIU Jun, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective since the
Listing Date. He currently serves as a professor in the Rady School of
Management of the University of California, San Diego. Mr. LIU has
over 19 years of experience in research and studies in finance. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. LIU’s previous work experience includes:
serving as an assistant professor in the Anderson School of
Management in the University of California, Los Angeles from July
2000 to June 2005; an associate professor of the Rady School of
Management of the University of California, San Diego from July
2005 to June 2014 and promoted to full professor in July 2014; a
professor of finance in Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
(KT 263) from September 2007 to August 2009; a professor of
finance in the Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance (/8w & ¢
REEBR) of Shanghai Jiao Tong University from July 2012 to August
2016. He was the dean of the Finance School of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics from April 2007 to April 2016;
and an associate dean of the Institute of Financial Studies of
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics from January
2010 to December 2015. Mr. LIU also served as an independent
non-executive director of Insigma Technology Co., Ltd. (4 X 43 %1 &t
B {7 ABR A F]) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600797) from June 2009 to June 2015.
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Mr. LIU obtained a bachelor's degree of science from Peking
University in Beijing, the PRC in February 1982; a doctor's degree
from the University of Texas at Austin in the State of Texas, the
United States in August 1988; and a doctor’s degree in finance in
Stanford University in the State of California, the United States in
August 1999. Mr. LIU was awarded the “BGI/Michael Brennan Best
Paper” by the Review of Financial Studies in 2005. He was granted
the title of “Cheung Kong Scholars Program (KT Z2%#)" by the
Ministry of Education of the PRC in 2006 and a member of the
“Recruitment Program of Global Experts (T A & &))" by the
Organization Department of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China (7 £ r 52 48 4% 26).

Mr. WANG Hengzhong, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective
since the Listing Date. Mr. WANG currently serves as the in-charge
partner of Shanghai Branch Office and a member of the fourth
session of the quality control committee of Grant Thornton Certified
Public Accountants (special general partnership) (EU[F & 5+ Bl &= 7% FT
(B E@mA %), and an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Ganglian E-Commerce Holdings Co., Ltd. (/8B E T
WD AR A A (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300226). Mr. WANG has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and management. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. WANG's previous working experience includes:
serving as the chief accountant in Shanghai Jiahua Accountancy Co.,
Ltd. (LB EZESMEBMABRAA) from August 1998 to
December 2007; the legal representative of Shanghai Junfu Pan
Chen Zhang Jiahua Accountancy Co., Ltd. (LB EEMKEES
= B % 75 A7) from December 2007 to September 2009; a partner of
Jingdu Tianhua Accountancy Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Branch) (& &K %
GEMEBHAAR AR LEEDAT) from September 2009 to July
2012; an independent non-executive director of Great Wall Movie
and Television Company Limited (R R HDBER 2 F) (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
002071) from December 2015 to August 2016; and an independent
non-executive director of ArtGo Holdings Limited (a listed company
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 3313) from
December 2013 to June 2017. Mr. WANG was a council member of
the sixth session of the Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association
(LBTHFECEXHE); and a member of the fifth session of the
Shanghai Jiading District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUEHE @R LM R TEER
EZE®%8)
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Mr. WANG obtained a master’'s degree in professional accountancy
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
December 2006, and an executive master's degree of business
administration from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC in 2015. Mr.
WANG obtained the qualification of Certified Public Accountant in
the PRC from the Shanghai Certified Public Accountant Association
in September 1994, and the qualification of International Accountant
from the Association of International Accountants in the United
Kingdom in September 2014. He was accredited the certificate of
independent director qualification from the Shanghai Stock Exchange
in April 2013. Mr. WANG is currently a member of the Jiusan
Society and the Shanghai Economic Special Committee of the Jiusan
Society (N=2#t LBMAEEMZE ), and a member of the
disciplinary committee of the Association of Certified Public
Accountants of Shanghai (B8 @M eLE2BEREES).

Ms. ZHANG Qi, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective since the
Listing Date. Ms. ZHANG has over 41 years of experience in finance,
business operations and corporate management. Ms. ZHANG's
previous work experience primarily includes: consecutively serving in
several positions in the Nanjing East Road Banking sub-office of the
Huangpu District Office of the Shanghai Branch of the PBOC from
October 1977 to July 1987, including as a clerk and a vice director
of the third depository; consecutively serving in several positions in
the Huangpu District Office of the Shanghai Branch of the Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (the “ICBC”) from July 1987 to
September 1992, including as a vice director of Nanjing East Road
Banking the third sub-office and a deputy head of the Deposit
Division; serving as a vice president of the Huangpu Sub-branch of
the ICBC from September 1992 to February 1996; consecutively
serving in several positions in the Jing’an Sub-branch of the
Shanghai Branch of the ICBC from February 1996 to January 2000,
including as a vice president and the president; consecutively serving
in several positions in the Shanghai Branch of the ICBC from
January 2000 to March 2008, including as the director of the Retail
Banking Division and the Securities Settlement Business Division, an
assistant president, the general manager of the Personal Finance
Business Department and a vice president; and serving as the general
manager of the Private Banking Department of the ICBC from March
2008 to June 2012. Ms. ZHANG served as the chairman of the Joint
Meeting of Private Banking of China Banking Association from July
2011 to November 2012. Ms. ZHANG served as the vice chairman
and an executive director of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the stock code of 601828 and 1528,
respectively) from June 2012 to October 2018.
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Ms. ZHANG obtained a master’'s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in Shanghai, the PRC in June
1998; and an executive master's degree of business administration
from the Executive Master of Business Administration program co-
sponsored by the Shanghai National Accounting Institute and the
Arizona State University in June 2005. She graduated from the DBA
Global Finance Program of Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC, and obtained a
doctor’'s degree of business administration in Global Financial
Management from Arizona State University in May 2015. Ms. ZHANG
obtained the qualification of Senior Economist by the ICBC in
August 1997. She was accredited the certificate of independent
director qualification from the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
September 2012.

Ms. ZHANG was awarded the title of “National Financial Woman
Pace-Setter (2B & RIALHEF)" by the PBOC in April 1981; the
“Model Award of ‘Shanghai Woman Pace-Setter’ for the Years
2003-2004 (2003-2004F E E/BM' = NAEF R L) by the
Shanghai Women's Federation (_E/& iR Z 4 €) and the Shanghai
Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau (/8 A 7
BREMLERED) in March 2005; and “Shanghai Financial Talent
(L& 8 AF 48)" by the Shanghai Financial Work Committee of
Communist Party and Shanghai Financial Services Office of the
Central Committee of the CPC (PR EEMEMIEZE SN LF
& ERB P A E) in March 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREEE
Date of
joining the
Name Age Group Position Responsibility
MmAREER
i FiR HH L= A3 BHE
Mr. ZHOU Ye 52 July 2006 Chairman of the Responsible for convening and chairing
Board, Executive general meetings and Board meetings;
Director and Chief and responsible for overall
Executive Officer management and deciding major
strategies and the development and
investment plan of the Group
) S A 52 200647 A BEEEIF T BEARANRERBRRAEREZES
EEREENTE FOLBEAEEERREERERX
BBOR KA LB R MK ERTE
Ms. MU Haijie 47 July 2006 Executive Director and  Participating in formulation of business
President plans, strategic and major decisions;
overseeing the day-to-day business and
operations of the Group and work of
the vice Presidents; and directly
reporting to the Chief Executive
Officer
BgRZ L 47 200657 A MITESFREAR LEGIFE X B R EAREK
ERAEEREEBRESULEIE
HOTIE: WEEREFBRITEER
Mr. JIN Yuan 44 April 2014 Executive Director, Participating in the formulation of
Chief Financial business plans, strategic and major
Officer and Joint decisions; responsible for the overall
Company Secretary corporate financial, audit and capital
management, investor relations and
company secretarial matters; and
directly reporting to the Chief
Executive Officer
IRKE 44 2014541 HMOTES BFVH 22EGTEBTE BBRENRK:
EREEATWE BEREERRYR FAHRER
ER REEMERAAINESEH:
W E A E BT EER
Mr. JIANG Jingyu 48 March 2014 Vice President Responsible for technology and data
operations management of the Group;
and directly reporting to the President
EEFRE 48 2014434 Bl BEAREENRMRBIBELER I
IEREILIECES P i
Mr. HUA Lei 37 February 2013 Vice President Responsible for marketing and sales of
the Group; and directly reporting to
the President
EERE 37 201342 A Bl BEAEENEHRHE  TEER
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For the biography of Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU Haijie and Mr. JIN
Yuan, please refer to “Directors” in this section.

Mr. JIANG lJingyu, aged 48, was appointed as a vice President of
the Company in March 2018. He is also a vice president of China
PnR and a vice president of PnR Data and the general manager of its
product and information center. Mr. JIANG has over 25 years of
experience in software and technology development and operation
and corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. JIANG's
previous work experience primarily includes: consecutively serving in
several positions in Shanghai Huateng Software System Co., Ltd. (t
FERE T Z R AR A A]) from November 1993 to February 2006,
including as a project manager, manager of the development
department and a vice president; and as a deputy general manager
of Shanghai NTT Data Synergy Software Co., Ltd. (_E)8 B 1 1% UK
ZEEMHFARAR) from March 2006 to March 2014, Mr. JIANG
joined the Group in March 2014 and has consecutively served in
several positions, including as a deputy general manager of the No.1
development department of Shanghai Huifu Technology Ltd. and the
general manager of the information center of PnR Data. He served in
PnR Data as the chief technology officer from January 2015 to
December 2015, and as a vice president since January 2016.

Mr. JIANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree of engineering in computer
applications in Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC in
July 1992.

Mr. HUA Lei, aged 37, was appointed as the vice President of the
Company in March 2018. He is a vice president of China PnR, a vice
president of PnR Data and a supervisor of Golden Union Chengdu
Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. (S B AKX ML AEERLEE
fR A 7]). He also serves as a non-executive director of Paytech
Technology Ltd. and Paytech (Hongkong) Technology Limited. Mr.
HUA has over 10 years of experience in strategy consulting,
marketing and sales and corporate management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. HUA's previous work experience primarily includes:
consecutively serving in several positions, including as a technician, a
facility supervisor and a deputy head (in charge of operations) of the
factory division of Cold Rolled Section Steel Plant Construction
Engineering Design & Research Institute (B 828 TR BT F
=AM (currently known as Shanghai Baosteel Steel Co., Ltd.
(L/8EMAM AR A A) from August 2003 to August 2009; and
the senior consulting manager of Adfaith Management and
Consulting Co., Ltd. (EERE#IE BIRFE A A F]) from June 2011 to
June 2012. Mr. HUA consecutively served in several positions in
China PnR and PnR Data from February 2013 to December 2016,
including as a director of the business planning department of China
PnR, and the general manager of the business management center,
general manager of the micro and small channel business
department, the general manager of the payment business
department and as an assistant president of PnR Data.
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Mr. HUA obtained a bachelor's degree in automation (computer
control) from Donghua University in Shanghai, the PRC in July 2003,
a master’s degree in business administration from Antai College of
Economics and Management of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in
Shanghai, the PRC in June 2011, and an EMBA degree at China
Europe International Business School in Shanghai, the PRC in
November 2018. He was awarded the “New Long March Pace-Setter
(FTRALZEEF)" of Baosteel Group Corporation (/G E iEE R A,
currently known as China BaoWu Steel Group Corporation Limited
(FF BO 8 8 & B A BR A A])) for the Year of 2004 by the
Committee of Youth League of Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporation in April 2005.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. JIN Yuan

For the biography of Mr. JIN Yuan, please refer to “Directors” in this
section.

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Ms. SO currently serves as the vice
president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a
professional services provider specializing in corporate services),
responsible for managing company secretarial work for several listed
companies. Ms. SO has over 21 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field.

Ms. SO received a Master of Law degree from the City University of
Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Leicester in 2004 and 1999, respectively. She is an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since 1997.
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THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 December 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
15 June 2018 through the Global Offering.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading independent third-party payment service
provider in China, focusing on merchant payment and fintech
enabling services. The Company acts as an investment holding
company and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of Group’s activities during the year ended
31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are provided
on pages 12 to 29 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the vyear using financial key performance
indicators is provided on pages 27 to 28 of this annual report.
Details of the capital structure of the Company is provided on page
25 of this annual report. Details of the significant capital investment
of the Group is provided on page 27 of this annual report.

In addition, information of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance can be found on page 79 of this annual report. The
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are provided in the section
headed “Compliance with Laws and Regulations” of this report of
the Directors. In addition, description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing is set out in the section
headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” of this report of the
Directors. An account of the Company’s relationship with its
employees, customers, and suppliers is disclosed in the section
headed “Relationship with Stakeholders” of this report of the
Directors.

As at the date of this report, there are no material events
subsequent to 31 December 2018 which could have a material
impact on the Group’s operating and financial performance.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 105 to 106. The financial condition
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 is set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position on pages 107 to 108. The
consolidated cash flow of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows on pages 111 to 113.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and
significant elements affecting the results of operations and financial
condition of the Group during the year are set out in Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report on pages 12 to 29.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company, adopted by the Board on
29 November 2018, is set out as follows:

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Company in general
meeting may declare dividends in any currency but no dividends shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of
the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for
meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or
for paying off any loan capital or for equalizing dividends or for any
other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied, and pending such application may, at the like discretion,
either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in
such investments (including in the repurchase by the Company of its
own securities or the giving of any financial assistance for the
acquisition of its own securities) as the Board may from time to time
think fit, and so that it shall not be necessary to keep any
investments constituting the reserve or reserves separate or distinct
from any other investments of the Company. The Board may also
without placing the same to reserve, carry forward any profits which
it may think prudent not to distribute by way of dividend.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 28 May 2019. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 23 May
2019 to Tuesday, 28 May 2019 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM,
unregistered holders of the Shares shall lodge share transfer
documents with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 22 May 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$380,000, divided into 3,800,000,000 shares of
HK$0.0001 each. Details of movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. WANG Hengzhong, Mr. LIU
Jun and Ms. ZHANG Qi. Mr. WANG Hengzhong is the chairman of
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s 2018 annual results announcement, this annual report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 prepared in accordance with the IFRS.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of reserves available for
distribution of the Company was approximately RMB1,443,857,000.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its
subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately
RMB993,000.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 29
to the financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 June 2018.
The net proceeds raised from the Global Offering were
approximately HK$1,592.5 million. During the Relevant Period, there
was no change in the intended use of net proceeds as previously
disclosed in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has utilized HK$494.1
million of the net proceeds from the Global Offering. For the
amounts not yet utilized, the Company will apply the remaining net
proceeds in the manner set out in the Prospectus. As at the date of
this report, other than those already disclosed in the Prospectus,
there is no detailed schedule for utilization of the remaining
proceeds.
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TREP018F12A3NBNBREZHESAG
AR -

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the utilization of net
proceeds as at 31 December 2018:

Unit: HK$ million B BEET

Net proceeds Utilization
from the as at
Global 31 December Unutilized
Offering 2018 amount
720185
ERBEERE 12A31H
RIEFHE EBREHE REHAEHE
Enhancing technology systems and 08 BT R AR N b
research and development capability e 477.8 11.4 466.3
Pursuing selective acquisitions of, or HxREMRA -
strategic investments in, payment X RG R
technology companies, payment service &,/ 8 SaaSiE i
providers and/or SaaS providers EITEEERES
BRSIRE 318.5 12.9 305.6
Investing in the Group's direct sales REREERF
channel in the tier-one and tier-two — W T E
cities in China, to facilitate the BB DA EEE
acquisition and the support of key EFEHTHEEE
clients in selected industrial verticals EPHER R X R 159.2 159.2 0.0
Further recruiting and cultivating talents E—TSHRERESR
and continuing to offer competitive AT UAREER
compensation to the Group's existing rEERERE
employees REABEHEF N
B 159.2 29.8 129.5
Fully repaying the principal amount and BEERSE TRITE
interests of certain bank borrowings FHA® KT A 318.5 280.7 37.8
Working capital and general corporate BEBEAR—MPE
uses & 159.2 0.0 159.2
Total et 1,592.5 494.1 1,098.4
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 32.4% of the Group’s total
purchases. In addition, purchases from the Group’s single largest
supplier accounted for 13.7% of the Group's total purchases during
the same period.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Mr. ZHOU Ye, a Director, controlled 9.0% equity interests in Golden
Union Technical Services Co., Ltd. (£ B A RMIRE AR EE A 7)),
formerly known as Guizhou Golden Union Data Services Co., Ltd. (£
MEBEEHERBBRAA]), one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers in 2018, through Shanghai Huifu Internet Financial
Information Venture Capital Investment Center (Limited Partnership)

(LBENEMBERESERFAXRETL(BRAR)).

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
to the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close
associates, or Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares of
the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

The Company did not have any significant investment, acquisition
and disposal for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Ye (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. MU Haijie
Mr. JIN Yuan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow
Mr. ZHOU Joe
Mr. CHEN Zhongjue

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jun
Mr. WANG Hengzhong
Ms. ZHANG Qi

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises nine Directors in total. For details, please refer
to the paragraph headed "Directors” above. There are five members
of senior management in total, including Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU
Haijie, Mr. JIN Yuan, Mr. JIANG Jingyu and Mr. HUA Lei.

Information about the details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into service contracts or appointment
letters with all Directors for a term of three years following each
Director’s respective appointment date or until the third annual
general meeting of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever
ends earlier, or which shall be terminated pursuant to relevant terms
of respective contracts or letters of appointment.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for service contracts and the Contractual Arrangements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its
holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which none of the Directors or its connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, as at
31 December 2018 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN BUSINESSES
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Directors has confirmed that other than business of the Group,
none of the Directors holds any interest in business which directly or
indirectly competes or is likely to compete with the business of the
Group.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including those taken or deemed as their interests and short
positions in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i)

Interest in Shares of the Company

EERBSTBRAERALQTARHE
MHELZE 2RO HEARORERE
HPEAZEERAR

M2018F12A31H EERARAERITBAE
RARE REABE LB (FERI(EHFLBAEEDD
EXVE) 2 - BRI EEEFERRE
(BEREEEH)EXVIEIRSD HBMERRD
AIREBMRIMER AR (BERBEESLEE
EODZEREEEERRIEBEE 2 BERAR)
FARBE(BEE R RS EH)FE3521E AR ER AR
RIEZERATEEENELMANELRS RAR K
BB AZ A 5P BB NS A R R) KB 22 P A 25 RO
I CNE

(i) RAEARQBRAEDS

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
Name of Director/ Long position/ ordinary derivative  interest in the
Chief Executive Nature of interest Short position shares shares Company
ES BETHAR ZER RAEAQRER
& EEUE BR/KR KR8 E TERGEA MO ED L
Mr. ZHOU Ye Interest in controlled Long position 142,200,000 — 11.37%
corporations®”
B 5T A REEEERD e
Beneficial owner®? Long position — 93,217,622 7.45%
ERERAD e
Mr. ZHOU Joe Interest in controlled Long position 128,077,180 — 10.24%
corporations®
ZHOU Joe %t 4 XEREEERY wE
Ms. MU Haijie Beneficial owner®? Long position — 38,337,404 3.06%
BRRRL ERERAD e
Mr. JIN Yuan Beneficial owner®? Long position — 14,967,642 1.20%
LRESE ERERAD e
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Notes:

Q)

(3)

(ii)

Management Company directly held 142,199,998 Shares and indirectly
held 2 Shares (through PnR Holdings, its wholly owned subsidiary) (all of
which were ordinary Shares). Management Company is owned as to 60%
by Mr. ZHOU Ye. Therefore, Mr. ZHOU Ye is deemed to be interested in
the 142,200,000 Shares directly and indirectly held by Management
Company for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

These interests are derived from the share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”.

Keytone Ventures, L.P. was directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners,
L.P. as the general partner, which was in turn controlled by Keytone
Investment Group, Ltd. as the general partner. Keytone Ventures II, L.P.
was directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners Il, L.P. as the general
partner, which was in turn controlled by Keytone Investment Group I, Ltd.
as the general partner. Keytone Investment Group, Ltd. and Keytone
Investment Group I, Ltd. were wholly owned by Mr. ZHOU Joe.
Therefore, Mr. ZHOU Joe is deemed to be interested in the 128,077,180
Shares collectively and directly held by Keytone Ventures, L.P. and
Keytone Ventures I, L.P. for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Interest in associated corporations

(i)

(3)

=

ENER AR E142,199,998/ i fh BB E S
% M & 2 RIPnR Holdingsf# #5 B28 ik h (19 A&
BR) - ENEBRHBERELEHEFO% - Bt 5t
(BHERAERADEXVET S - AREEREA
OB B I B # & 5 G §9142,200,0000% A& (5
hEERER -

ZEEMDREERAMEEMBREEAT
RO ERE  SBRRERAFEEAERE

sl —fne

Keytone Ventures, L.P.f5Keytone Capital Partners,
LP(HER E®E B A)E % 1% #l - fiKeytone
Capital Partners, L.P.FiKeytone Investment Group,
Ltd. ({E AL @A % A) &l - Keytone Ventures I,
L.P.fiKeytone Capital Partners Il, L.P. ({EA % EA
¥ A)EE®R | MKeytone Capital Partners I,
L.P.faKeytone Investment Group II, Ltd. (fE & & i
&% AN) 2%l » Keytone Investment Group, Ltd. %
Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd.FZHOU Joe’t
E2EHER - Bt s(GEF LG GO EXVE
& * ZHOU Joe%kt 4 4 4% A A Keytone Ventures,
L.P. }2Keytone Ventures Il, LP.A X R EEHAH
128,077,180 B 15 R #E B #e 2m ©

L B B R

Percentage of
shareholding

Number of in the
Name of Director/ ordinary associated
Chief Executive Nature of interest Associated corporation shares corporation
EZ BETHAE EER REBEE
% EEtE B EE K& A RENESH
Mr. ZHOU Ye Beneficial owner Management Company!” 30,000 60%
& B 5 A ERBEEA ENERO
Beneficial owner China PnR®@ 60,060,000 60%
EREAA ERNRT@
Ms. MU Haijie Beneficial owner Management Company" 10,000 20%
BBRLL EREEA ENERO
Beneficial owner China PnR®@ 10,010,000 10%
ERAA EMNATO
Notes: B & -
(1) Management Company is a business company incorporated in the BVI with (1) EREE AMR2006F8 A24H - BB MR R B S5t

limited liability on 24 August 2006, and one of the substantial MERZzBREERR UREERRZ—-

Shareholders.

(2) China PnR is a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 23 June (2) JERTRT BRI G BUEZ720069F6 823 H FHf K
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2006 with limited liability, and one of the operating entities of the
Company. Its financial results have been consolidated and accounted for
as subsidiaries of the Company by virtue of the series of contractual
arrangements entered into by, among others, China PnR and its

registered shareholders.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at
31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) (i) which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register kept by the Company, or (ii)
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2018, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interest or short positions in the shares of the
Company which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which will be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company:

br EXFT AN REBATA - 7R2018F 12 A31
H BEEEI ARG TRABRESESH
EARANARKEBEEE (T&R(EH K
BB EXVE) 2 fh - ARG REEE R E
B ERO)BRIECGE FH KA E K1) FE3521K 5% 85 R
ANRAREFEENECMA  SG)BRIEZES A A
CTARRNBIRBRAMERIAR

FERRES

MEBERM R2018F12A318  TIALT(ESE
MARB&ERITBRABRIN REARRRMDFES
RIB(GEE R EKAD)EXVIFE2RIN A 2R T
BARMARBWEZEDNAR  REBE(ESFRS
EIEBI)EI36IE AR BER AR R AIFENZ LM
ZHRERRIKE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
RA DB R E
BREEEB ERME FERGHE BB
Management Company" Interest in controlled corporation 2 0.00%
ERE RO FAE R
Management Company™" Beneficial interest 142,199,998 11.37%
ERERO BEanER
Trixen Beneficial interest 307,800,000 24.60%
Trixen EmiEs
Mr. Putera Sampoerna® Interest in controlled corporation 307,800,000 24.60%
Putera Sampoernast £ @ Ry LB
Asia Ventures Il L.p.®)&®@ Beneficial interest 125,556,987 10.04%
Asia Ventures Il L.P.&%® EmiEs
FIL Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 125,556,987 10.04%
FIL Limited® Ry AE R
Asia Partners Il L.P.® Interest in controlled corporation 125,556,987 10.04%
Asia Partners Il L.P.® XA B
FIL Capital Management Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 125,556,987 10.04%

FIL Capital Management Limited®

Ry AE R
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of  shareholding in

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
RARTRE

BRES BB EEME FERGHE WA BE D
Pandanus Associates Inc.® Interest in controlled corporations 125,556,987 10.04%
Pandanus Associates Inc.® A B
Pandanus Partners L.P.® Interest in controlled corporations 125,556,987 10.04%
Pandanus Partners L.P.® A B s
FMR LLC@ Interest in controlled corporation 125,556,987 10.04%
FMR LLC® XL EER
Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnership.® Interest in controlled corporation 125,556,987 10.04%
Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnership.® XA EES
Impresa Management LLC® Interest in controlled corporation 125,556,987 10.04%
Impresa Management LLC® R EEER
Johnson Abigail® Trustee 125,556,987 10.04%
Johnson Abigail® ZEEA
Johnson IV Edward C.® Trustee 125,556,987 10.04%
Johnson IV Edward C.@ ZEEA
Keytone Ventures II, L.P. Beneficial interest 109,780,440 8.77%
Keytone Ventures Il, L.P. EmiEn
Keytone Capital Partners I, L.P.® Interest in controlled corporation 109,780,440 8.77%
Keytone Capital Partners Il, L.P.® R EEER
Keytone Investment Group I, Ltd.® Interest in controlled corporations 109,780,440 8.77%
Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd.® R EEER
Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited Beneficial interest 230,416,159 18.42%
Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited EmiEn
Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P.® Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.42%
Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P.® R EEER
Bain Capital Asia Fund I, L.P.® Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.42%

Bain Capital Asia Fund I, L.P.®

HErE R
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of  shareholding in

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
R DT RE

BRER LB EatE FERGHE BB

Bain Capital Partners Asia Il, L.P.© Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.42%

Bain Capital Partners Asia Il, L.P.© A EE R

Bain Capital Investors, LLC® Interest in controlled corporations 230,416,159 18.42%

Bain Capital Investors, LLC® A EER

Notes: Bt 5

(1) Management Company directly held 142,199,998 Shares and indirectly held 2 (1) EMNEBEEEFH142,199,9980% i 17 K i@ i H 2 & I &8
Shares (through PnR Holdings, its wholly-owned subsidiary) (all of which were A RPnR Holdings @ # & B2/ ik 1p (39 AL @A) -
ordinary Shares).

(2) Trixen was wholly-owned by Mr. Putera Sampoerna. Therefore, Mr. Putera (2) Trixen g Putera Sampoerna’t &2 & #H A - At » (FEFH
Sampoerna is deemed to be interested in the 307,800,000 Shares held by Trixen LEIE GBI EXVERTM S + Putera Sampoernaft £ #1485
for purpose of Part XV of the SFO. W Trixen$¥ /A £9307,800,0000% i 7 # & # 25 ©

(3) Asia Ventures Il L.P. (“Eight Roads Ventures”) was owned as to 61.07% by FIL (3) FIL Limited % 4 Asia Ventures Il L.P.([EFE&EA1)61.07%
Limited. In addition, the general partner of Eight Roads Ventures is Asia Partners MR o LA BB E A L MA B A RAsia Partners |l
Il L.P., whose general partner is FIL Capital Management Limited, which is wholly- L.P. - fAsia Partners Il L.P.#) ¥ #& # A AFIL Limited &
owned by FIL Limited. Furthermore, FIL Limited was owned as to 37.51% by & ¥ A MFL Capital Management Limited ° Itt 4] -
Pandanus Partners L.P., whose general partner is Pandanus Associates Inc. Pandanus Partners L.P. (Pandanus Associates Inc. 4 & & i
Therefore, FIL Limited, Asia Partners Il L.P., FIL Capital Management Limited, A8 A)EAFIL Limited 37.51%MH o Fit > gh(EH
Pandanus Partners L.P. and Pandanus Associates Inc. are deemed to be interested REAE GBI EXVER™ S » FIL Limited ~ Asia Partners I
in the 125,556,987 Shares held by Eight Roads Ventures for purpose of Part XV L.P. » FIL Capital Management Limited * Pandanus Partners
of the SFO. L.P. &2 Pandanus Associates Inc. #1537 AR ETE A AATIF B B

125,556,987 ik 17 A #E =

(4) To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, Eight Roads Ventures is a limited (4) BEEMFEN HBEEAAE-—BREREXNINERE
partnership established in Bermuda and was owned as to 37.43% by FMR LLC. %1% AFMR LLCH#E B37.43% © FIL Limited & Impresa
FIL Limited and Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnership are general partners of Eight Fund Il Limited Partnership B HT8 E A EBEZEA - M
Roads Ventures, and Impresa Management LLC, which holds 100% interest in Impresa Management LLC (3% AImpresa Fund Il Limited
Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnership, is wholly-owned, directly or indirectly, by Partnership#J100% £ #) HFMR LLCAOTRIBR R R EE &
various shareholders and employees of FMR LLC. Based on the public information, BEXRELEHE BAREHRAT UTSERBERA
each of the following entities are deemed under the SFO to be interested in the RFMR LLCHE B BRMD R - A RIB(GEFH RS K60
Shares to be held by FMR LLC as described herein: (i) Eight Roads Ventures was TR R A ()ETIE S A EBFMR LLCEF B37.43% ¢ (i)
owned as to 37.43% by FMR LLC; (ii) Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnership was Impresa Fund Il Limited Partnershipl @& % A RRE
managed by Impresa Management LLC, the general partner and investment #238 |Impresa Management LLCE 32 [z # A 100% #E & + (iii)
manager, which holds a 100% interest in; (iii) Impresa Fund Ill Limited Partnership Impresa Fund Ill Limited PartnershipfiFMR LLC % % i% 3
was managed by various shareholders and employees of FMR LLC (including Ms. {E B (¥ Abigail Johnson% + flEdward C. Johnson IV5E
Abigail Johnson and Mr. Edward C. Johnson IV). H)ERR o

(5) Keytone Ventures I, L.P. was directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners II, L.P. (5) Keytone Ventures I, L.P.FiKeytone Capital Partners II,

as the general partner, which was in turn controlled by Keytone Investment Group
Il, Ltd. as the general partner. Therefore, Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd. and
Keytone Capital Partners Il, L.P. are deemed to be interested in the 109,780,440
Shares directly held by Keytone Ventures I, L.P. for purpose of Part XV of the
SFO.

LP.(tER L @A % A)E 12 4l - MKeytone Capital
Partners Il, L.P.EiKeytone Investment Group II. Ltd. ({F A&
e B A - Bt ptGEH KB GG EXVER
= ' Keytone Investment Group I, Ltd. X Keytone Capital
Partners Il, L.P.#7#% &7 Keytone Ventures Il, LP.EE&HA
#9109,780,440% A {7 i 5 &5 ©
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(6) Based on the information provided by Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited (“Bain
PnR"), each of the following entities are deemed under the SFO to be interested
in the Shares to be held by Bain PnR as described herein: (i) Bain Capital PnR
Holdings, L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership, which holds a 100% interest
in Bain PnR; (ii) Bain Capital Asia Fund I, L.P.,, a Cayman Islands limited
partnership, which holds a 65.05% interest in Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P. as
a limited partner; (i) Bain Capital Partners Asia I, L.P., a Cayman Islands limited
partnership, which is the general partner of Bain Capital Asia Fund Il, L.P. and
holds a 0.16% interest as well;, and (iv) Bain Capital Investors, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, which is the general partner of Bain Capital PnR
Holdings, L.P.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debentures during the year ended
31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate during the year ended
31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of Association and
subject to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted indemnity
provision has been in force during the Relevant Period.

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for its

Directors and senior management. The permitted indemnity
provisions are set out in such liability insurance.
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LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not provide any financial assistance or guarantee
to its affiliated companies during the Relevant Period, which gives
rise to a disclosure under Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules. The
Company did not enter into any loan agreement with covenants
relating to specific performance of its controlling Shareholder or
breach the terms of any loan agreements during the Relevant
Period.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to incentivize the Directors, senior management, connected
persons and other grantees for their contribution to the Group and
to attract and retain suitable personnel to the Group, the Company
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 20 January 2018. A
summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is set out as below.

Administration

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is administered by the committee
established by the management of the Company for the purpose of
stipulation, administration and implementation of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Committee”). The Committee shall be entitled
at any time during the term of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
make an offer to any eligible participant(s) in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Grantee(s)”).

Eligible Participants

The Grantees include any individual, form of body corporate,
unincorporated association, firm, partnership, joint venture,
consortium, organization or trust (in each case whether or not
having a separate legal personality) who or which is granted a right
to subscribe for Shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
hereunder by the Company pursuant to the decision of the
Committee.

Exercise Price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an option shall be determined by the Board from
time to time and shall be set out in an offer letter (the “Offer
Letter”).

ARARNERBRER M B AL

REEEE ARRLEMEREQRREER
RIE ETRBIE1316MG T ARE 2 B E B IR
R REBEIE ARBLARTZEMEHEARR
AERERETAREERBRZOZERBHENL
ERERE R EZ R -

BXRAHBEBRESTE
AYBES RRTEE BEATREMER
A AREBFEEER UNRTRIIMEEARER A
o RRFR2018F1 A20B AN EH X AR SR
BIREE - BER A AHBEENEREFSNES
BHRBEEHN T -

=i
BRARBENBREEAARQREEE5H
EBEREBEMENERAMESHBRETEKT
MEZEE((ZEEENER CERAHEENE
et S PRENEARE ZESARAEAA
FMEEmBREFINENAER2EE ([AR
ADRHED -

RERSHEE
AERABRBREBEZEEREHARAZEBERR
B3 E AT B A AT 81 TR B AR R &0 E (&
A ERFEAEEAERE  IEAER BSR4
% oAELE 4B HABNEE(EWRELESR
BIYHEANER)

TREE
EARATEBRESIRBRONSRERS
HEFSTRATLEZORK([EHR]) FREA -
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Vesting Schedule

The vesting schedule shall be determined by the Board from time to
time and shall be set out in the Offer Letter. There shall be no
accelerated vesting of any options except that with the prior
approval of the Board vesting may be fully accelerated for a period
of not more than one year upon a change of control of the
Company or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company.

Details of the Options Granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 301,923,937 Shares,
representing approximately 24.13% of the issued share capital of the
Company have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, including the
exercise of options during the year ended 31 December 2018, are
set out in the Prospectus and note 31 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at the
Latest Practicable Date, which was in line with the requirement
under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Relevant Period, the Company exercised its powers under
the general mandate to repurchase Shares granted by the
Shareholders to the Board, which shall be expired on the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company (the “Share
Repurchase Plan”), and repurchased a total of 1,673,200 Shares on
the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,855,224.
All of these repurchased Shares were subsequently cancelled.

The Board considers that the then trading price of the Shares did
not reflect their intrinsic value and the business prospects as
perceived by investors and that it presented good opportunities for
the Company to repurchase Shares. The repurchases reflect the
confidence of the Board and the management team in the long-term
strategy and growth of the Company. Moreover, the Company
believes that actively managing the capital structure and
implementing the Share Repurchase Plan will optimize the
Company’s capital structure, enhance earnings per Share and overall
shareholder return. The Board considers that the Share Repurchase
Plan is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole.
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e EABREDTENERE BKRIFEARA
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REBA LAHEBEEBRETEREZE
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Al R 4451301,923,9370 A% 1D (K915 R R B2 317
fEAH2413% )MERECREE X MBS
BT EIRE -

FHBEXR AHBEEBRETINE—PFB(B
HEREE2018F12A31B L FE B BARE 217
F) AP ZRE B ISR AR 5E31 ©

ARABERE
REARBTRAMEESINENERLEERM
M RERATAS ARFACKARBERES
FEMDPREETROE25% - Ha LHREZ
HE °

BE HEFFEEEALQF LHES

RIERIERRE - AR BIITHEHRERTFTESEMN —
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Particulars of the repurchases made by the Company are as follows:

ARRMELBEZFBET

Purchase price per Share

Number of ERBEEE Aggregate

Shares Highest Lowest consideration

Month repurchased (HK$) (HKS$) (HK$)

2 E BESE B1EE wBRE

R #% R4 &8 (% 7) (%) (#7T)

October 2018 429,200 3.82 3.46 1,577,728
20184108

December 2018 1,244,000 2.93 2.60 3,277,496

20184121

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any member of
the Group purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Relevant Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,142 full-time employees
(31 December 2017: 943), the majority of whom are based in
Shanghai, China.

In compliance with the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management
with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind, performance-related bonuses, share based payments, pensions,
and other social insurance benefits. Non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors receive compensation according
to their duties (including serving as members or chairmen of the
Board committees).
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In line with the performance of the Group and individual employees,
the Group strives to offer a good working environment, a diversified
range of training programs as well as an attractive remuneration
package to its employees. The Group endeavours to motivate its staff
with performance-based remuneration. On top of basic salary, the
Group will reward staff with outstanding performance by way of
cash bonuses, share options, honorary awards or a combination of
all the above to further align the interests of the employees and the
Company, to attract talented individuals, and to create long-term
incentive for its staff. Employees of the Group are eligible
participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme” in this report of the Directors.

Remuneration of the Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the Company’s remuneration policy and
the prevailing market conditions, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders general meetings. Details of remuneration of Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

After the Reorganization, the Directors consider that there is a clear
delineation between the business of the Group and Excluded
Entities, each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has provided a
non-competition undertaking on 20 May 2018 in favor of the Group
(the “Non-competition Undertaking”), pursuant to which, each of
PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has irrevocably undertaken,
among other things, that each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech
Holdings will not and will procure that the Excluded Group would
not, directly or indirectly, engage in any business which is or may be
in competition with the business of any member of the Group from
time to time.

Each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has confirmed in
writing to the Company of its compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking for disclosure in this report during the Relevant Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-
competition Undertaking and had determined that neither PnR
(Cayman) nor Paytech Holdings has been in breach of the Non-
competition Undertaking during the Relevant Period.
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During the Relevant Period, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) did not make any decisions in relation to
whether to exercise or terminate an option for purchase and take up
or waive any new business opportunity.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity in
all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and operations are
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and to
enhance the transparency and accountability of the Board to all
Shareholders.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
Relevant Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry to all the Directors, all the Director
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Relevant Period. The Board has
also established written guidelines to regulate dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred
to in code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

AUDITORS

The Company has been engaging Ernst & Young as the Company’s
auditor since the commencement of the preparation for its Global
Offering. This financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

The Company will propose a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the Company’s auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Summary of the Company’s connected persons

PnR (Cayman) does not fall into the definition of connected person
under the Listing Rules. In order to ensure that the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole, as disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Company voluntarily treats it as its connected person and chooses to
comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Paytech Holdings was owned as to 71.19% by China PnR Holdings
Limited, which is in turn owned as to 39.89% by Trixen, being one
of the substantial Shareholders. As such, Paytech Holdings is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of
a substantial Shareholder under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the following transactions of the
Group constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company during the Relevant Period. For further details, please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

1. Property Leasing Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a property leasing framework
agreement with PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings on
20 May 2018 (the “Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Group may lease
properties as offices and/or other work places to the Excluded
Group, for which the Company may charge rental, property
management fees, utility charges, device fees and other
charges. The Property Leasing Framework Agreement is valid
for a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2020 and can be renewed for another three years upon its
expiry as agreed by relevant parties to the agreement.

Pricing policy

In accordance with the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, the rental and other charges to be paid to the
Group by the Excluded Group will be determined based on the
following pricing policies:

(i) the rentals and property management fees paid to the
Group by the Excluded Group will be determined and
reviewed based on arm’s-length negotiations between
both parties with reference to the prevailing market rate
(including but not limited to factors such as the
geographical location, the standard of construction and
the surrounding area), and is consistent with the market
practice; and
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(i) all utility charges, device fees, maintenance and repair
fees and other miscellaneous expenses will be charged
based on actual costs incurred in using the relevant
properties during the term of the lease, in accordance
with the relevant government guidance prices (for utility
charges) or market prices.

Business Collaboration and Services Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a business collaboration and
services framework agreement with PnR (Cayman) and Paytech
Holdings on 20 May 2018 (the “Business Collaboration and
Services Framework Agreement”), respectively, pursuant to
which, the Group and the Excluded Group will mutually
provide services from time to time, and service fees will be
paid to the other party in respect of such service. The Business
Collaboration and Services Framework Agreement is valid for a
term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020
and can be renewed for another three years upon its expiry as
agreed by relevant parties to the agreement.

Pricing policy

The service fees to be paid to the Group by the Excluded
Group will be determined on the basis of arm’s-length
negotiations between the relevant parties and be determined
with reference to prevailing market prices and shall not be
lower than the prices at which the Group provide similar
services to independent third parties. The Company will also
make reference to the applicable historical prices of similar
services to ensure that the terms of supplying such services to
the Excluded Group are fair and reasonable.

The service fees to be paid by the Group to the Excluded
Group will be determined on a fair and reasonable basis and
shall not be higher than the prices at which the Excluded
Group provide similar services to the independent third parties.
The Company will also make reference to the applicable
historical prices of similar services from the independent third
parties to ensure that the terms of purchasing such services
from the Excluded Group are fair and reasonable.
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Annual caps and actual transaction amounts for the above HZE2018F 128318 IEFE - AQR) LilF
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year BHAEXIFINFELREERERZSEDN
ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: N
Actual
Annual caps transaction
Connected transactions under for 2018 amounts in 2018
20185 20184
UTHRBETZHAERS FEELER BERXZLHE
Property Leasing Framework Agreement RMB8.0 million RMB6.7 million
MEHEELH R AR¥80EET ARB6TEETT
Business Collaboration and Services Framework Agreement:
EBEERBRBERDGS
— Total service fees paid to the Group by the Excluded Group RMB9.9 million RMB1.6 million
— rmEERAEEXNNRBELRE AR#IIEET AEBI6BETT
— Total service fees paid by the Group to the Excluded Group RMB12.1 million RMB2.7 million
— AEEMELITEENORBE LR ARBI2IBET ARK278ET
Confirmation from the independent BILIKHTES2RR
non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the BUHTESCEMN LMFERERS
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that WHERZEXS

these transactions:

(1) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of (1) NAEBBRENR —REBBREFREIL
business of the Group;

(2)  were either on normal commercial terms, or, in the (2) H—MEERRET HELEBMU
absence of similar transactions to judge whether the RGHGZEFRREER—BEER
terms are normal commercial terms, on terms no less HEERT AR B R ANk B 5
favorable to those adopted for transactions between the NE=ZT RS ERAEER

Group and independent third parties;

(3)  were in accordance with the terms of such transaction () ZBZEXRFIHENKIET T4
agreements, which are in the interest of the Group and AEERBRERNESMNZ  BBAQT
the Shareholders as a whole, and fair and reasonable; 518 K
and

(4)  did not exceed the annual cap amounts. (4) WHEBAFE LRS-
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Confirmation from the auditor

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Company in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
assurance report containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has provided a copy of the auditor's assurance
report to the Stock Exchange.

Others

Except for the above and the Contractual Agreements set out
in the section headed “Contractual Agreements” below, the
Group did not enter into any other connected transactions
which should comply with the reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For certain material related party transactions disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements which were also connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the
Company, the Company had made disclosure as required
under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

To comply with PRC laws and regulations, the Group conduct
substantially all of the fintech enabling services and payment
business in China through of the Contractual Arrangements, which
enable the Group to (i) have the power to direct the activities that
most significantly affect the economic performance of the Operating
Entities; (ii) receive substantially all of the economic benefits from the
Operating Entities in consideration for the services provided by the
WFOE; (iii) have an exclusive option to purchase all or part of the
equity interests in the Operating Entities when and to the extent
permitted by PRC law, or request any Registered Shareholder to
transfer all or part of the equity interest in the Operating Entities to
another PRC person or entity designated by the Group at any time
at its discretion; and (iv) have the pledged equity interests in China
PnR to ensure the performance of the above items.
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The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic T3 EHBAEG N LA TEEETRYAEE
benefits from the Operating Entities to the Group stipulated under — BJ4E % Fz5 7 M) ¢
the Contractual Arrangements:

The Company

ZAN/N
100%
A
PnR Network (WFQOE) Registered Shareholders
AR (SN EE ) B
' A
Management and ' Service
consultation service ! i fees 100%
BB ERRE v RIS B
\ 4 N y
China PnR
ERTRT
100%
y
PnR Data
ENEE7
Notes: B 3E
“—" denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity interest. [—p] ERAEETPHNEELIERERHEERE -
“.--p" denotes contractual relationship. [---p] IBEXBIR -

"—" denotes the control by the WFOE over the Registered Shareholders and the [—] EIEBECEBBOTEENRTABRRENNEK

Operating Entities through (i) powers of attorney to exercise all shareholders’ BE2:(VMBENATE2HXNLOBRARZNEREE
rights in China PnR, (ii) exclusive options to acquire all or part of the equity B R GipER R TR RO R E R RSB LCRR
interests in China PnR, and (iii) equity pledges over the equity interests in China MEZER -

PnR.
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A brief description of each of the specific agreements that comprises
the Contractual Arrangements is set out as follows:

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive business cooperation agreement dated
2 March 2018 between China PnR and the WFOE (the “Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement”), the WFOE agreed to be
engaged as the exclusive provider to the Operating Entities of
technical support, consultation and other services for a monthly
service fee, including the following services: the use of any relevant
software and trademarks legally owned by the WFOE; development,
maintenance and updating of software in respect of the Operating
Entities’ businesses; design, installation, daily management,
maintenance and updating of network systems, hardware and
database; providing technical support and professional training
services to relevant staff of the Operating Entities; providing
assistance in consultancy, collection and research of technology and
market information (excluding market research business that wholly
foreign-owned enterprises are prohibited from conducting under PRC
laws); providing business management consultation; providing
marketing and promotional services;, providing customer order
management and customer services; providing relevant investment,
financing and risk control services; providing financial and legal
consultative support services; assisting China PnR with the transfer,
leasing and disposal of equipment and properties; and other relevant
services requested by the Operating Entities from time to time to the
extent permitted under PRC laws.

Under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the service fee
shall be of reasonable prices in accordance with the nature of the
services, shall be further stipulated in separate service agreements,
and shall consist of 100% of the total consolidated profit of the
Operating Entities, after deduction of any accumulated deficit of the
Operating Entities in the preceding financial year(s), working capital,
expenses, taxes and other statutory contributions. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the WFOE may adjust the scope and amount of
service fees according to PRC tax law and tax practices, and China
PnR will accept such adjustments.

The validity period of the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
commenced from 1 January 2015, and it shall remain effective
unless terminated (a) in accordance with the provisions of the
Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement; (b) in writing by the
WFOE; or (¢) if renewal of the expired business period of either the
WEFOE or China PnR is denied by relevant government authorities, at
which time the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement will
terminate upon expiration of that business period.

WA 8031 48 P 4 4022 k0 5 TR S 0 2 0

BREBESHEHR
REBEENRTEIEBEE DX BB R2018F3A2
ANBEREGEFEHE(BRERSEBR]) -
SIEBECERAERBIFAELERAMKIMX
FomAREMREOBRUER 2 A KRR
BE BETIRYE: ERIEMBECES LR
BENEAERTRELREE ARHECERBELX
HERE  EERAR  BRES  BONEERE
Rt -REK BEER @ELEH MELER
HEE TRERM I MEXE RS - RER
MEMmISESER WENHARTENEBE (T2
RABZRZELIIEABEECERENMSIRE
B RECEFERER REZHENEERE
REXPAIEEEMNZEFPRE  REMBERE
BEMERIEG R REMBEIEEE AR
R BEENRKTEZE HEMLERBNY
X REEERBGETEAAFABEATKEX
B H A8 B AR 5 o

REBREGAFHE REBERERRBEM
ENREER AEEBENREHETE - FTH
B RABRELEREGS M BAENI00% (K
MRBEVRFEELERNEMNRTEAL &
BEXR RAX BREAREMEEHR -BECLH
LFRE HNEBECEDAERBETERBE
RERBEVRABRRGELDERSHE  ENXT

BEXEHEAE-

BREBKAERZN BRI B2015F1 7518 8
O BRFQBEBEBREBEERE NG LL:
LN EBECENEERI ¢ (0B BEATIM
BERIFBECEREN KA TEED BMMWES
HRR (R BREBKA EH RSN ZEEBRER
RaRIE) BRI —EB® -

Huifu Payment Limited SCRAf X F B R 27 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 #§

67



Bl REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEeNE

68

Exclusive Option Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive option agreement dated 2 March 2018
among China PnR, the WFOE and the Registered Shareholders (the
"Exclusive Option Agreement”), the Registered Shareholders
irrevocably agreed to grant the WFOE an exclusive right to acquire,
or designate one or more persons to acquire, from the Registered
Shareholders any or all their equity interests then held in China PnR,
in whole or in part at any time, for a total consideration of RMB100
million, which is equivalent to the total loans owed to the Registered
Shareholders by the WFOE. If the WFOE exercises its option right to
acquire part of equity interests held by certain Registered
Shareholder(s) in China PnR, the purchase price shall be calculated in
proportion to the equity interests being transferred. Furthermore,
where the above purchase prices are higher than the lowest price
permitted by the then PRC laws at the time of exercising options,
the lowest price permitted by PRC laws, regulations and relevant
rules shall be applied.

The validity period of the Exclusive Option Agreement commenced
from 1 January 2015 and it shall remain effective unless terminated
in the event that the entire equity interests held by the Registered
Shareholders or their successors or the transferees in China PnR have
been transferred to the WFOE or their appointee(s).

Equity Pledge Agreements

Pursuant to the equity pledge agreement dated 2 March 2018
entered into between the WFOE, China PnR and each of the
Registered Shareholders (collectively, the “Equity Pledge
Agreements”), the Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge all
their respective equity interests in China PnR that they own,
including any interest or dividend paid for the shares, to the WFOE
as a security interest to guarantee the performance of contractual
obligations and the payment of outstanding debts.

The pledge in respect of China PnR took effect upon the completion
of the change of registration with the relevant administration for
industry and commerce and shall remain valid until after all the
contractual obligations of the Registered Shareholders and China PnR
under the relevant Contractual Arrangements have been fully
performed and all the outstanding debts of the Registered
Shareholders and China PnR under the relevant Contractual
Arrangements have been fully paid.
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Powers of Attorney

Each of the Registered Shareholders has executed a power of
attorney dated 2 March 2018 (collectively, the “Powers of
Attorney”). pursuant to which each of the Registered Shareholders
irrevocably appointed the WFOE and its designated persons
(including but not limited to the Directors and their successors and
liquidators replacing the Directors but excluding those who are non-
independent or who may give rise to conflict of interests) as his or
her attorney-in-fact to exercise on his or her behalf, and agreed and
undertook not to exercise without such attorney-in-fact’'s prior
written consent, any and all right that he or she has in respect of
his or her equity interests in China PnR.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced between the
Group and the Operating Entities during the Relevant Period.

There was no material change in the Contractual Arrangements and/
or the circumstances under which they were adopted during the
Relevant Period. During the Relevant Period, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of the
restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had not encountered interference or encumbrance from any
PRC governing bodies in operating its businesses through the
Operating Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

The revenue of China PnR and PnR Data and their respective
subsidiaries amounted to RMB3,242 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing an increase by 87.8% from
RMB1,726 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of China PnR and PnR
Data and their respective subsidiaries accounted for approximately
99.9% of the revenue for the year of the Group (2017: 100%).
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Reasons for Adopting the Contractual Arrangements

From the perspective of operating the Group’s existing business in a
manner that is in compliance with applicable PRC laws and
regulations, given the current policy of the relevant PRC government
authorities and as advised by PRC legal advisors, the Company is
currently unable to hold a shareholding interest in the Operating
Entities, which hold the license and permit required for the fintech
enabling services and payment service business. In order for the
Company, as a foreign investor under the current regulatory regime,
to maintain its business operations while complying with the PRC
laws and regulations, the WFOE, China PnR and the Registered
Shareholders entered into the Contractual Arrangements. For details
of the foreign investment restrictions relating to the Contractual
Arrangements, please refer to the sections headed *“Contractual
Arrangements — PRC Regulatory Background” and *“Contractual
Arrangements — Development in the PRC Legislation on Foreign
Investment” of the Prospectus.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are
of the view that the Contractual Arrangements and the transactions
contemplated therein are fundamental to the Group’s legal structure
and business, that such transactions have been and will be entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, are
on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, notwithstanding that the transactions contemplated
under the Contractual Arrangements and any new transactions,
contracts and agreements or renewal of existing transactions,
contracts and agreements to be entered into, among others, by any
of the Operating Entities and any member of the Group (the “New
Intergroup Agreements” and each of them, a “New Intergroup
Agreement”) technically constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that, given that the Group is placed in a special position in
relation to the connected transactions rules under the Contractual
Arrangements, it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable,
and would add unnecessary administrative costs to the Company if
such transactions are subject to strict compliance with the
requirements set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
including, among others, the reporting, annual
announcement and the independent Shareholders’
requirements.

review,
approval
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Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are certain risks that are associated with the Contractual
Arrangements, including:

o If the PRC government finds that the agreements establishing
the structure for operating the businesses of the Group in
China do not comply with applicable PRC laws and
regulations, or should these regulations or the interpretations
change, the Group could be subject to severe consequences,
including the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements
and the relinquishment of its interests in the Operating
Entities.

o The Group relies on Contractual Arrangements for its business
operations in China, which may not be as effective in
providing operational control or enabling the Group to derive
economic benefits as through direct ownership of controlling
equity interest. The Operating Entities or the Registered
Shareholders may fail to perform their obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements, which could adversely affect the
results of operations and financial condition of the Group.

o The Group may cease to benefit from assets and licenses held
by the Operating Entities that are critical to the operation of
its business if the Operating Entities were to declare
bankruptcy or become subject to a dissolution or liquidation
proceeding.

o The Registered Shareholders may potentially have a conflict of
interest with the Group, and they may breach or attempt to
amend their contracts with the Group in a manner contrary to
the interests of the Group.

o The Contractual Arrangements with the Operating Entities may
result in adverse tax consequences to the Group.

o Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the enactment
timetable, interpretation and implementation of the Draft PRC
Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact the viability of
the current corporate structure, corporate governance and
business operations of the Group.

o If the Group exercises the option to acquire the equity
ownership and assets of the Operating Entities, the ownership
or asset transfer may subject the Group to certain limitations
and substantial costs.

HENZHEENAR
BENRZHERNETRABRE

o0 B TR AT 5 A S L A o I TR
STRBOBETEAARPEDEEER X
WREERARBEREE AR ELEA
EREEE BEANEHEBRHELE

EEREOMEN -

AEBEGETHEEXBRESORE  HE
RUEELETREASEREENETE
*MWE%%%?H&&$%& BB -
EEERRBCRRUERERTREEAR
MRZHTHEL  ATEREARBNEZEXE
R BF TSRS IE R TR R &

+
T

BLEREMREIHGRRIBRE
CRAIAEEAETBERaNELERME
BHEBELMEBREZNEEMTA

B¢ ot
m

BUBRRAEEASEFEMNSER MA
BEARERIABUNZEREBNZESNT
AEFIRERARETINEH -

HELERIVNANKTTAREARER
KA BRIBERR -

(FEIBEREE(ER))NBEMSHE - 2
BAERLREATREHANEERBLERE
CEERREBELNATIHEERNTZE
FEERTHEM -

WARBITEEREBEEEZEEBOBEM
BE RMERNEEERTVESASREE

XETRELTELEEBRA -

Huifu Payment Limited SCRAf X F B R 27 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 #§

71



Bl REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

72

EEgRE

For further details, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors
— Risks relating to Our Contractual Arrangements” of the
Prospectus.

The management of the Company works closely with the external
legal counsels and advisors to monitor the regulatory environment
and developments in PRC laws and regulations to mitigate the risks
associated with the Contractual Arrangements. Besides, the Company
has adopted the following measures to ensure the effective
operation of the Group with the implementation of the Contractual

Arrangements and the compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements:
o major issues arising from the implementation and compliance

with the Contractual Arrangements or any regulatory enquiries
from government authorities will be submitted to the Board, if
necessary, for review and discussion on an occurrence basis;

o the Board will review the overall performance of and compliance
with the Contractual Arrangements at least once a year;

o the Company will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in annual
reports; and

o the Company will engage external legal advisors or other
professional advisors, if necessary, to assist the Board with
reviewing the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements, and review the legal compliance of the WFOE
and the Operating Entities to deal with specific issues or
matters arising from the Contractual Arrangements.

Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the Stock
Exchange

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules as certain parties to the Contractual Arrangements,
namely the Mr. ZHOU Ye and Ms. MU Haijie (the Directors) and Mr.
LIU Gang (a director of a subsidiary of the Company), are connected
persons of the Company.
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In respect of the Contractual Arrangements, the Company has
applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rules 14A.04 and 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) the
requirement of setting an annual cap for the transaction under the
Contractual Arrangements under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
subject to the following conditions:

(a)

No change to the Contractual Arrangements (including with
respect to any fees payable to the WFOE thereunder) will be
made without the approval of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Save as described in paragraph (d) below, no change to the
agreements governing the Contractual Arrangements will be
made without the independent Shareholders’ approval.

The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable the
Group to receive the economic benefits derived by the
Operating Entities through (i) the Group’s option (if and when
so allowed under the applicable PRC laws) to acquire all or
part of the entire equity interests and assets at a consideration
which shall be the higher of (A) a nominal price or (B) the
lowest price as permitted and applicable under PRC laws, (ii)
the business structure under which the profit generated by the
Operating Entities is retained by the Group (after deduction of
any accumulated deficit of the Operating Entities in the
preceding financial year(s), working capital, expenses, taxes and
other statutory contributions), such that no annual cap shall be
set on the amount of service fees payable to the WFOE by the
Operating Entities under the Exclusive Business Cooperation
Agreement, and (iii) the Group’s right to control the
management and operation of, as well as the substance of, all
of the voting rights of the Operating Entities.

On the basis that the Contractual Arrangements provide an
acceptable framework for the relationship between the
Company and its subsidiaries in which the Company has a
direct shareholding, on the one hand, and the Operating
Entities, on the other hand, that framework may be renewed
and/or reproduced upon the expiry of the existing
arrangements or in relation to any existing or new wholly
foreign-owned enterprise or operating company (including
branch company) engaging in the same business as that of the
Group which the Group might wish to establish when justified
by business expediency, without obtaining the approval of the
Shareholders, on substantially the same terms and conditions
as the existing Contractual Arrangements.
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(e)  The Company will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.

Annual Review by the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have
Contractual Arrangements and confirmed that:

reviewed the

(@)  the transactions carried out during the Relevant Period had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Contractual Arrangements;

(b)  no dividends or other distributions had been made by the
Operating Entities to the holders of its equity interests which
were not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the
Group;

(c) no new contracts had been entered into, renewed and/or
reproduced between the Group and the Operating Entities
during the Relevant Period; and

(d)  the Contractual Arrangements had been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, are on
normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in
the interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board (with a copy to
the Stock Exchange) confirming that the transactions carried out
pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements during the Relevant
Period had received the approval of the Directors, had been entered
into in accordance with the relevant Contractual Arrangements, and
that no dividends or other distributions had been made by the
Operating Entities to the holders of its equity interests which were
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

TAX ALLOWANCES

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances granted
to the Shareholders due to their interests in its securities.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements
could lead to the termination of operating licenses. The Group has
allocated system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance
with rules and regulations and to maintain good relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group has complied, to the best of its
knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Financial Risks

The Group's principal business activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
and currency risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and risk
mitigation measures are elaborated in note 39 “Financial Risk
Management Objectives and Policies” to the financial statements of
this annual report.

Risks in our business

1. Uncertainties arising from changes in the
competitive landscape

The Group is currently running its business in a competitive
market with rapid evolvement of industry structure, customers’
demand as well as product and service content. Some
competitors in such market may have more abundant capital
and resources, a wider customer base and more aggressive
pricing strategies. Therefore, if the Group fails to effectively
cope with competition, our business development and financial
position may be adversely affected. In this connection, the
Group will take more proactive steps to cope with competition
and adopt proactive and effective competitive strategies in
response to changes in the market from time to time, so that
the impacts brought by the relevant risks can be mitigated.
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Uncertainties in the collaboration with third-party
infrastructures such as UnionPay and NetsUnion

The Group’s business relies on the technology, service and
infrastructure support provided by China UnionPay, NetsUnion,
issuing banks and telecommunication operators. The Group is
not in a position to assess and control the effectiveness of the
relevant services provided by these parties. In this connection,
the Group will communicate with the aforementioned parties
in a timely manner while taking sufficient contingency
measures on our technology solutions and customer services.
Meanwhile, we will take responsive actions before any change
in the relevant policies of NetsUnion so as to reduce possible
risks of loss.

Uncertainties in the collaboration with channel
partners such as I1SO and SaaS

The development of most of the Group’s customers hinges on
such channel partners as ISO and SaaS. However, the existing
collaborations are not exclusive. More resources will need to be
devoted if important partners are lost due to various reasons.
Moreover, if the Group is unable to implement effective
monitoring and management over the appropriateness of the
promotion services of channel partners, our risk control and
reputation may be adversely affected. In this connection, the
Group will enhance our effective monitoring and management
with various channel parties and devise a risk response plan,
with a view to reducing the adverse impact brought by risks
such as the loss of customers due to the aforementioned
circumstances.
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IV. Uncertainties arising from the technological

advancement in the industry

There is a need for the Group to keep abreast of innovative
technologies such as mobile internet, big data, artificial
intelligence, cloud «calculation and 5G for its business
development. Application of new technology may incur a
considerable amount of costs and time. There is no assurance
that innovative products and technology development are to
create commercial value. Failure to effectively respond to
market demand and technology development may cause
adverse impacts on the business prospects of the Group. In
this connection, the Group will continue to enhance the
investment-output ratio in technological research and
development and proactively initiate strategic cooperation with
industry-leading enterprises, with a view to mitigating the risks
and impacts of underlying uncertainties.

V. Uncertainties arising from changes in the
regulatory environment

The regulatory framework governing the Group’s business
include such aspects as payment settlement, foreign exchange
remittance, anti-fraud, anti-money laundering and commercial
factoring. Any change in the relevant regulations may lead to
an increase in compliance cost. If the Group fails to comply
with applicable rules and regulations, it may be liable to
different kinds of punishments. In this connection, the Group
will continue to enhance its effort in compliance by giving
response to and implementing regulatory requirements in a
timely manner and enhancing the standards on compliance
management, with a view to mitigating possible risks and
impacts.

Fraud risks

Fraudulent transactions may pose severe challenges to the risk
management capabilities of the Group. Failure to identify fraudulent
transactions and effectively manage relevant risk may cause adverse
impacts on the Group's business, financial position and results of
operation, or lead to regulatory restrictions and penalties. The Group
has established and implemented an effective risk management
system characterized by the principle of “One Center + Three
Mechanisms”. This data-centric technology-driven system
continuously enhances risk management capabilities. It helps the
Group reduce or avoid the adverse impacts on its business, financial
position and results of operation or the consequential regulatory
restrictions and penalties due to fraudulent transactions by effectively
identifying fraud risks.
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Anti-money laundering risks

The Group is subject to the laws and regulations on anti-money
laundering. These laws and regulations require the Group to
establish sound internal control policies and procedures with respect
to anti-money laundering monitoring and reporting obligations. The
anti-money laundering policies and procedures the Group has
adopted may not be effective in protecting its services from being
exploited for money laundering purposes. Failure to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations or the exploitation of the payment
services of the Group by law-breakers who engage in money
laundering activities will subject the Group to fines or other penalties
levied by regulators, which may negatively affect its results of
operations. In this connection, subject to anti-money laundering laws
and regulations, the Group monitors its risk exposure arising from
money laundering in its daily operation by formulating policies for
and operational flows in money laundering, establishing a monitoring
system on money laundering risks and maintaining an anti-money
laundering taskforce in order to mitigate risks.

Information risks

The Group is subject to increasingly stringent laws and regulations
on information security. In this connection, the Group has
incorporated information security risks into the scope of the risk
management committee and established specialized organizations
and departments for liaison with regulators, to study and interpret
regulatory requirements in a timely manner as well as actively
implement various safety regulations and regulatory requirements
within the Group. The Group has established a sound information
security management and technical protection system that undergoes
constant inspection, optimization and improvement, so as to
effectively reduce the risk regarding information security compliance.

Malfunctions of our technology systems, errors in software,
hardware, and systems, or human errors in operating these systems
could disrupt and jeopardize the Group’s businesses. In this
connection, the Group has a comprehensive set of R&D and
management processes in place for its system to ensure the
continuity of its operation. The Group continuously increases the
investment in technical development, such as adding advanced
equipment and recruiting outstanding talents, in order to enhance
the capability of information technology development.
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If the Group fails to protect transaction information and data from
continually evolving cybersecurity risks, its reputation could be
tarnished, or the Group may be liable to penalties, liabilities and
legal claims. In this connection, the Group has set up a department
designated to enact various information security management
measures. Based on the comprehensive assessment of internal and
external security risks and with a deep understanding of the
development trend of the security industry, the Group collaborates
with first-tier security service providers to build a security system that
can cope with various risk events on the foundation of its security
capability. Through the construction of high-quality internal and
external safety operation mechanisms (including evaluation and
verification, auditing and controls, emergency response and others),
the Group can comprehensively and efficiently manage various
security risks and avoid any unexpected security incidents that could
tarnished its reputation.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

With an environmentally responsible attitude, the Group strictly
abides by the laws and regulations on environmental protection. The
Group promotes green office policies, advocates environmental
protection and energy conservation awareness through effective
control measures, and encourages employees to travel with low
carbon footprint. The Group uses environmentally friendly materials
for office renovations, and pays close attention to the use of
resources such as electricity and water during its operations to
minimize the production of domestic sewage and manage solid
wastes in compliance with relevant laws and regulations, hence
improving energy utilization and conservation as well as reducing
emissions.

For a specific introduction and details of the Group’s environmental
and social policies and performances, please refer to the annual
environmental, social and governance report of the Group, which will
be uploaded to the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company within three months after the publication of this annual
report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group acknowledges the importance of stakeholders to
corporate development and always pays attention to matters of
concern to stakeholders including the government and regulators,
shareholders and investors, employees, business partners, customers
and the community. The Group maintains transparent and bilateral
exchange, strengthens mutual trust and cooperation and establishes
harmonious relationship with its stakeholders.

The Group has always treated compliance with laws and regulations
as a basic requirement for operations, and maintains good
communication with the government and regulatory agencies
through voluntary reporting, cooperating with reviews and
investigations, and recommending industry standard improvement.
The Group treats the realization of the interests of Shareholders and
investors as an important business objective, establishes
communication channels such as shareholder meetings and timely
announcements, and delivers sound financial performance to
Shareholders and investors. The Group regards employees as valuable
assets, motivates employees with a competitive salary and
transparent promotion mechanism, and provides them with a fair
working environment. The Group also supports their career
development skills with various forms of training support. The Group
is engaged in regular visits, communication and industry exchange
with its business partners, and maintains real-time interaction in daily
operations with them in order to develop long-term and stable
cooperation. The Group innovates to meet customers’ needs and is
committed to providing customers with high-quality and reliable
services. The Group provides various online and offline channels to
enable timely and accurate communication with customers, assisting
them in their long-term development. The Group also maintains a
sound communication mechanism with the community, develops
innovative models, strengthens school-enterprise cooperation,
conducts public welfare activities, and promotes the stable
development of the community.

For a specific introduction and details of the Group’s relationship
with stakeholders, please refer to the annual environmental, social
and governance report of the Group, which will be uploaded to the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company within three
months after the publication of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Huifu Payment Limited
ZHOU Ye

Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
26 March 2019
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the Relevant Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity in
all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and operations are
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and to
enhance the transparency and accountability of the Board to all
Shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has been in compliance with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Relevant
Period.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and

performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to the management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place. The Board has delegated
to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Delegation of Management Function

The major powers and functions of the Board include, but are not
limited to, convening the general meetings, reporting its work at the
general meetings, implementing the resolutions passed at the
general meetings, considering and approving the operating plans and
investment plans of the Company, formulating the Company’s
strategic development plans, formulating annual financial budgets
and final accounts plans, formulating profit distribution plans and
plans on making up losses, and exercising other powers and
functions as conferred by the Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and advices from the joint company secretaries and senior
management of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board is responsible for making decision with respect to the
strategic plans, major investment decisions and other significant
operational matters of the Company, while responsibilities with
respect to the implementation of the decisions of the Board, day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. A list of members of the
Board, their positions and dates of appointment, and each Director’s
biography have been set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management”.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, there is
no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) between the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and performed by
different individuals.

Up to the date of this annual report, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company were not separated and Mr. ZHOU
Ye currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Relevant Period, the Company has three independent
non-executive Directors in compliance with the Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors accounts for one third of the number of the
Board members.

According to the Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have made confirmations to the Company
regarding their independence during the Relevant Period. Based on
the confirmations of the independent non-executive Directors, the
Company considers each of them to be independent during the
Relevant Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service contract
with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as
executive Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from
the Listing Date or until the third annual general meeting of the
Company since the Listing Date (whichever ends earlier). Either party
has the right to give not less than three months’ written notice to
terminate the agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter on 20 May 2018 with the Company with an initial term for
three years or until the third annual general meeting of the
Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, subject to
re-election as and when required under the Memorandum and
Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party
giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company on 20 May 2018 with an
initial term for three years or until the third annual general meeting
of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier,
subject to re-election as and when required under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party
giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. Any director appointed as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office.
Accordingly, Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU Haijie and Mr. ZHOU Joe will
retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for the Directors to conduct securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Relevant Period.
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Training and Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Each newly appointed director shall be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and changes in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The joint company secretaries of the Company have from
time to time updated and provided written training materials relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

During the Relevant Period, all Directors attended the training on the
continuing obligations of a Hong Kong listed company and its
director given by its Hong Kong legal advisors. Mr. JIN Yuan also
read materials relating to the best practices of performing the duties
of company secretary.

Liability Insurance of Directors and Senior
Management

The Company has purchased insurances for all Directors and
members of the senior management to minimize risks that may be
incurred in their normal performance of responsibilities.

Directors’ Responsibility on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2018.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.
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Board Meetings and General Meeting

During the Relevant Period, the Company held two Board meetings
in total. As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in June
2018, the Company did not hold any general meetings during the
Relevant Period. The Company will fully comply with the requirement
under the code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code to convene Board
meetings at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals.

The attendance of the above meetings by each Director is as
follows:

Name of Directors

EEgEERRKRRAE

PNIERMME ARRARBITTRMAESESH -
MR AR ER2018F6 B XM L - ARAL
ERARBHRTEARRAE - ARAK2AE
ETOEEATAEALGNEE 8FELF
FRIOAEEEEH ANBFE—R-

BEFhFELAERZBAMT

No. of Board
Meetings Attended

During the Tenure Attendance Rate

EEHBHE
EEnE EEEERNRE HE=E
Mr. ZHOU Ye A B 2 100%
Ms. MU Haijie Bg2z+ 2 100%
Mr. JIN Yuan SREE 2 100%
Mr. CHYE Chia Chow BES LA 2 100%
Mr. ZHOU Joe ZHOU Joe %t & 2 100%
Mr. CHEN Zhongjue BR R 5 A 2 100%
Mr. LIU Jun B& S £ 2 100%
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlERLE 2 100%
Ms. ZHANG Qi R 2+ 2 100%

Notices for all regular Board meetings and the agendas and
accompanying Board papers will be given to all Directors at least
three days before the meetings in order that they have sufficient
time to review the papers. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors or Board
committee members for information and records. Directors who have
conflicts of interest in a board resolution have abstained from voting
for that resolution.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors/Board committee
members. Draft and final versions of the minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors/
Board committee members for comments and records respectively
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
Directors. All Directors shall obtain information related to the Board
resolutions in a comprehensive and timely manner. Any Director can
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense after
making reasonable request to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Hengzhong, Mr. LIU Jun and Ms.
ZHANG Qi. Mr. WANG Hengzhong, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

o to propose the appointment or dismissal of the external auditor
of the Company, and approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

o to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and relevant reporting obligations and to facilitate
communications and monitor the relationship between the
internal audit department and the external accounting firm;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
reporting judgments contained therein;

o to review the Company's financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems, discuss the risk management and
internal control systems with the senior management;

o to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory
documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of
the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as
authorized by the Board.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee held one meeting,
at which the Company’s interim results for 2018 and the relevant
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group were
reviewed and discussed with the external auditors.
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Code provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code provides that the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee shall have the terms that the
members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board and
senior management and the Audit Committee must meet at least
twice a year with the auditor. The Company has included such terms
in relevant terms of reference, and thus complied with the Code
provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code since the Company’s listing. The
Audit Committee only held one meeting with the auditor during the
Relevant Period. The Audit Committee will fully comply with its
terms of reference.

The attendance of the meetings by each member is as follows:

REBECEEARATHECIINENRTE Bt E
BEenBRaEREEREtZReNBHESS
el ERBRFBE REFZEQELEASSF
ELREZEMEEMR - AR A C K& FIHRKN
AHBBESRE AEA2RALTR-ENAD
EEIATREC3.3()0)F - NAARIHIRE - FHEZ B
SERZBMBITT AR -FETZEEHKE
BT LR E -

EREMBEEZENBRAT

No. of Meetings

Attended
Name of Members During the Tenure Attendance Rate
REME THRAEEEBAREHE HE R
Mr. LIU Jun EkE 1 100%
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlEARELE 1 100%
Ms. ZHANG Qi REZ T 1 100%
Remuneration Committee FMEES

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. ZHANG Qi, Mr.
WANG Hengzhong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. ZHOU
Ye. Ms. ZHANG Qi currently serves as the chairwoman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
remuneration policy and structure for the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

o to review the remuneration of individual executive Directors,
senior management and non-executive Directors;

o to review the Company’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and senior management; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory
documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of
the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as
authorized by the Board.

Huifu Payment Limited SC KX F AR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #%

AABEKRIHMERE  WBT EMRANFE325
GREXREATRMER LT EEMBELE -
WEZEeREMBBEULIFNTES (ARALLR
FTEREE)UNE-—BHTEF(AIFELE) - K
HZTHRHFMEEEERE -

FHZEEMEIERER:

. REERARAASMEEBZHMBRME
B AR BERGMBEREL LRBERAZE
FRESEEFELEZH:

e BRHERNATEE SAETEERENTE
FHW

. RHBERAAF
%R

RREEERHEMASR

. ERECERC BEEXMH BOLWESE
BEERBNRINEERERRALER
MAKRE MREFSRENEMBER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting, at which the remuneration plan of the independent non-
executive Directors was reviewed.

The attendance of the meetings by each member is as follows:

RBEHE FMEZEERTT -—REH 8L

$A A TEIIEBT %%E’J%Mﬁx °

EXRBHEEZNBRET

No. of Meetings

Attended
Name of Members During the Tenure Attendance Rate
REHE EHAHEESERE =
Ms. ZHANG Qi RE 2+ 1 100%
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlEALE 1 100%
Mr. ZHOU Ye JE EE S A 1 100%

Pursuant to the code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the following table sets
forth the remuneration of the Directors and members of senior
management (excluding equity-settled share option expense)
categorized by remuneration group for the year ended 31 December
2018:

Group (Note) Remuneration (RMB)

TRH EH=E2018
MNEZ KSR
SRR )

RIEMEEATAISER.1.5F
FNRANALEFEZEHMARNE S
EHEEXEBHFH (TEEAERESE

Number of Individuals

4 B (B =) (AR AE

1 0-500,000 6

2 1,000,001-2,000,000 5
Note: B 5

Group 1 includes 6 Directors.

Group 2 includes 3 Directors and 2 members of senior management of the Company.

Further details of the Directors’ emoluments and the top five highest
paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Jun, Ms. ZHANG Qi and one
executive Director, namely Mr. ZHOU Ye. Mr. ZHOU Ye currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are:

o to formulate procedures and standards for the election of
Directors and senior management, and make recommendations
to the Board on the proposed procedures and standards;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession plans for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
J to preliminarily examine the eligibility of candidates for

directorship;

o to recommend to the Board concerning the membership of the
Company’s audit and remuneration committees, in
consultation with the chairmen of those committees; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory
documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of
the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as
authorized by the Board.

During the Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, at which the Nomination Policy of the Company and the
Board Diversity Policy were reviewed and recommendations was
made to the Board.

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting any
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the following criteria, including, among other things,
character and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any
potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms
of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).
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The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

The attendance of the meeting by each member is as follows:

REZEGN REFENRINEHREHES
MERLEEANBEEEHS (LHRBFB R &
Rig LB EFEZIREAN  AEEZREAR
REERMELTES - H& TE%%E\‘%JE@
FERBARANTEREBREANERH

RIE A BE2 A (1 ﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁz,\\\@f‘ﬁlllﬁféﬁ ﬁ?-?
MIREAETES -

EXRBHEEZNBRET

No. of Meetings

Attended
Name of Members During the Tenure Attendance Rate
REH R EEHBEEERAY =
Mr. LIU Jun 2L % 1 100%
Ms. ZHANG Qi SR 2+ 1 100%
Mr. ZHOU Ye [ B S A 1 100%
The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. In designing the ZEFECEHRMEFEXEZ LK -RFlTE

Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee has considered
Board diversity from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The company considers the Board possesses a good gender diversity
with two women on the Board. It also believes the Board has a well-
balanced cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience where members of the Board
have diversified branch of learning and working experience in
different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors which include:

o to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;
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o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, has been engaged by the Company as a joint
company secretary of the Company, and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that Board
policy and procedures, and applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Mr. JIN Yuan, an executive Director and a joint company secretary of
the Company, is the primary contact person of Ms. So at the
Company.

During the Relevant Period, the joint company secretaries of the
Company, Mr. JIN Yuan and Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, actively
participated in studies and updated their professional knowledge
related to the Listing Rules and corporate governance to
continuously improve their professional skills as company secretaries.
They had complied with the requirements on taking no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Financial statements contained in this report have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Service fees which shall be paid by the Company to
Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB2,588,000 (value added tax and other related tax excluded).

Service rendered
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STENEBAT MRS B A A AR 2,588,0007T
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Fees Payable (RMB)

Fir 12 4t R 75 ENERA(ARY)

Audit service FEHR 2,400,000

Non-audit serviceshot EEF R 188,000

Total FSEy 2,588,000
Note: Non-audit services primarily comprise advisory services. B RBHBEIET0ERARS -
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 98 to 104.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company is committed to establishing high level risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s interests and shareholders’ investment. The Company has
established robust, comprehensive and technology-driven risk
management to effectively manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
business to protect the Company, its clients and partners, as well as
to meet regulatory obligations. The Board assumes the ultimate
responsibility for the Company’s risk management, internal control
and compliance.

Risk Management

The Company’s risk management activities are undertaken and
monitored by a risk management committee and supplemented by

risk management department, legal department, compliance
department, internal audit department and other business
departments. The Company’s risk management committee is

responsible for identifying, controlling and preventing major risks
across our organization, as well as promulgating and ensuring
compliance with risk management policies. The Company’s
compliance department and risk management department, as well as
legal department and internal audit department have expertise in
legal and regulatory, finance and internal audits to oversee its daily
risk management activities.

The Company has established its principal business flow and adopted
various risk management procedures as the guidelines for its
business. Meanwhile, to establish and maintain a comprehensive and
effective risk management and internal control system, the Company
persistently maintains the independence of its risk management and
internal audit sector, and exercise ex-ante, concurrent and ex-post
control over and prevention against risks according to the
fundamental procedure of our business. In order to provide timely
and effective response to the occurrence of risks such as complaints
lodged by merchants, assistance in external investigations and
contingencies, the Company has set up a contingency response
system comprising the risk management department, the operation
center, the business unit, the information center, the corporate
relations department and the compliance and legal affairs
department, in order to ensure the occurrence of risks are
immediately responded and dealt with, reduce the escalation of risk
events and losses of investors due to a delay in tackling the risks as
well as cooperate with the relevant authorities which investigate into
and deal with risk events.
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The scope of risk management and internal audit covers all
businesses, departments and staff of the Company. Led by the risk
management department, all business units will prepare a manual on
departmental business risk for all significant and core businesses and
conduct self-assessment and recognition on an annual basis to
ensure that the Company’s risk management is effective in all of our
business sections, including decision making, execution, supervision
and feedback. Moreover, with a risk-driven approach and taking into
account the probability of risk occurrence and the level of its
impacts, the Company’s internal audit department assesses the
appropriateness, effectiveness and accuracy of the Company’s
significant business activities, principal financial procedures and
internal control procedure and system on a regular basis. If any
material flaw in our internal processes or defect in our governing
systems, the internal audit team shall, after thorough discussion with
the management, continuously supervise and urge the management
to implement corrective measures, while encouraging all parties
concerned to revise and improve the rules and regulations, so as to
provide a valid and reasonable guarantee that the Company’s
business activities, key processes and control systems are
continuously effective.

control

The Company’'s risk management and internal

comprises three lines of defense:

system

First Line of Defense

The Company’s business units play the role of first line of defense by
assessing, identifying, managing, reporting and controlling risk. The
Company’s business units manage their business risk exposure while
conducting their business activities.

Second Line of Defense

The Company’s operation center and compliance and risk
management departments are the second line of defense. The
second line of defense is responsible for managing general and
specific risks.

Third Line of Defense

The Company’s internal audit department serves as the third line of
defense, which provides independent assurance regarding the key
risks to the organization, including an independent assessment of its
risk management committee and risk management departments.
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The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness and such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, which would review and consider relevant report made
by the risk management committee of the Company, reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls periodically and
considered such systems are effective and adequate.

Internal Control

The Company establishes an internal audit department with
corresponding supervision and audit responsibility. The major roles of
the internal audit department in respect of its auditing and internal
control are conducting internal audit and internal control on
business, operation and financial procedure of the Group, including
but not limited to business procedures such as sales, procurement,
expenditure, financial reporting, fixed assets, contract management,
human resources and remuneration, as well as investment and
financing, supervising the soundness and implementation of internal
control procedure and system, performing accountability auditing or
off-office auditing on the Company’s key responsible persons or
relevant staff involved in conflicts of interests, investigating into
significant suspected corruption or fraud cases, providing advisory
services and evaluation in respect of relevant matters in all economic
activities of the Company, as well as reporting the findings on all of
the abovementioned incidents to the Company’s senior management,
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Company has formulated an information disclosure policy
governing the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, in which the utilization of
confidential or inside information for securities dealing is strictly
forbidden. An information disclosure working group is established to
monitor and evaluate the risks of leakage of inside information, and
to handle and disseminate inside information as appropriate in
accordance to the information disclosure policy.

In 2018, the Company conducted a review on its risk management
and internal control system. The method, findings, analysis and
results of the evaluation have been reported to the risk management
committee and the Board.

The Board discussed and considered the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and was of the opinion that
the risk management and internal control system of the Company
was adequate and effective.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
General Meetings and Shareholders’ Rights

The Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual
general meeting in addition to any other meetings in that year and
shall specify the meetings as such in the notices calling them. The
extraordinary general meetings are convened irregularly. In
accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened either by the Board
or on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or any one of the joint company secretaries for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There are no provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association or in the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholder(s) who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
For proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Person for Election as a
Director” posted on the Company’s website.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company makes up-to-
date information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information available in the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.huifu.com)
for public access.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum and an
important channel for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent
Board committee, are available normally at the annual general
meetings and other relevant shareholder meetings to answer
questions. Shareholders are also encouraged to attend general
meetings held by the Company and are invited to express their views
and raise questions thereat.

Shareholders should direct their inquiries about their shareholdings
to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Investors may also
write to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong
or China for any enquiries.

The Company sets out the following contact details for Shareholders
to communicated with the Company:

Mailing address: Building C5, No. 700 Yishan Road, Shanghai, China
Telephone number: 86-21-33323999
E-mail address: ir@huifu.com

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

There had been no changes in constitutional documents of the
Company during the Relevant Period.
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Huifu Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huifu
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 105 to 236, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (”IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HRETEE

Provision for receivable on behalf of clients

176 5 5 & W 19 55 35 A9 )80 (B8

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of receivable on behalf of
clients amounted to RMB5,610 million and the provision for
impairment amounted to RMB240 million. The estimated amount of
expected credit losses on receivable on behalf of clients involves
management’s significant judgement and estimation, such as the
existence of disputes, historical payment record, forward-looking
factors and any other available information that may impact the
estimated amount of expected credit losses. Therefore, we identified
it as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures of receivable on behalf of
clients are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

M2018F12A318 - RRBFEKRM KB AARES 6108 BT KR
BEREEAARBUEET REFEFEUMAIEMEBHEHEXLX
A SESIRERENERHE MG IR EE4S B
it FIEEERTEYEEREABANGTSENERNE
A EER At EER 2 RBRETEIE -

REEPEVRNFIBZ G BRI BEEHRN G B RRME25 -
3824 -

FAEEFTEE

HREBEAFEIREESNEEHE E5FYH
AMFEAMBHRERNEABETNRAERER -
ZEFREESHRAMBRIETE Rt
FREAREREREREE BEEZYEAZES
HRHEBER TXHABEHEEENERANM
BEEBZFEBERNAR -

EECRTTABRSEKHUMAFN AL BEHREXR
FRENEF—HRAATIRZEEENEE -
At EENBABREATREHEEHEAN
BRERERERRARBRT (A RANEF-F
ENEMEF(ERARY TREAMAITHNE
FINGERRESHMES M BRRNBFER
R TRE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBHNMNEERRENSE

We checked the accuracy of the ageing and
assessed the appropriateness of assumptions used,
including the existence of disputes, historical
payment record, historical credit loss experience
and forward-looking factors. We obtained and re-
tested the historical observed default rates
prepared by management.

In assessing the overall provision for impairment,
we considered the consistency of management’s
application of the policy for recognising provisions
with that of the prior year. We also assessed the
adequacy of the Group's disclosures in the
financial statements.

EERERRETERMIGHAARKESAHE
BREEGAMYD BENKTH BAEFREX
BREAERER BHMANGEREIAEERESE
MBEBEMBENER -

AEERRERAR ESEEEEERARE
UHEREFRE-FEN—HEE - BFHF
i BEEERUBRROBBELLSEH -
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Key audit matter

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBHNMNEEREENSE

Fair value measurement of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

KR4 BETELAA RGN BEEZ NAEEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately RMB243 million.

The fair values of these financial assets were either within level 2 or
level 3. Therefore, the adoption of the applicable valuation
methodology and the application of appropriate assumptions in the
valuation requires significant management judgements and estimates.
Therefore, we identified it as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are included in notes 2.5, 18 and 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

M2018%12A318H  EEEUR
EAHANRB2U3EE T

REEFEIFABRZNSRE

ZECRMEEN A BEBE2RAEIN - Al - KAEREER
EERREETPEREERRFTEEAETEBHERGERS - B
I & —rﬁZﬁEﬁﬁE%ﬁ%lﬁ °

NABEFELFABENS
B SR R B 7£2.5 - 18538 °

REEZSHBRERBEBEINGS

Employee stock ownership plans
BT HFREE

The Group operates several employee stock ownership plans for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The share-
based compensation costs recognised during the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to RMB71 million.

The accounting policies and disclosures of employee stock ownership
plans are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

0

S EBRKEZEB I HBTEURUAECELEEEGATEE NS
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We obtained the agreements on these financial
assets and analysed their terms. We involved our
internal valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and
assumptions used.

We evaluated the key assumptions including
discount rates, marketability interest information as
well as the underlying supporting documentation
and unobservable factors, such as comparable
company multiples, credit spread, risk-free rate and
liquidity spread.

EEMARSSMEENBARH M HIEHK - B
% 450K PO A5 8 W R AT A5 1 R R P B R
nAE-

EZHABEERR BRMEX mHEHEEBR
REEMERERAXHXELTIBEERE (WA A
EBRAREH FEEZ ERRAIXRAHE
TEE) -

We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external valuer
and assessed the assumptions, methodologies and
parameters adopted in the valuation with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e %TE%ET%FHT%@%&%@E‘f’%%ﬁ’]‘ﬁ%‘lﬁf’ﬁﬂj

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit W WIREBAGHNENEE RERER
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists Eﬁi%f—?‘ﬁzl REBRONERTHEN - A
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt Y BEEBEBELCEMNENERNERRE
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we B-MREZFRR/BIFEERNTEEN - AIE
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to VEEZBENRE RGBT GEE M B oK
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related ‘:F‘ WEBREER & ++ﬁ§§?ﬁ&§§ﬂT
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such CABETESHER © VEEREER
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our %zi’fy%(ﬁﬂi?ﬁiﬁtﬁﬁﬂl E’J%.ﬁ"fa’i o A
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to i RREBEHIBERATGEER EEE TR
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or HEREKE -

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o EHREMBMRNEREI WA AR
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, W’* PREEREER L/USZNT\AE#?P’{ e
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent EARNRMEBLZS REIE-

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o Bt ﬁ lE%‘X%W%@bE’JWﬁ%QM%W

financial information of the entities or business activities within D E’J%u‘l"f o OUNEESRE B mRE
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial ?’Y‘i’% ﬁ BERE EERNTEE
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision Bito & ”’T%pﬂ‘ ReHas-

and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other BHHEBEHEZES/ERAEIETEHE  BHELHE -
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant FAEHREEH  BETSNEAHEH7
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 3 E83% HI &9 (T fa] & K ERBG o

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have EENABITZECRXRER HAZTEDHTE
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence B EB I ABEEES I‘Eﬁ\f&ﬁ’/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ-ﬁ
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters ABRMERACFEEEBIMNBELEMSE
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and T8 - A & (fi¥ i A7) fE BB A0 B #0557 -

where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF PROFIT OR LO35 AND OTHER COMPREH

ﬁ/T\I/:u\ E’\

Hitt 2 HE W= &R

Year ended 31 December 2018 # Z2018F12A31H Lt F &

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E ARE T AR T
Revenue N 5 3,246,493 1,726,256
Cost of sales EizR=PD %N (2,357,014) (1,159,234)
GROSS PROFIT EF 889,479 567,022
Other income and gains H U A R W g 5 32,513 63,055
Finance income B 75 W A 33,355 61,633
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAX (132,541) (94,978)
Administrative expenses TR X (294,078) (215,853)
Research and development expenses 255 52 (231,704) (130,780)
Other expenses H & 7 (91,467) (65,289)
Finance costs Bh & A AN 8 (24,451) (22,285)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FEAE S & N RIS (518) 17 3,051 (7,129)
Net gains on financial assets at fair LAAREEFELEA
value through profit or loss BamesmiEERzFE 4,410 —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A1 R E 6 188,567 155,396
Income tax expense Fr {5 8t i 2 11 (14,001) (22,570)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERE 174,566 132,826
Attributable to: T & 7 EA -
Owners of the parent NEEA A 176,065 138,239
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE (1,499) (5,413)
174,566 132,826
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BAREEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 8B A1 13
Basic BN
— For profit for the year — NFE A E RMB A K #0.16T N/AA i
Diluted 51
— For profit for the year — KEEHH RMB A K #0.167T N/AZ 3 A3
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e Bm kEM 2K S

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12A31H Lt F &

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 174,566 132,826
Other comprehensive income that may M H & HIR AT E 37
be reclassified to profit or loss in NEEEE B
subsequent periods: 2 HE K
Exchange differences on translation of HBEFINEBZER 5
foreign operations 68,215 —
Net other comprehensive income HEMBTREESHN
that may be reclassified to profit PEEEFZHM
or loss in subsequent periods ZHEHKEFE 68,215 —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MBRBIE 68,215 —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREZEKREAE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBRBi R 242,781 132,826
Attributable to: T & T e
Owners of the parent HRARIEB A 244,280 138,239
Non-controlling interests FE 2 A 7 (1,499) (5,413)
242,781 132,826
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIOL
e BB R R

31 December 2018 20184128318

31 December

128318
2018 2017
2018 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =% AR® T AREETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 14 864,716 836,113
Goodwill EES 15 — —
Other intangible assets Hih\E\EEE 16 33,830 38,459
Investments in associates H/\Hﬁ‘ﬁ%@ AMEE 17 24,641 354
Financial assets at fair value through LAAREEFELEA
profit or loss BEaNemEE 18 23,600 —
Available-for-sale investments AEfEERE = 11,800
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE E 20 8,250 1,836
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 955,037 888,562
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Available-for-sale investments L ERE 19 — 70,623
Inventories FE 21 392 2,172
Contract assets ERNEE 22 18,688 21,288
Factoring assets RIBEE 23 16,722 —
Due from management personnel ngﬁlﬁfi}ﬁ}\i%’f\lﬁ 36 = 332,618
Due from related companies JE s A Bt B SR8 36 59 334,938
Due from the then shareholder FEH&METHX?/TJ)’\IE 36 — 605
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE ke REAM
other receivables FE U 5k IR 24 5,438,750 2,944,975
Tax recoverable —Mﬂ@ﬁélﬁ 11,469 7,372
Financial assets at fair value through AR EEFELFA
profit or loss BEalemEE 18 219,410 —
Restricted cash ZRERE 25 1,610,657 3,216,167
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEFED 25 1,514,966 304,736
Total current assets MBEERE 8,831,113 7,235,494
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables 2 5 EN A 26 423,739 201,114
Contract liabilities EHaE 22 31,509 82,450
Other payables, deposits received Hib e RIE  BElZR S
and accruals N EtEA 27 6,619,474 6,202,314
Advances from customers EA N 28 3,165 5,180
Due to related companies JE < B B X R 3B 36 6,282 511,348
Interest-bearing bank loans ui’,mﬁiﬂﬁm 29 535,141 380,315
Tax payable JFE 409 i 3K 11 5 108
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 7,619,315 7,382,829
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Bl CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B BRI R

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E AR® Tt AREF T
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHE 1,211,798 (147,335)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBDAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,166,835 741,227
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 29 182,138 35,000
Deferred tax liabilities FERERIEEFE 20 1,102 —
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEHLEE 183,240 35,000
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,983,595 706,227
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRBIHEE ARN
of the parent s
Share capital N 30 101 —
Reserves i 32 1,979,243 704,968
1,979,344 704,968
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,251 1,259
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,983,595 706,227
Zhou Ye Jin Yuan
JE 2R
Director Director
o EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIT
GARRED R

Year ended 31 December 2018 #; Z£2018F12A31H It F[E

Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRAARES

Share  Statutory Non-
Share  Treasury Capital option surplus Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares* reserve® reserve® reserve* reserve® profits* Total interests equity

BEE AERH
Bx  E#EfH* EXfEfH R ARer AtEE RENRE Rit FRREE REAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARMTR ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR AREBTR ARET:R

Note 30 Note 32(a) Note 32(b)
K30 K 32(a) H &32(b)

As at 1 January 2018 201851 A1H - - 497,074 91,256 42,881 - 73,757 704,968 1,259 706,227
Issuance of new shares BFRA 101 — 1,369,568 - - - — 1,369,669 — 1,369,669
Total comprehensive income FR2ENE

for the year @5 o - o o - 68,215 176,065 244,280 (1,499) 242,781
Appropriations to statutory AREEERH

surplus reserve N ¥ = = = = 26,859 - (26,859) - - -
Shares repurchased and cancelled BB R R (7 = = (1,408) - - - - (1,408) - (1,408)
Shares repurchased but not yet BEERTH

cancelled & - (2,890) - - - - - (2,890) - (2,890)
Equity-settled share option NEREEH

arrangements BREZH = = = 70,800 = = = 70,800 = 70,800
Exercise of share options T ERE = - 70 (17) - - - 53 - 53
Dividends paid to the then IHFERRE

shareholder ZRE - - (404,716) = = = = (404,716) = (404,716)
Capital contribution from WEAREER

non-controlling shareholders REAE

of a subsidiary = = (1,412) = = = = (1,412) 4,491 3,079
As at 31 December 2018 #2018%12A318 101 (2,890) 1,459,176 162,039 69,740 68,215 222,963 1,979,344 4,251 1,983,595
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- CONSOLIDAIED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12A31H Lt F &

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEFAEE
Share Statutory Non-
Share Treasury Capital option surplus Other Retained controlling Total
capital shares* reserve® reserve® reserve* reserve® profits* Total interests equity
e
EERR

BA EBRG AAEE BRE- MRS EBRET RENE aFt FEREE  BE4E
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Note 30 Note 32(a) Note 32(b)
Hi3E30 H5E32(a) ME32(b)
As at 1 January 2017 #201751 718 - - 497,074 57,562 22,461 — (44,062) 533,035 6,672 539,707
Total comprehensive income FREENKE
for the year k] - - - - - — 138,239 138,239 (5413) 132,826
Appropriations to statutory PREEERH
surplus reserve N E — — — — 20,420 — (20,420) — — —
Equity-settled share option IEREEN
arrangements BRERH — - = 33,694 - = — 33,694 - 33,694
As at 31 December 2017 120174128318 - - 497,074 91,256 42,881 - 73,757 704,968 1,259 706,227
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZERBRELERAVBMRARAABARYE
RMB1,979,243,000 (2017: RMB704,968,000) in the consolidated statement of 1,979,243,0007T (20174 : A K #704,968,0007T) K 4% &
financial position. HAitb## -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-F I:I Iﬁ: é JJIL E %

Year ended 31 December 2018 # Z2018F12A31H Lt F &

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
4 ARE TR ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRESRKE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: 7 B 1) B 188,567 155,396
Adjustments for BUTEEM AR
Finance costs & YA 8 24,451 22,285
Share of (profits)/losses of associates FEAL B & AR (Was), B8 17 (3,051) 7,129
Finance income E\ﬁ%uﬂli\ (33,355) (61,633)
Investment income on financial TREEFERA
investments 5 (15,734) (29,094)
Loss on disposal of items of property, REWNE BEREEH
plant and equipment &1 6, 7 58,308 29,064
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR MR 5 = (204)
Gain on disposal of associates HERE QA& 5 — (1,533)
Depreciation of items of property, plant ME - BERZBEEENE
and equipment 6, 14 249,128 117,174
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hth B EEEH 6, 16 8,451 8,081
Impairment of contract assets EHEERIE 6, 7, 22 160 —
Impairment of factoring assets REEERME 6, 7, 23 84
Impairment of other receivables H At M B R (B 6,7, 24 17,784 31,637
Impairment of investments in associates REERRZKERE 6,7, 17 12,709 —
Equity-settled share-based expense NEREENRNFAX 6 70,800 33,694
Net gains on financial assets at fair A AR EEEL AR
value through profit or loss NemMEENFE (4,410 -
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,780 15,816
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHBERDY,/ (M) 2,440 (15,491)
Increase in factoring assets RIBEELZN (16,806) —
Decrease in amounts due from related JFE Uit B8 Bt B FRIERL
companies 1,033 13,554
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BARE - -ZeREM
other receivables & Y5 7R 1B L AN (2,514,250) (1,646,519)
Decrease in restricted cash SR HI3E /D 1,827,966 561,703
Increase in trade payables B 5 FIAE N 257,290 150,476
Decrease in contract liabilities AHEERD (50,941) —
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to iRl NGIE
related companies CR ),/ & m (13,377) 19,576
Increase in other payables, deposits HiERNFIE BlES
received and accruals K EFTIE B Z 661,122 1,350,787
Decrease in advances from customers BE B (2,015) (1,791)
Cash generated from operations BEEMBES 728,134 760,107
Interest received BB 33,546 61,943
Interest paid ERHE (18,718) (22,721)
Tax paid BRB® (23,513) (23,787)
Net cash flows from operating RETHRENREFHE
activities 719,449 775,542

Huifu Payment Limited LRI X FER 27 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % 111



A CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
melemngx

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12A31H Lt F &

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
Bt &= AR¥ETR ARBEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Investment income received BEWARETIE 16,357 28,471
Purchases of items of property, plant and B E % Jﬁﬁ%&‘“ﬁ
equipment BEE (617,463) (458,566)
Purchases of other intangible assets EEEMEREE (2,756) (10,573)
Investment in associates REZERAINIRE (30,494) (48,333)
Acquisition of financial investments W BERE (1,542,000) (2,184,435)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment BREM¥E  BFE k& & 405 691
Disposal of financial investments HEMBIRE 1,385,200 2,362,536
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR = (41)
Net cash flows used in investing RETHFMARSAREFE
activities (790,751) (310,250)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG PA1SFHIE 1,412,528 —
Exercise of share options 171 AR 53 -
Share issue expenses R&E D 2476 X2 (48,217) —
Dividends paid to the then shareholder S FHEERRE RS (404,716) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling KB 2 & 3F 1% Hxﬁx?&ﬁ
shareholders of a subsidiary 3,079 —
Advances to management personnel MEEABELNRER 36 — (221,061)
Repayment of advances to management EBRASEERN
personnel 36 332,618 20,000
Advances to related companies ) B 6 1 R 4E M B B3R 36 = (242,907)
Repayment of advances to related BEE A REREBN
companies 36 333,846 307,816
Repayment of advances to the then HERRERZRK
shareholder 36 605 —
Advances from related companies IR I/NEIEE 36 388,234 976,828
Repayment of advances from related EEEHLARREK
companies 36 (879,923) (837,250)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZREIR e LM, md (222,456) 11,098
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and 5T BB 7T R E b & 5
other borrowings FTi§ 50 1R 1,471,918 5,479,536
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BRET BT REMER
other borrowings (1,174,285) (5,830,569)
Payment on repurchase of shares AR ShENE (4,298) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) METBFAE/(FAES
financing activities REFHE 1,208,986 (336,509)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #; Z£2018F12A31H It F &

Year ended 31 December

BZE1R2A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
4 ARE TR ARET T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReREASEEMEMTEE
EQUIVALENTS 1,137,684 128,783
Cash and cash equivalents at FUBRERBEFEY
beginning of year 304,736 175,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREGHTEFE
changes, net 72,546 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERAERESEEY
END OF YEAR 1,514,966 304,736

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBESZBUEHIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances BeRRITEH 25 2,477,083 3,520,903
Non-pledged time deposits with original WAL R=EAW

maturity of less than three months EIRBTEHER

when acquired 25 648,540 —
Less: Restricted cash W R HIR S 25 (1,610,657) (3,216,167)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS REMERRRRBERER

STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED RS RREEEY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 1,514,966 304,736
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&l NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % ¥R 3k MY &E

31 December 2018 20184128318

RAEEH

AR R —RERSHSEMALHBERA
7] o AN A &) 7 i b ik & Cayman Corporate
Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands °
AR B R HR2018F6 A1SAE R B A R
SHAERAR ([BEBRF]) MR ET -

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered address of the Company is
Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on
15 June 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the

ARAB—RBREZBR AR -RAFE ]
A)

year, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved RAEAKAEBEMNNBERARSET TMEEE
in the following principal activities: % -

. Merchant payment business . FENE/

. Fintech enabling business . TRMERER

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries are as

EBEHEAAZER

ARTMEBHBATERMT :

follows:
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
establishment registered ARH
and business share capital EEEZE AL Principal
Name ML BRTEER/ Direct Indirect  activities
W RIREBHY ERIEYES E# MiE TEER
PnR Network Technology People’s Republic US$74,000,000 100% Investment
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* of China ("PRC")/ holding
Mainland China
BN BE R (L8 ARAR hEARAME 74,000,000% 7 REER
(Tm@E])/+ERH,
China PnR Co., Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB100,100,000 100%  Investment
holding
ERRTHRR A B/ E A AR #100,100,0007 REZK
Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100%  Third party
Service Co., Ltd.** payment
TEENHBEREER AR~ B/ E A AR #200,000,0007 E=h%f
Nanjing Dechen Information PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 54.62%  Technology
Technology Co., Ltd.*** development
ARERESRMARDR B/ E A A K #§500,0007T Tk
PnR JH Tech Co., Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China RMB7,500,000 54.62%  Technology
development
TEENBBHESRMBRAR B/ E A AR #7,500,0007C 1 B 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

R AEH (&)

EENMB QR &L (&)

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
establishment registered AN
and business share capital EEEZEAL Principal
Name TEMAL/ BRTEER/ Direct Indirect ~ activities
8 BIRERBY R RE H# MiE TEZEW
Shanghai Huihan Commercial Factoring ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Commercial
Co., Ltd.** factoring
FREREERBER AR RE/ R E R A #50,000,0007 mERE
Shanghai Yifu Cloud Information PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100%  Technology
Technology Co., Ltd.** development
LESREERRBRERD A RE/ R E R AR #5,000,0007C Bl b 2
Furen Network Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100%  Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.** development
BEBERK(LB)ERA A RE/ R E R AR #5,000,0007C Bl b 2
Huifu (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100% Investment
holding
Huifu (BVI) Limited RBREBRES 50,000% 1t REER
Huifu (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Investment
holding
Huifu (Hong Kong) Limited** e 10,0007 7T REZR

* PnR Network Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. is registered as a wholly- * TEAT A48 Bl (E08) AR A AR R B A & it
foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. RINEBERE-

*x These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and o ZERRAARANEZENBAR Bt AR
accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s A AV A R T 5 ERT B A RAER o
control over it.

**%*  These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the ko ZERNRRARRFZEMBARNNMELRF

Eit - BARFEEEREHED I EHERR
N X

Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of
the Company’s control over it.

MR EE TR AR EREEMORAE
SERRARNABHBARAEREERERA
LHWEFERSAANT XA -

The English names of all group companies registered in the
PRC represent the best efforts made by the management of
the Company to translate the Chinese names of these
companies as they do not have official English names.
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

21 EHNE%E
REFRBTEERER  INEQTTREE

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Under the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC,

companies with foreign ownership are prohibited from
merchant payment business and fintech enabling business
(collectively “Relevant Business”) in Mainland China. The Group
historically operated its Relevant Business in Mainland China
through China PnR Co., Ltd. (“China PnR"”) and its
subsidiaries.

A series of contractual agreements (the “China PnR Structured
Contracts”) was effectuated among China PnR, PnR Network
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“PnR Network”) and Mr.
ZHOU Ye, Mr. LIU Gang, Ms. MU Hai Jie, Mr. ZHANG Ge, Ms.
XU Zhuo Min and Ms. CHEN Yan (collectively, the “Registered
Shareholders”) who are the legal shareholders of China PnR.

The China PnR Structured Contracts provide the Group
through PnR Network with effective control over China PnR. In
particular, PnR Network undertakes to provide China PnR with
certain technical services as required to support their
operations. In return, PnR Network is entitled to substantially
all of the operating profits and residual benefits generated by
China PnR through intercompany charges levied on these
services rendered. The Registered Shareholders are also
required to transfer their interests in China PnR to PnR
Network or PnR Network’s designee upon a request made by
PnR Network as permitted under PRC law. The ownership
interests in China PnR have also been pledged by the
Registered Shareholders to PnR Network in respect of the
continuing obligations of China PnR. PnR Network intends
continuously to provide or to assist China PnR in obtaining
financial support when deemed necessary. Accordingly, PnR
Network has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with China PnR and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over China PnR. As a result, China PnR was
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.2 REBEEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (”IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale investments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.2 WEBEE(E)

Basis of consolidation (Continued) RERB 2HEHE ()

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained, and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 23 it BERBEENSE T

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC Interpretation 22

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to the following
standards:

— IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of International
Financial
Reporting
Standards

Investments in
Associates and
Joint Ventures

— IAS 28
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and
the impact of the new and revised IFRSs are described below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-
based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any cash-settled share-based payment
transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

(b) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement; impairment;
and hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group did not restate comparative information and
recognised any material transition adjustments against
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. The
impacts relate to the classification and measurement and
the impairment requirements and are summarised as
follows:

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, under IFRS 9, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs.

Under IFRS 9, debt financial instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), amortised cost, or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification is
based on two criteria: the Group's business model for
managing the assets; and whether the instruments’
contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding (the “SPPI criterion”).

The new classification and measurement of the Group's
debt financial assets are as follows:

o Debt instruments at amortised cost for financial
assets that are held within a business model with
the objective to hold the financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows that meet the
SPPI criterion. This category includes the Group’s
trade and other receivables, and loans included
under other non-current financial assets.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

Other financial assets are classified and subsequently
measured as follows:

o Financial assets at FVPL comprise derivative
instruments and quoted equity instruments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected, at initial
recognition or transition, to classify at FVOCI. This
category would also include debt instruments
whose cash flow characteristics fail to meet the
SPPI criterion or are not held within a business
model whose objective is either to collect
contractual cash flows, or to both collect
contractual cash flows and sell. Under IAS 39, the
Group's quoted equity securities were classified as
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. Upon
transition the AFS reserve relating to quoted
equity securities, which had been previously
recognised under accumulated other
comprehensive income (OCl), was reclassified to
retained earnings.

The assessment of the Group’s business models was
made as of the date of initial application, 1 January
2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial
assets that were not derecognised before 1 January
2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows
on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal
and interest was made based on the facts and
circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

As of 1 January 2018, the category of loans and
receivables under IAS 39, including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, due from
related companies, due from management personnel and
due from the then shareholder were transferred to debt
instruments at amortised cost under IFRS 9. Available-
for-sale investments under IAS 39 were transferred to
equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
under IFRS 9 with no revaluation impact on the opening
balance of reserves.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 23 3 BERBEENSE T (&)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) T EREE (B
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under I1AS 2018F 1 A1EH IR BB g5t £ E
39 and the balances reported under IFRS 9 as at 3958 &Y R TH B B AR 1% (B BR B 75 5
1 January 2018 is as follows: ADESRBEMNSEZEENT
In RMB'000 IAS 39 measurement Remeasurement IFRS 9 measurement
ARBTR (EIBR & = 2 BI) 395 Re- EfittE (ENWR B 75 4R o5 2 B 057
Financial assets Ref Category Amount classification ECL Other Amount Category
i
tREE i 28 t® ENPE FRBX% Hity &8 28
Due from management personnel L&R* 332,618 — — — 332,618 AC**
EWEREABHE
Due from related companies L&R 334,938 — — - 334,938 AC
& U BB 1 R FRUR
Due from the then shareholder L&R 605 — — — 605 AC
JE U & B R R FUR

Financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits

and other receivables L&R 2,878,688 — — - 2,878,688 AC
FABRMAFE  ReREMEK

RE MEREE

Contract assets L&R 21,288 — — — 21,288 AC
BREE
liestricted cash L&R 3,216,167 — — — 3,216,167 AC
XRHERE
Cash and cash equivalents L&R 304,736 — — — 304,736 AC
ReRReZEN
7,089,040 — — — 7,089,040
Financial investments — AFS 82,423 (82,423) — — N/ATE A
SRRE — THEE
To: Financial assets at FVPL AxEE (82,423)
#7505 FEAABRY
Financial assets at FVPL ) N/AZT 8 A — 82,423 — — 82,423 FVPL
BARBEFAERNEREE
From: F/hanc/a/_ Iinvestment — AFS A 82,423
HE 2ARE— THAE
N/AT i A 82,423 — — 82,423 FVPL
Trade payables AC 201,114 — — — 201,114 AC
BH5ENFHE
Contract liabilities AC 82,450 — — - 82,450 AC
CEEY
Financial liabilities included in
other payables, deposits
received and accruals AC 6,098,215 — — — 6,098,215 AC
SARMENKE CREER
B EEMERARE
Due to related companies AC 511,348 — — — 511,348 AC
JE < BB 2 R 50R
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings AC 415,315 — — — 415,315 AC
AERTREMER
7,308,442 - - - 7,308,442
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

* L&R: Loans and receivables
*x AC: Amortised cost

xokx A: As at 1 January 2018, the Group classified all of its AFS as
financial assets at FVPL as these financial instruments were held
for trading

There was no significant impact by replacing the
aggregate opening loan loss provision allowances under
IAS 39 with ECL allowances under IFRS 9 on financial
instruments as at 1 January 2018.

Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group’s accounting for impairment losses for financial
assets by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with
a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for
ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not
held at FVPL.

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For contract assets and trade and other receivables, the
Group has applied the standard’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected
credit losses. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECL is based on the
12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is the portion of
lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group determined that there was no significant
financial impact arising from these changes.

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, I1AS 18
Revenue and related interpretations and it applies to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless
those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to
contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. The Group
determined that there was no significant financial impact
arising from the initial application of IFRS 15.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to IAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS
21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and
recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the
entity must determine the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary
liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.4 B BB 8 K A XA CER R B 7%
¥R 45 %E A

The Group has not applied the following new and revised REEBWAREUENBHREANEAUTER
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these 518 18 R A U 3T BT IR 4SS BT C B BR B 765 =)
financial statements. HAERID o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business? CEB SRS ER) ZH2EE?
B3I BT A)
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with (BB mERER) AF B HENIEF
Negative Compensation’ FEo5% (B FT A) B
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets (BB BmEER) REFMABEASE
and IAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its F105 M(AB g EZHMEEHE
Associate or Joint Venture* FHAERI) 2855 BT &
(2011) (EETA)
IFRS 16 Leases’ (BB B®EER) HE
F165
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? (BB BmELERD) REgE AP
F175
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material? (BB g 2R BAMZEE
and IAS 8 F1REC(EBE
FHER|) E85
CCHEN)
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or (BREERDE BT FHHALE
Settlement’ 195% (1B FTA)
Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates (BB g EANE RELRFAREEDLE
and Joint Ventures’ 285% ({8 7] 4%) B RA 7
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax RS mERE HEWEER T EE
Treatments’ ZEE —RE
$E23%%
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to the following (BRI E2EA) T HERMEETA
IFRSs 2015-2017 standards: 2 FE N
/ . 2015-2017 = \
Cycle — IFRS 3 Business ;E/Eﬁ) * — (B8 25
Combinations’ . wE A of
ZE Al
H35%
— IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ —(BEBRME #He
e ZHE
ZEAll)
F115
— IAS 12 Income Taxes' — (BB es AEH
ZEAll)
F125
— IAS 23 Borrowing Costs’ —(ERegs BEH
ZEAll) FK A
$235%

F20195F 1 A1H sz & 5 44 &9 & & B i A 2%
7202091 A1 8 k2 4 5 18 89 F [ B3 R A4 3K
H2021F 1 A1H 5z 14 5 18 89 & & B i A4 3K
AR TE SR B £k B H - B A] (e A

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2w N o
2w N o

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’'s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 (2011) was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.4 B BB [ R £ R (B R B 35
(CONTINUED) & 2 A (&)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC Interpretation 4 (BB REEDF165MACER &5

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, I(SIC)
15 Operating Leases — Incentives and I(SIC) 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40 Investment Property. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments.

Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in 1AS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The directors of the
Company consider that the adoption of IFRS 16 will primarily
affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of leases which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the
lease. Since the Group’s non-cancellable operating lease
commitment is immaterial as at 31 December 2018, the
directors of the Company expect that the adoption of IFRS 16
will not have a significant impact on the financial position and
financial performance of the Group. The new standard is not
expected to apply until the financial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R Y 5

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of IFRS
9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to
which the equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the
equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity
applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term
interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and
impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on
1 January 2019 and will assess its business model for such
long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances that
exist on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.4

2.5

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(CONTINUED)

IFRIC Interpretation 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised
in profit or loss.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and non-current assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.71%
Leasehold improvements 5%-33.33%
Plant and machinery 19%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 3 to 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research and development costs are charged to the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest
and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment, at the rates below:

Ageing Rates
Less than 3 months 5%
4 to 6 months 20%
7 to 12 months 50%
1 to 2 years 80%
Over 2 years 100%

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under I1AS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under 1AS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Merchant payment operation

The Group provides comprehensive payment services to
help clients accept, process and settle payment
transactions across POS, Internet and mobile payment
scenarios.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued) AR (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHKA (&

(Continued)

(@) Merchant payment operation (Continued) (a) FTITXEZ(E)
Prior to the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from the R A (B B B 75 s 5 22 R ) 351555 Al
rendering of merchant payment services is recognised R AT AR 75 P15 AR 1R 4 AR 7 B
when services are rendered, provided that the revenue TUARERR - MU A RO AR B AT S AT
and the costs can be measured reliably. Under IFRS 15, 2o RIBCH B B % WS 2 RIS
the Group assessed that there is single performance B AEBEFMENTEE-REBHOR
obligation in the contract and revenue will continue to ERBABEBRN NI RBEEE
be recognised at a point in time, upon delivery of the 1B 05 ] BE FE R ©

merchant payment services.

The Group is also responsible for providing ongoing AREBETEBEREPEBEBMES
updates of system and technical support for the REBENREABREMZF - F
operation of the whole business of our clients. Prior to FACE R B 75 3 5 A BI) S 1555 Al - 28
the adoption of IFRS 15, given the Group's efforts are RAEEREEPARELRES HE#
expended evenly throughout the period and contract BREERY EEHERBHES AR
term of such service is within one year, such revenue is DR —F - BB AR RS
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period when BWARA R ERIREGEERE
the service is are rendered and the revenue can be oo MR RCE R B S 3R S 2 A &5
measured reliably. Under IFRS 15, the Group assessed B AEBEFMENTEE-REBHOR
that there is single performance obligation in the £ R G B BE R RS IR IR AR
contract and revenue will continue to be recognised over ATREENTAREMRBAEE T AR
time, using an input method to measure progress R EAER G IREEM -

towards complete satisfaction of the service similar to
the previous accounting policy.

(b) Fintech enabling services operation b) ZTHFIFREREFEF
The Group has been developing and commercialising an AEB-—BEREFPAELEELY
increasing range of fintech enabling services for clients, REZH MBI RRYE - HH G B
which help Internet finance providers and other financial SRR R B A S R AT
institutions in China to better design and administer WRAREEEPREFP RS #HAI K
customer account systems, identify and mitigate risks, fRAERK EFTEHEEMNEETBRR
comply with changing regulations, and conduct data- FETRERESEH -

driven marketing.

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from the B B B 75 3R 5 4E BI) Z5 1555 AT
fintech enabling services business is recognised ratably B B R AR 7 2 7% B WA R B B B 4R
over the respective contract periods with the Internet CRREILEMSREBENSES
finance provider and other financial institutions. The AHARE DR - TR AR
upfront fee received is recognised over the period of the ERARNERNZERHBER - RIE
benefit of the fee. Under IFRS15, the Group assessed (EBREBHREER)FEISH  AEH
that there is single performance obligation in the AEENTEE-BHEERKAH
contract and revenue will continue to be recognised over BERREERRIE AL EENT
time, using an input method to measure progress TERRSHEE FULAER  HEHEA
towards complete satisfaction of the service similar to GETEEAM -

the previous accounting policy.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Sales of payment terminals

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from the sale
of payment terminals is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the payment
terminals sold. Under IFRS 15, the Group’s contracts
with customers for the sale of payment terminals
generally include one performance obligation. The Group
has concluded that revenue from the sale of payment
terminals should be recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the equipment. Therefore, the
adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the
timing of revenue recognition.

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group operates its merchant payment business
through cooperation with various industry participants
who provide the services and infrastructure needed to
enable such transactions. The Group adopts gross
revenue recognition methods for the merchant payment
services. Revenue is recognised at gross amount and
commission fee charged by these participants and
processing fee charged by issuing banks or union pay are
recorded in cost of sales.

The Group takes into account various factors when
determining whether revenue should be reported on a
gross or net basis. The primary factor is whether the
Group acting as a principal in offering services to
customers or as an agent in the transaction. The Group
has determined that it is acting as the principal in
offering services wherever the Group (i) is the primary
obligor in the arrangement; (ii) has latitude in
establishing the selling price; (iii) has discretion in
suppliers selection; and (iv) has involvement in the
determination of product or services specifications.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Factoring income mainly consists of factoring interest income
and other factoring related service income. Factoring income
from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably. Factoring interest income
together with fees that are an integral part of effective
interest rate of the factoring assets are accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Other factoring related service
income mainly consists of factoring related services without
providing factoring financing and is recognised when the
service is provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FEE€:HBEFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain proportion of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the Financial Information of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”). The Company’s
primary subsidiaries were incorporated in the PRC and these
subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional currency. As
the major operations of the Group during the reporting period
are within the PRC, the Group determined to present its
Financial Information in RMB (unless otherwise stated).
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 FES€HHFEME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Further details are given in note 15.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As
a result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income
taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau,
objective estimate and judgement based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for income taxes to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.

Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group in Mainland China, was qualified as a
key software enterprise and was entitled to a reduced income
tax rate of 10% for 2017. The management of the Group
believes that Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service
Co., Ltd. is virtually certain to be renewed as a key software
enterprise again for 2018 and thus the Group continues to
apply a 10% preferential income tax rate on the taxable
income of Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co.,
Ltd. for 2018 in the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Further details are included in note 20 to
the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based
on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF") model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group
is not yet committed to or significant future investments that
will enhance the performance of the assets of the cash-
generating units being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well
as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant
to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Group.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires the determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires the determination of the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share options or appreciation right,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled
transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group uses
a binomial model for Employee Stock Ownership Plans
("ESOP"). The assumptions and models used for estimating the
fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 31.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for other
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a
market-based valuation technique. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies and
select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size differences.
The Group classifies the fair value of these investments as
Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at
31 December 2018 was RMB23,600,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB11,800,000).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEEHHER
For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable ABTEEEMN AFEHERE —EU2HE
operating segment which is the provision of payment solution BOES 2o EIREA KBRS RIR - B
services. Since this is the only reportable operating segment of RAEEESRE —ERE2FREZDI - Bt
the Group, no further operating segment analysis thereof is WERZIHMELDH DT -
presented.
Geographical information i =& R
No geographical information is presented as the Group's HRAEE IS EPAERETEREH
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its PEIREMES  RASENIERSEEY
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the FECL PP B R BESNED - B LI M 2 5 [E B
Group are located outside Mainland China. B o
Information about major customers EBFEEFMEHR
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under MERLRZES 2 THEERE P —FHEP
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's EEMBEEARERNEBRRFAREZA10%
revenue for the year. A E -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W#E- Htlr A RKE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamarmT :
Year ended 31 December
BZENAMBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
Revenue from contracts with customers KEERE KBz
Merchant payment business revenue FRNESAE 3,166,923 1,622,793
Fintech enabling business revenue SRR R E B W 72,713 99,937
Others HAth 1,867 751
Revenue from other sources 20 8 Bt R 69K am
Gross rental income el B 4,692 2,775
Factoring income RIBIA 298 —
3,246,493 1,726,256
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WEHE -HuWwARKz (E)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZFEHKE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHEUAEH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Type of goods or services BmkREER
Merchant payment business revenue 37 15 ¥ % Uk 25 3,166,923 1,622,793
Fintech enabling business revenue B ER KR 72,713 99,937
Others H 1,867 751

Total revenue from contracts with RKEBRFAEHNZWABE

customers 3,241,503 1,723,481
Geographical markets it & ™ 5
Mainland China AL A b 3,241,503 1,723,481

Timing of revenue recognition WA T B

Revenue recognised at a point 0 518 B P B R 2 W s
in time 3,024,782 1,673,815
Revenue recognised over time BE 5 [ 88 58 2 AR 7% 216,721 49,666

Total revenue from contracts with REAHW AR

customers 3,241,503 1,723,481
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRINTARAEREBHEBRNKA S
recognised in the current reporting period that were B-OHGFABREBHYVNEGHNAERE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the EAHEEEXNNENETFAER:

reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2018
20184

RMB’000
ARBTR

Merchant payment business revenue SENES A& 82,450
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W#sE- HtlA R WK z= ()
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNWE ()
(Continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (i) EBAEF
Information about the Group’s performance obligations ERASERNEAMERBMAT
is summarised below:
Merchant payment business revenue S ITEBE K
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time XNEBNBROETCRERERE
for the merchant payment business except for the B EASE R BRIEMREHOZIER
support service the Group provided for the operation, BN HEERERR BALRSE
which is recognised over time as the Group's efforts are ErZOREHATg - M H &
expended evenly throughout the period and the contract RBHENERNF—FA -
term of such service is within one year.
Fintech enabling business revenue AR W
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as & 40 & £ FE AR 75 12 4 1 B B R 5
services are rendered and advances are normally required K MR RERSAT —MEEZER -
before rendering the services. Fintech enabling business PRMBEEBRBENFEANT=F
service contracts are for periods of three years or less. FLATR o
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining R2018FNAMB AR EHR TELOE
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially FECREXKE D REK) B FHERE
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: U
RMB’000
AR® T
Within one year —FR 27,674
More than one year il —F 3,835
31,509

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year relate to the fintech
enabling business that are to be satisfied within two
years. All the other remaining performance obligations
are expected to be recognised within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WEHE -HuWwARKz (E)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHWE ()
(Continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHEF (&)
Fintech enabling business revenue (Continued) BRI R W ()
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETF T
Other income and gains, net Htg A Rz FE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A R A = — 204
Gain on disposal of associates HEME QA MIKE — 1,533
Investment income on financial SRIMENRERA
investments 15,734 29,094
Government grants BT 8 B 16,257 31,802
Others HA 522 422

32,513 63,055
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. AR E
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBF A ABE IR (GEA) L TEE
(crediting): %S
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥ T AREETF T
Cost of merchant payment business 3z {2 # Uk %5 #9 ok Z<
revenue 2,338,313 1,140,345
Cost of fintech enabling business © BRH WA Y
revenue B A 12,611 15,637
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREZHE
equipment e 14 249,128 117,174
Amortisation of other intangible HthmmEEEH
assets 16 8,451 8,081
Impairment of contract assets BHMEERE 7, 22 160 —
Impairment of factoring assets RIEBEEME 7, 23 84 —
Impairment of other receivables H b B U R TE R E 7, 24 17,784 31,637
Impairment of investments in REEE QAR E
associates A 7,17 12,709 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant BEME BEKRK
and equipment HHEE 7 58,308 29,064
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 B 7 A 2,400 600
Employee benefit expense (including EE &A% (B
directors’ and chief Executive's EERGZETHR
remuneration (note 9)): A B H B (FIE9) -
Wages and salaries HEEE 2 272,231 230,669
Equity-settled share option expense BTHERESET
R A M B 2 31 70,800 33,694
Pension scheme contributions and RS EIHA R
social welfare rEREA 63,971 48,856
Foreign exchange differences, net PE N =8 F5E 7 1,128 2,146
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7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HMEX
An analysis of other expenses is as follows: HMRAZoMmOT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
201845 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETF T
Impairment of contract assets EREERE 160 —
Impairment of factoring assets RIBEERE 84 —
Impairment of other receivables E b fE U R R B 17,784 31,637
Impairment of investments in associates REBEQNRRE 12,709 —
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W =8 %% 1,128 2,146
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEME  BEAZHEEE
equipment 58,308 29,064
Penalty and compensation A& 8 1,226
Donation B 993 1,122
Others H Aty 293 94
91,467 65,289
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKRAED T :
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREFIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERA B 24,451 10,442
Interest on other borrowings R S — 11,843
24,451 22,285
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTHAEHEM
REMUNERATION
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318 L& E
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt AREF T
Fees piake 420 —
Other emoluments: HEp <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYER 2,906 2,367
Performance-related bonuses* W IE AL > 1,190 521
Equity-settled share option expense BTRERESET
i MR B 2 40,752 5,354
Pension scheme contributions and BRRESFEIHER KR
social welfare g R 236 216
Total A 45,504 8,458
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * RARRETHATESTARESRAKEREAE
which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the B D LEEMNIANRK -
Group.

During the reporting period, certain directors were granted RMEH REAAFERELCE  ETF

share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option arrangements of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amounts included
in the financial statements for the reporting period are
included in the above directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration disclosures.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. ESERESTTHRABRHM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRXNBIIERTEETNRESAT ¢

during the year were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Mr. LIU Jun Bkt 140 —
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlEARLEE 140 —
Mr. ZHANG Qi RELE A 140 —
420 —
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAVEENTZSEIFNTES
independent non-executive directors during the year B9 E 5 B (20174 - 48) o
(2017: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors
and the chief executive

Year ended 31 December 2018

9. EERERSITHRAEHM (&)

(b)

HITES  FUTESEREST

BAE

HZE2018F12831B L EE

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled  Pension scheme
and benefits Performance- share option contributions and Total
in kind  related bonuses expense social welfare remuneration
HE& BER NEREHR Bk S8
BENEAN BRI HRGEAX HIARLEER FHaE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥T R AR TR ARBTR ARB TR
Executive directors: WTES:
— Mr. ZHOU Ye — AEEE 1,069 415 23,907 80 25,471
— Ms. MU Haijie —BERZLT 939 an 11,737 78 13,165
— Mr. JIN Yuan —&REE 898 364 5,108 78 6,448
2,906 1,190 40,752 236 45,084
Non-executive directors: FHTESE:
— Mr. ZHOU Joe — ZHOU Joeft & = = = = =
— Mr. CHYE Chia Chow — BEHRE - - - - -
— Mr. CHEN Zhongjue —RAPELE — — - - -
2,906 1,190 40,752 236 45,084
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

9. EERBRSITBRAEHMN A

Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITES - kHITESREST
and the chief executive (Continued) BAE (&)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A318 LFE
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension scheme
and benefits Performance- share option  contributions and Total
in kind related bonuses expense social welfare remuneration
e EHR R EE RIKEFE
EMEF By HRHFAR  BRRIEEET FMen
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFRT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: WITES:
— Mr. ZHOU Ye — AELE 871 248 3,006 72 4,197
— Ms. MU Haijie —BEZat 713 186 1,354 7 2,325
— Mr. JIN Yuan —&REE 783 87 994 72 1,936
2,367 521 5,354 216 8,458
Non-executive directors: FHITES
— Mr. ZHOU Joe — ZHOU Joefi & — — — — —
— Mr. CHYE Chia Chow — BESEE - - - - -
— Mr. CHEN Zhongjue — RPELE — — — — —
2,367 521 5,354 216 8,458

Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU Haijie and Mr. JIN Yuan were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on
21 December 2017, 2 March 2018 and 2 March 2018,
respectively. Details of their remuneration are listed
above.

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow, Mr. ZHOU Joe and Mr. CHEN
Zhongjue were appointed as non-executive directors of
the Company on 2 March 2018.

Mr. ZHOU Ye was also appointed as chief executive
officer of the Company on 2 March 2018. Details of his
remuneration are listed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the reporting period.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEBEESHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 FANREE= FHHEE BIE3RESE (2017
directors (2017: 3 directors), details of whose remuneration are F3REE) HEMFHFBEHRL X9 -
set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the HZEZ2018F12A31HIEFEN#HB 28 &S
years ended 31 December 2018 of the remaining 2 highest YMEBMIFERRAREFTNIFZERTHA
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive B EFMFBEI>RIAT

of the Company are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BENAMMBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EWRER 1,986 1,937
Performance related bonuses BT 711 289
Equity-settled share option expense BETHRESETE
s e A =2 3,275 944
Pension scheme contributions and BARSFEHEHRKE
social welfare HEREA 169 154
Total &t 6,141 3,324
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FEZHERSTRAEN T HTMEEN
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following RS EMIERAABA TR :

bands is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/%8 T &
2,000,000/ 7T — 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L E
2,500,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/%8 T E
5,000,000 7T 1 —
Total &5 2 2
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AE RS MES (&)
(CONTINUED)
During the reporting period, share options were granted to RBEH MEFEFAIGRITHRAED
two non-director and non-chief executive highest paid BEeFMEERBEERAAEBRENREE
employees in respect of their services to the Group, further RERE BAFBIRVBRERM I
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 31 to W ZEERENAAEBEINRL A
the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which ErTOREBEHNGaER LA EE
has been recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or mERPHER BRBREHVBRERINENS
loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period, MOt ALMFEERESETHRAENR
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount SEHEE 2 HEKRE -
included in the financial statements for the reporting period
are included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
11. INCOME TAX 1. FRiEH
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on REEARAEEKNERAEEREEME
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which MBREEBERELANMENIHREEE
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. The EHNEH FAEEREBEBRES R
Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and 7 2 B 5 5T Bk <7 89 BT /B8 & B A ZE AN (E (]
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. FRigBi e AEBEREBTMAZAMER T
The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are BIRBABFEHNE16.5%MMFEH -
subject to the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%.
Moreover, according to the announcement and circular issued o IRIBHBRTIFEMAN RS LB
by relevant government authorities, Shanghai Payment and o ERENBBEREERQAFAERTRE
Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd. was certified a national key REHREHCE  RERAREZE2017F K&
software enterprise and was therefore subject to a preferential 2018512 318 IEF E1210% 8B B X 4
tax rate of 10% for the years ended 31 December 2017 and o
2018.
Other subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China REE R B AME SR E M E AT AR
are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% for FNIR25% W B 1 TS BB R AT o
the year.
Year ended 31 December
BZENAMBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Current tax: BUEART I
PRC corporate income tax Bl EFTSH 19,313 22,714
Deferred tax (note 20) iR RE 718 (B 5£20) (5.312) (144)
Total tax charge for the year FARBZ BT 14,001 22,570
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income
tax expense at the effective income tax rate for both years is
as follows:

Frigw (&)

MEFEEAR - BARAREK BB EZHR
ERDEE B R RETE R R A E /AT E R
ERMGHAXBRERAEHREGES
FEHRAXMERET

11.

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Profit before tax 5t A A 188,567 155,396
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory income %A E Fi 1858 R (25%)5T &
tax rate of 25% ) 7 18 47,142 38,849
Different income tax rates applicable to HRARWERATHTR
subsidiaries Fr 15 B B¢ & 4,183 —
Preferential income tax rates applicable to AR B RAAMNER
subsidiaries PG B & (42,263) (34,086)
(Profits)/losses attributable to associates B2 N B EAE (FIE), 18 (763) 1,782
Additional deduction for research and fiff 2% 5 S A9 BB SN0 R BE
development expense (19,584) (6,737)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR 2 15,152 15,361
Deductible temporary differences and tax R RA A 0L S =5
losses not recognised B I8 s 18 10,134 7,401
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRASEEBRBREAEYN
T8 T8 32 14,001 22,570
Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position iR BT AR O 2R B JE AR AR R
represents:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Tax payable FE 4 B X
PRC corporate income tax FESEMSH 5 108
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

12. DIVIDENDS

13.

12. BE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt AREETF T

Dividends declared to the then
shareholder

A& B8R R E KA AR

404,716 —

On 20 January 2018, it is resolved by the directors of the
Company to make two special dividends in relation to the
Reorganization to PnR Holdings Limited in the amounts of
US$45,370,311.20 and US$17,700,000.00, respectively. The
dividends have been paid by the Company on 24 January
2018 and 5 February 2018, respectively.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,070,800,925 (2017: N/A) in issue during
the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BSERS AR EBRERFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE WERER (&)
PARENT (CONTINUED)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are AHEEREARBEERNTER
based on:

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity HARERBEMER
holders of the parent entity BB AREMLFE 176,065 138,239
Shares A% 19
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEBRERBTN
shares in the basic earnings per share 3 AR 00 #E 19 8
calculation 1,070,800,925 N/A 3 AR
Effect of dilution BEngE
— weighted average number of — TR NAE T B
ordinary shares:
Share options i 59,726,601 N/A 3 AR

1,130,527,526 N/AT i 3
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. NE-BERZE

Leasehold  Plant and Motor Office Construction
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total

By HENXZE BERESR AE BARE ERIE A%

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TRE AR®TR ARMTR ARBTRT AR®TRT AR%TR

31 December 2018 2018%12A31A8
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 &

1 January 2018: 2018F1A18 ¢

Cost KA 367,178 94,889 511,544 3,145 12,013 1,066 989,835

Accumulated depreciation ZME (8,305) (16,355)  (121,823) (1,842) (5.397) — (153,722)

Net carrying amount REFE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113
At 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1 718

accumulated depreciation Mk EHE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113
Additions NE 12,150 5,612 319,524 10 214 — 337,510
Transfer 25| = = = = = (1,066) (1,066)
Disposals HE — — (58,173) (388) (152) — (58,713)
Depreciation provided during FRTERE

the year (10,571) (4,610) (231,887) (355) (1,705) — (249,128)

At 31 December 2018, net of 20185 12A31H -

accumulated depreciation MK RETE 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4,973 — 864,716
At 31 December 2018: #20184128318 :

Cost B 379,328 100,501 676,478 2,437 9,905 — 1,168,649

Accumulated depreciation EHEIE (18,876) (20,965) (257,293) (1,867) (4,932) = (303,933)

Net carrying amount BREF(E 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4,973 — 864,716
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W% BER&E (E)

(CONTINUED)
Leasehold Plant and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF HEVERE BERESR AE BRERE ERIRE At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR
31 December 2017 20174124318
At 31 December 2016 and #2016F12A318 &
1 January 2017: 20174F1 718 -
Cost B — 13,481 124,248 3,139 6,900 52,446 200,214
Accumulated depreciation it E — (13,317) (34,825) (1,498) (5,065) — (54,705)
Net carrying amount REFE — 164 89,423 1,641 1,835 52,446 145,509
At 1 January 2017, net of W2017F1R18
accumulated depreciation nk 25t & — 164 89,423 1,641 1,835 52,446 145,509
Additions RE — — 432,883 338 7,106 397,206 837,533
Transfer 2 ¥ 367,178 81,408 — — — (448,586) —
Disposals HE — — (29,092) (111) (552) — (29,755)
Depreciation provided during FRFERE
the year (8,305) (3,038) (103,493) (565) (1,773) — (117,174)
At 31 December 2017, net of 20175128318 *
accumulated depreciation Mk RFE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113
At 31 December 2017: #2017F12A318 :
Cost B 367,178 94,889 511,544 3,145 12,013 1,066 989,835
Accumulated depreciation it E (8,305) (16,355) (121,823) (1,842) (5,397) — (153,722)
Net carrying amount REFE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the application for the
property ownership certificates for certain buildings of the
Group with an aggregate net carrying value of
RMB360,452,000 and RMB358,873,000, respectively, was still
in progress. The directors of the Company are of the view that
the aforesaid matter would not affect the rights of the Group
to these assets nor have any significant impact on the business
operations of the Group.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

15. GOODWILL 15. B £
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREETF T
At the beginning and end of the year: FHRFR
Cost PR AR 4,108 4,108
Accumulated impairment Z:HEE (4,108) (4,108)
Net carrying amount BREFE = —
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. Hith B\ &EE
31 December
12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AR T
Software B
At the beginning of the year: F4
Cost B AR 64,120 47,339
Accumulated amortisation R 5 (23,873) (15,792)
Accumulated impairment REHRE (1,788) (1,788)
Net carrying amount BREFE 38,459 29,759
Carrying amount at the beginning FUMED2E
of the year 38,459 29,759
Additions NE 2,756 16,781
Transfer L 1,066 .
Amortisation provided during the year FNE B (8,451) (8,081)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FARNEHE R 33,830 38,459
At the end of the year: FR
Cost PR AR 67,942 64,120
Accumulated amortisation BT (32,324) (23,873)
Accumulated impairment Z:tEE (1,788) (1,788)
Net carrying amount BREFE 33,830 38,459
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. REBEERTNKRE

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Share of net assets FEEMNSE 26,509 354
Goodwill on acquisition WEER & 10,841 —
37,350 354
Provision for impairment AR AE (12,709) —
24,641 354

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances with
associates are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(a) Particulars of the Group’s associates
31 December 2018

Place and year

Name of company of registration

&F fif 30 B
RE 6

AR

CHERMBREEREELA Guizhou, PRC
(R"EMNEBEEEBEREERAA" 2016
(“Golden Union Technical Service
Co., Ltd.” Originally “Guizhou
Golden Union Data Service

AR B E QRN E 5 WA & E R
B AE RN R M 36 M E -

(a) AEEBRELTNFR
20184128310

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group
BEAER
HAEREER
BO

Paid-in

capital Principal activities

RMB’000
ARBT T

FTEEH

Co., Ltd.")

SEHERMREEREEARARIEN FESEM
CEHEEEBREERAR]D 20164

L EESERENEBRAF Shanghai, PRC

(“Shanghai Xunhui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.”)
LEEERARNBEERLH

2016

mELE
20165
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REBFERTNRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Particulars of the Group’s associates (a) AEBEHE QNTNFE (E)
(Continued)
31 December 2017 201712 A31H
Percentage of
ownership
interest
Place and year of Paid-in attributable
Name of company registration capital ~ to the Group  Principal activities
EIEAR%E
5 0 2 Bh BT E R S
NCIER R E 1D EHER Bolk FEEH
RMB‘000
ARETT
BEMNeBEHBERBEBRAA Guizhou, PRC 30,000 16% Information services
("Guizhou Golden Union Data Service 2016
Co., Ltd.")
EMNEBAEEBEREERLDA A& N & AR 5
20164
The Group’s shareholdings in the associates all comprise REBRBEARTNERIBRERA
equity shares held by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of AMEENBRRMBENEZRRS -
the Company.
(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) TRITAEEMEE DR AMNBTB

information of the Group’s associates that are not

individually material:

AR (BLERMmELIFER)

31 December

Share of the associates’ profits/
(losses) for the year

Share of the associates’ total
comprehensive income
for the year

Aggregate carrying amount
of the Group’s investments
in the associates

12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
FNEEEE AR
=, (& 18) 3,051 (7,129)
FARMGEHEA A E2E
LONE-
3,051 (7,129)
REBRBLARRED
ARE AR
24,641 354
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. LA REBEFELFTABEN
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS THMEE
31 December
12A31H
2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Debt investments, at fair value BEIEHE  BAREER 219,410 —
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value EEMBRAKE -
B BER 23,600 —
243,010 —
Less: Current - B ER (219,410) —
Non-current JE BN B 23,600 —
The above debt investments at 31 December 2018 were FatA2018F 12 A31BMERKREABTER
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland MIRITETHIEMER - ZF BV E @A
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at DERUAABEFETFABZNEHRE
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows E -BRZSEMNeNESRETIETE
are not solely payments of principal and interest. RARASHMKREERSHFEMK -
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. IHHERE
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Debt investments, at fair value EBRE B EBEE = 70,623
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ELEMRAIRE - LKA = 14,920
Less: Impairment B ORE — (3,120)
= 82,423
Less: Current - B ER — 70,623
Non-current JE BN B = 11,800
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AItHERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The movements in impairment of available-for-sale investments AEEERERESHHT -

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt AREETF T

At the beginning and end of the year R F 9 R F R = 3,120

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. SEEZEBHIEBEEERARE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FRECHEEERBENEHNOT :
year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Temporary

difference on

Temporary unrealised profit
difference of intercompany

on accruals transactions

ARHER S

Est&A REREA
EREH EREH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AR¥T AR¥T

At 1 January 2017 R2017F 1818 — 1,692 1,692
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year FRFAEENETHE — 144 144
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R2017512A318 &
20181718 — 1,836 1,836
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss FRFAER/(BB&ENR)
during the year FEER A 6,983 (569) 6,414
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 6,983 1,267 8,250
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

20. EEBEEER & F (FH)

FREEHBEEERABNESHNOT  (F)

Fair value
adjustments of
financial assets

at fair value
through
profit or loss

UanEEE
I 5t ABEB
TREEN
RABEEHAE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss
during the year

R2017F1 818 ~ 2017124318 &
20181 A1H —
FRBBEMRHETHE

1,102

At 31 December 2018

M2018F12H31H

1,102

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

21.

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017 and 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group’s fund will
be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of the
Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amounts of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB315,881,000 and RMB113,482,000 as at
31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively.

INVENTORIES

ELERBEEEREE (R

20174 K2018F12A31H - R ALK ER
R B A B0 K 2 B B B A R B SR TE I B A R
ELRBANEMOENH  WAERELTEH
H-ARAEERAE AEENESKETR
R R AR RSB 2R - BILR A&
BEARZEMNBRAG TR REZER
F o A2018%F K&2017F12A31H » W AR ER
REF BB ERS RIEEFE A E QA
MEREZHEREATIINNABARYE
315,881,0007T & A R #113,482,0007T °

21. 7€

31 December

Payment terminals and others AT £ K At

128318
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
392 2,172

The directors of the Company are of the view that no
provision for inventories is needed as at the end of the year.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAF X AR 22 A  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3% 193

RER ARBAEERREFTRFEFLE



BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contract assets

22.

BHNEERAR

BREE

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
Contract assets derived from: BRRATEERNEHNEE
Merchant payment business revenue TREBKA 18,782 21,288
Provision for impairment BB E (94) —
18,688 21,288
The movements in provision for impairment of contract assets ERNEEREBRENZSHINFHUT
are as follows:
31 December
12A31H

2018 2017
201845 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
At beginning of the year FH) = —
Impairment losses recognised ERRREBE 160 —
Amount written off #iH & & (66) —
At end of the year FR 94 —

The Group has applied IFRS 9's simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The
Group has established a provision ratio of 0.5% that is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ MY o

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 22. EHNEERAE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Contract assets (Continued) BRNEE (&)
Contract assets are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The ERNEEREEARES - EHNEEMNKRE
carrying amounts of contract assets approximate to their fair BERANABERE RBEHRBREER
values. An ageing analysis of the contract assets as at the end HENEHNEERRDWHHOT :

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

31 December

12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR T
Less than 1 year —FR 18,674 21,257
Over 1 year HE il — 14 31
18,688 21,288

Contract liabilities eHEaE

31 December
12A318
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREETF T

Contract liabilities derived from:

BRATEENEHEE

Merchant payment business revenue XA EB WA 23,122 82,450
Fintech enabling business revenue SRR EB A 8,387 —
31,509 82,450
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

23. FACTORING ASSETS 23. REBEEE

31 December

12A31H

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBFT

Gross factoring assets RIEBEEMTE 16,806 —

Provision for impairment BB E (84) —

16,722 —
The effective interest rates of the factoring assets ranged R2018F12A310  REEEMERFH X
mainly from 13% to 44% per annum as at 31 December * Z N F13%E44% (20175F12A318 « ©
2018 (31 December 2017: N/A). Management reviews and A EEEERENLTFFEREEZEN

assesses the factoring assets for impairment on a collective WE WHEESENEANE-

basis and continues to monitor any significant changes.

The movements in provision for impairment of factoring assets REBEMREREZHOT
are as follows:

31 December

12A31H

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBFT

At the beginning of the year RE — -

Impairment losses recognised BERRAEERE 84 —

At the end of the year RER 84 —
The above provision for impairment of factoring assets is a LT REEEMNREREDAEERE IR
provision for collectively impaired factoring assets. There were BEEMEE NERSHRTEMEHRE
no individually impaired factoring assets at the end of each REEE REMEHKR REZELESD

reporting period. At the end of each reporting period, the BRI A -

factoring assets were neither past due nor impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24.

RECEIVABLES

T

ﬁgﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR T
Receivable on behalf of clients REEFEKRAFIE 5,609,867 3,082,718
Interest receivable & UL T B 1,246 1,437
Deposits e 18,969 18,135
Other tax recoverable E b m] Yk [0 B B 41,530 56,756
Prepaid expenses TET B X 5,804 7,031
IPO expenses BRXAABERY — 2,500
Others Hib 1,109 3,794
5,678,525 3,172,371
Provision for impairment B E (239,775) (227,396)
5,438,750 2,944,975

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

The movements in provision for

receivables are as follows:

impairment of other

H B WK IR B SRR - TNRHE KRB EE R

HR -

Hi WA EREESHNT

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
At beginning of the year F1 227,396 195,759
Impairment losses recognised B R RE R B 17,784 31,637
Amount written off B i 8H & %8 (5,405) —
At end of the year FR 239,775 227,396
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 255 RERBEEEBYRZIRS
RESTRICTED CASH B
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 2,477,083 3,520,903
Time deposits T BTF 3R 648,540 —
3,125,623 3,520,903
Less: Restricted cash A X REIR S 1,610,657 3,216,167
Cash and cash equivalents e hkBESZED 1,514,966 304,736
Restricted cash primarily consists of client reserve fund received XRHHEEFEVERREPRIBNE BN
on behalf of clients and amounts pledged to banks as & RERES MR RBERIERRZ THF
collateral for issuance of letters of gquarantee. As at e R2018F K2017F 128310 » REF#
31 December 2018 and 2017, amounts held in designated NEEEETRITEREPHENEEIIAAR
bank accounts associated with client reserve fund amounted to #1,371,216,000T & A R #3,185,388,000
RMB1,371,216,000 and RMB3,185,388,000, respectively. As at 7T M2018F K2017F12A318 » (REUFR
31 December 2018 and 2017, restricted cash pledged to banks FIIR e REFEREMINEBREEIRAA
as collateral for issuance of letters of guarantee and other R#29,153,0007T &2 A E#30,779,0007T ° 7
specified use relating to the payment business amounted to 2018F 201712 A318 » iRPEFER
RMB29,153,000 and RMB30,779,000, respectively. As at 7 7E Bi1E 50 5240,000,000/8 T & ©

31 December 2018 and 2017, time deposits pledged for long
term loans amounted to HK$240,000,000 and Nil.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the major cash and bank 20185 Kk2017F12A318 A5 B MR E
balances of the Group were denominated in RMB. The RMB is MIBITHEBEEUAREE - ARBAA
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under BB R E AR R T B A (o
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and EEBBIDER(EE EERNEERER
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign E) AEEHEFABRAEREELINEER
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange BRI ARB R IBEK A EE -

RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSBREARTERINENFEFHE
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for BT BERNEREE T AREE A
varying periods of between one day and three months KESFENFT—HEZE=ZBATEF - WiKHA
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, R TR ERIRFE - RITEH D
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit TR EERF MR EENTHENR
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy T -RELRREFEVNEERENSHRAR
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts REE -

of the cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair

values.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

26. EZENRE

RBEHR BEHRNRBREZBHNE
EomT

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt AREF T
Less than 1 year 1F AR 415,125 175,096
Over 1 year 1F A 8,614 26,018
423,739 201,114

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable within the normal operating cycle or on demand.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period approximated to their corresponding carrying
amounts due to their relatively short maturity terms.

BB RERIER T8 RAEER ¥
SR 5 P S R A

HRBEHRNE H RN RAEREERENE
HHR SEAABEEALKREERS -

Huifu Payment Limited SCAF X AR 227  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3% 199



BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED  27. HtENHE - ERERERIE
AND ACCRUALS atH B
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Payable on behalf of clients REZFEMNIE 6,407,039 5,761,187
Payable for acquisition of buildings WEEBFHRENRIEA 6,970 263,306
Payable to the third parties JENE = F0E 5,378 16,215
Deposits birgcia 55,169 57,228
Deferred government grants iR JE AT 46 B 16,386 22,875
Payroll and welfare payable B TE KRBT 79,457 53,617
Other tax payable H b & 4 B R 13,981 2,411
Accruals FEE A B 28,349 25,196
Purchase consideration payables for BB EARNEBEERE
an associate 3,451 —
Others EH 3,294 279
6,619,474 6,202,314
The fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting RBERROEMENRIENARBEOS
period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. REMRER@E -
28. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS 28. FAUWERRK

Advances from customers mainly represented the sales
proceeds received from buyers in connection with the Group’s
pre-sale of payment terminals and service fees prepaid by
customers for the fintech enabling business to which related
services have not been rendered at the end of the year.
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. ;T EBTEREREMER

BORROWINGS
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
20185 12A31R 2017128318
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BBFIE(%) 38A ARBTE BEGEELA) B AREF T
Current BN e
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — BER 4.57-5.00 2019 301,896 4.35-4.79 2018 370,315
Bank loans — secured RITER — BER 2.32 2019 188,383 — — —
Current portion of long term bank RERTEHAE
loans — unsecured B — BER 5.23 2019 10,000 523 2018 10,000
Current portion of long term bank RERTEHAE
loans — secured B — BER 4.75 2019 34,862 — — —
535,141 380,315
Non-current FENE
Bank loans — unsecured ROTER — BER 5.23 2020 25,000 523 2019-2020 35,000
Bank loans — secured BITER — BER 4.75 2020-2023 157,138 — — —
182,138 35,000

717,279 415,315
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. FFERITERREMERE)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMER
31 December
12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Repayable within one year —FAFER 535,141 380,315
Repayable in the second year FEZFANREN 46,547 10,000
Repayable within two to five years FEZERFRNEN 135,591 25,000
717,279 415,315

As at 31 December 2018, all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB, except for borrowings amounting to
RMB188,383,000 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings were all
denominated in RMB.

The Group’s borrowings of RMB104,000,000 and
RMB415,315,000, as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,
respectively, were borrowings with a floating interest rate.

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to
HK$215,000,000 as at 31 December 2018 were pledged by
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
RMB219,410,000 (as at 31 December 2017: Nil). Certain of the
Group’s bank borrowings amounting to RMB192,000,000 as at
31 December 2018 were pledged by restricted cash of
HK$240,000,000 (as at 31 December 2017: Nil).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair
values of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such
borrowings were made between the Group and independent
third party financial institutions based on prevailing market
interest rates.
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R2018F12A310 » AEBEFABRHUA
REESHE - HEARK 188,383,000 A B TTAT
BRI - 2017128318 AEE A E
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AEBEMN20185F K2017F12 A31 B E RS
Al & A R %104,000,0000T & A B &
415,315,0007T © B F#lt¥g 228 FIREF -

M2018F12A31H - AEE&H FTHRITHE XK
215,000,000/ Tt H A A A2 BEFE X 5 A
BamlemEEAR219,410,000 T fEHK 1
(FA2017912A318 : &) » 12018512 A31
H - AEEETHRITERARBK192,000,000
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. IR A
Shares % 12
31 December
12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR T
Authorised: JETE
3,800,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,800,000,000% & f%
HK$0.0001 each 0.00017% JT &Y I 18 % 380,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
1,251,075,586 ordinary shares of 1,251,075,586 0% & I
HK$0.0001 each 0.000178 JT & & i IR 125,108 —

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 December 2017 with authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares of HK$0.0001
par value each. On its date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share
of HK$0.0001 was allotted by the Company to a subscriber,
and was transferred to PnR Holdings Limited on the same
date.

On 25 December 2017, 1 ordinary share of the Company was
allotted and issued to PnR Holdings Limited with a
consideration of RMB499,867,000.

On 29 January 2018, the Company issued 1,026,199,359
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.0001 each to PnR
Holdings Limited for a consideration of US$4,500,000.

On 15 June 2018, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 225,263,600 new ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.0001 each at HK$7.5 each, and
raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$1,689,477,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,384,155,000). The
respective share capital amount was approximately RMB18,455
and share premium arising from the issuance was
approximately RMB1,384,136,000.
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PnR Holdings Limited °
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) ¥ {€ [[APNR Holdings Limited3 17
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Shares (Continued)

31.

During the year 2018, 429,200 shares were repurchased and
cancelled and 1,244,000 shares were repurchased but not yet

cancelled and were

recognised as treasury shares at

31 December 2018.

On 7 November 2018, 41,825 shares were issued pursuant to
the exercise of pre-IPO options.

SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP
Plan

On 16 September 2011, the Board of Directors of PnR
Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the PnR
Series B ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series B
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued by all awards under the PnR Series B ESOP Plan
shall be 95,271,885 shares.

The exercise price of all granted options to senior
management, mid-level employees and staff is US$0.18
per ordinary share. 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% of
the shares subject to the options shall vested at the first,
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
Vesting Commencement Date, respectively. The Vesting
Commencement Date should be determined by grantees
for each grant agreement. The granted options have a
contractual option term of ten years. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash. The options may not be exercised
until they vest. Once vested, the vested portion of the
options may be exercised in whole or in part, at any
time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. R (&)

B 1p (48)

20184 + 429,200/% % 15 E f# 0] J2 7 88 -
1,244,000 x5 B BE BB R 5E 8 TR
2018F 12 A3 AR AEFER G -

31.

M2018%E11A78H » 41,8250 ikt & A & X
AHABERBREEITEMET -

BREZRH

(a)

PRRBAIEITHRFTETHIE
fiz ¥

M201199H16H * PnR Holdings
LimitedZEZ R EXNIEER AR E
EELEHMESRERE FEREE
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)% 15 ) B K 88 B /95,271,8850% ©
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 31. BREZH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP (a) PnRBRIIETHRFTZITHE
Plan (Continued) fiz ¥ (#&)
Movements in the number of the share options granted ETaReEeRE HERERELIN
to senior management, mid-level employees and staff BREHBEEZSREMEFIITHEE
and their weighted average exercise prices are as m
follows:

Number of share options

BRESAE
Exercise price Year ended 31 December
TEE BZ12A310LFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
At the beginning of the year 95,271,885 95,271,885
F 1
Granted Us$0.18 = —
B 0.18% 7T
Exercised Us$0.18 (41,825) —
BT 0.18% 7T
Forfeited Us$0.18 (31,825) —
2R i 0.18% 7T
At the end of the year 95,198,235 95,271,885
FR
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, 94,968,970 and 720184 2017412 HA31H © 94,968,970
92,866,605 outstanding options were exercisable. [i% $%92,866,6050% 7 17 55 #Y B8 % 4 7]
B1TfE -
The directors have used the DCF method to determine EECDRARENEMBEEELRE
the underlying equity fair value of the Group and ErEEER AR EE TERAER
adopted the equity allocation model to determine the SEREEFTHBLTRRNARE
fair value of the underlying ordinary shares. Key B-MRERAREKRBASEEZR
assumptions, such as discount rates and projections of REHEEERREMGAETE -

future performance, are required to be determined by
the directors with best estimate.
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP
Plan (Continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary
shares, the directors have used the binomial model to
determine the fair value of the share options as at the
grant date. Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate 4 2 fg ) R
Volatility ol
Dividend yield I% B U 25 &

31. BREZ 5 ()

PR BRIIETHKREHEITHE
A ()

REABLBROALEE EFC
5 A = 78 =8 5 e R AR B R R R B
MWD EE TEBRIHIIMOT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B8LEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT T
2.98% 2.98%
37% 37%
0% 0%

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based on the
average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based on
management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-level
employees and staff were RMB180,000 and RMB560,000
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group has to estimate the expected yearly
percentage of grantees that will stay within the Group at
the end of the vesting periods of the share options (the
"Expected Retention Rate”) in order to determine the
amount of the share option expense charged to the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the expected retention rates for senior
management were assessed to be 95% and 95%,
respectively; the expected retention rates for the mid-
level employees and staff were assessed to be 90% and
90%, respectively.
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP
Plan

On 12 December 2017, the Board of Directors of the
PnR Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the
PnR Series C ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series C
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued by all awards under the PnR Series C ESOP Plan
shall be 90,320,084 shares.

The exercise price of all granted options to senior
management, mid-level employees and staff is US$0.55
per ordinary share. 25%, 25%, 25% and 25% of the
shares subject to the option shall vested at the first,
second, third and fourth anniversaries of the Vesting
Commencement Date, respectively. The Vesting
Commencement Date should be determined by grantees
for each grant agreement. The granted options have a
contractual option term of ten years. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash. The options may not be exercised
until they vest. Once vested, the vested portion of the
options may be exercised in whole or in part, at any
time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. BREZ 5 (&)

(b)

PnR CRIETHRTETHE
fiz ¥

720174128128 * PnR Holdings
LimtedE F G ERIEEMBAE
EEHERMNERERE FEES
METREHSE PR CRYIE THK
FT&l o PnR CHII B THAREH &I B #L 5%
HERRR A - BRE A T4 o IRIEPNR
CRF| B8 THRFHEIF TR 25082
B % 15 1) fx K 81 B /90,320,0840% ©

BRYaREEE HEREREIN
EHERENITEER S L BRR0.55
ETL BB T25% ~ 25%  25% %
25% R AD BIREE G B HH
F—FZ F-RENEABFRS
B -BEMRBABERSRTHEN
EBEARTE - EETFTHERENED
BRESRATF AEELENR
CHEOBNAEEBRENETSETER
F-BEHEEREETNRERITE-
BER BRENEBIOAERES
B EE D ITE ©

BREYARABTHEAESRERIR
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 31. BREZH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP (b) PnR CRINETHERTSTHEE
Plan (Continued) iz ¥ (&)
Movements in the number of the share options granted EYTaBeEeRE HERERELIN
to senior management, mid-level employees and staff BREHBEESREMEFIITHEE
and their weighted average exercise prices are as m
follows:

Number of share options

BRESA
Exercise price Year ended 31 December
TEE BZENAMBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
At the beginning of the year 90,320,084 —
F9)
Granted US$0.55 — 90,320,084
B 0.55% 7T
Forfeited Us$0.55 (984,604) —
2R 0.55% 7T
At the end of the year 89,335,480 90,320,084
FR
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, 66,755,459 and 720184 N2017412A318 © 66,755,459
45,160,042 outstanding options were exercisable. [i& %245,160,042% K 17 & & & Ax 4 A
{8 -
The directors have used the DCF method to determine ESECRARSRENBELAEELSE
the underlying equity fair value of the Group and ErEEER AR EE TERAER
adopted the equity allocation model to determine the SEREEFTHBERERNOARE
fair value of the underlying ordinary shares. Key B ARERRREKRBASEEZR
assumptions, such as discount rates and projections of REHEFRREMGET -

future performance, are required to be determined by
the directors with best estimate.
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP
Plan (Continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary share,
the directors have used the binomial model to determine
the fair value of the share options as at the grant date.
Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate 4 2| g | R
Volatility el
Dividend yield B% B U 25 &

31. BREZ 5 (&)

PR CRINETHRTETHE
% #E (1)

BEMBETEROAAEE ESE
FRCEARAETERENZL B
M AnEE  TERIHAINMT

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2.39% 2.39%
34% 34%
0% 0%

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based on
average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based on
management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-level
employees and staff were RMB24,538,000 and
RMB33,134,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate in
order to determine the amount of the share option
expense charged to the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at
31 December 2018 and 2017, the expected retention
rate for senior management was assessed to be 95%
and 95%, respectively; the expected retention rate for
the mid-level or below employees was assessed to be
90% and 90%, respectively.
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Share options under the PnR Series D ESOP
Plan

On 20 January 2018, the Board of Directors of the PnR
Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the PnR
Series D ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series D
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued by all awards under the PnR Series D ESOP Plan
shall be 116,331,968 shares.

The exercise prices of 80% and 20% granted options to
senior management, mid-level employees and staff are
US$0.7846 and HK$7.50 per ordinary share,
respectively. 55%, 20%, 20% and 5% of the shares
subject to the options shall vest when certain vesting
conditions are met. The granted options have a
contractual option term of ten years. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash. The options may not be exercised
until they vest. Once vested, the vested portion of the
options may be exercised in whole or in part, at any
time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. BREZ 5 ()

(c)

PnRRDARJEITHRFTETHE
fiz ¥

M2018%1H20H * PnR Holdings
LimitedE B EKRLEERARE
BEFLEMNERERE TERSE
F B TR B PR DX E THK
iT&) - PnR DRI B THEEI B #LF
HERRRAR - BME AT F - BRIEPAR
DRI E TH MBI Al &TH 285
B IR0 M KELE 5116,331,9680% ©

RYeafREEE HEREREIN
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 31. BREZH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Share options under the PnR Series D ESOP () PnRDRINEIHRTETHE
Plan (Continued) fiz ¥ (#&)
Movements in the number of the share options granted ETaReEeRE HERERELIN
to senior management, mid-level employees and staff BREHBEEZSREMEFIITHEE
and their weighted average exercise prices are as m
follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise price Year ended 31 December
TEE BZENA3MIBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
At the beginning of the year = —
F9)
Granted US$0.7846 or HK$7.50 116,331,968 —
B 0.78463 JL 3(7.50/% 7T
Forfeited US$0.7846 or HK$7.50 — —
2R i 0.78463 7L 3(7.50/% 7T
At the end of the year 116,331,968 —
FR
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, 63,982,581 and Nil 720184 2017412 H31H © 63,982,581
outstanding options were exercisable. MREEMRITENERETETE -
The directors have used the DCF method to determine EECDRARENEMBEEELE
the underlying equity fair value of the Group and ErEEER AR EE TERAER
adopted the equity allocation model to determine the SEREEFTHBLTRRNARE
fair value of the underlying ordinary shares. Key B-MRERAREKRBASEEZR
assumptions, such as discount rates and projections of REHEEERREMGAETE -

future performance, are required to be determined by
the directors with best estimate.
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 31. BREZHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Share options under the PnR Series D ESOP () PnRDRINETITHKRTETHIE

Plan (Continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary
shares, the directors have used the binomial model to
determine the fair value of the share options as at the
grant date. Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate 4 2 fg ) R
Volatility ol
Dividend yield I% B U 25 &

B (&)

REEBEBENAAEE EFC
ER-_EBEARAEEBERERNRLA
HHAAEE - TERREBINAT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B8LEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT T
2.64% N/A 73 A
34% N/A 73 A
0% N/A 73 A

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based on
average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based on
management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-level
employees and staff were RMB46,082,000 and Nil for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate in
order to determine the amount of the share option
expense charged to the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at
31 December 2018, the expected retention rate for
senior management was assessed to be 95%; the
expected retention rate for the mid-level or below
employees was assessed to be 90%.
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31. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Replacement of the PnR ESOP Plans

The PnR Series B ESOP Plan, PnR Series C ESOP Plan and
PnR Series D ESOP Plan are collectively called the PnR
ESOP Plans.

On 20 January 2018, the Company's board of directors
approved to adopt the Huifu ESOP Plans to substitute
the PnR ESOP Plans. The Huifu ESOP Plans will come into
effect upon the termination of the PnR ESOP Plans and,
together with the PnR ESOP Plans, are a total package
and arrangement for the employees and management of
PnR Holdings Limited. All key items in the Huifu ESOP
Plans are the same as those in the PnR ESOP Plans and
therefore such arrangement was accounted for as a
share option replacement.

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents share premium of the
Company. Details of the movement in capital reserve are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
articles of association of the subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, the Group is required to appropriate
10% of its net profits after tax, as determined under the
Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase share capital provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.
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31. BREZ 5 (&)

(d)
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32. f#1E
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(a)

(b)
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

33. MERERERME

Interest-bearing
bank and other

SEEBELSR

mE

Due to related

525

Total liabilities
from financing

borrowings companies activities

STERITR FE 13 B8 B METE

Hih & ARRE FEENHEERE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt AR®T AR®T T

At 1 January 2017 1201751818 766,348 352,194 1,118,542
Changes from financing R EE B PTE £/

activities &g (351,033) 139,495 (211,538)

At 31 December 2017 7201712 A31H 415,315 491,689 907,004
Changes from financing BMEFBMELEN

activities &) 301,964 (491,689) (189,725)

At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 717,279 — 717,279
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. KEHEZRH
As lessee fERAME A
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AREBERBEEHELRHHEHEETHAY
operating lease arrangements, negotiated for terms of 1 to 5 ¥ BEMEBRIESF  ATRMEMKRIEEE
years with an option for renewal after the end of lease terms, BEN FREAERFEBENREE -

35.

at which time all terms will be renegotiated.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RER  NREERKBE T AHELEHELD
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating AENZARBEEHEBELABOT

leases falling due as follows:

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Within one year —F R 864 8,474
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEENEF
(BRREEMF) 132 1,004
996 9,478
COMMITMENTS 35. 7&iE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B Bl B sE34FTFF i M S E A E AN - K
note 34 above, the Group had the following capital EERNRERRBTAUNTEREE:

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETFIT
Investment commitments for: B TIERIEE R :
Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd. CHEHARMRBAER
R RN = 19,200
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEE AR B
(1) Name and relationship (1) BBRER
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RS BB B E R R
PnR Holdings Limited The then shareholder
B R AR R
Mr. ZHOU Ye Management personnel
JE g A EBAB
Mr. LIU Gang Management personnel
213 % & EBAB
Ms. MU Hai Jie Management personnel
Bg2z+ EBAB
THARMERBEREE LA Associate
(“Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd.") BEEA
FEZBAHLRARB AR AT (“Shanghai Yirisheng  Associate
Financial Services Co., Ltd.”) (note (i) (¥ &E(i) BEEA
KEBEMEEXI SR LRMHDERAF Associate
(“Chengdu Financial Exchange Co., Ltd."”) BEEA
(note (i) (P &L (i)
LESEEREEARAR Associate
(“Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology Co., Ltd.”) E#% A
FESEBBEEABRAG Company controlled, jointly controlled or
("Yisou Business Consulting Co., Ltd."”) significantly influenced by management personnel
HERASES  LRAEGISENERZEN QT
FEENESHEHERBR AT Company controlled, jointly controlled or
("PnR Finance Ltd."”) significantly influenced by management personnel
HERASES  LRAEGISENERZEN QT
FEENBHEERA A Company controlled, jointly controlled or
(“Shanghai PnR Technology Co., Ltd."”) significantly influenced by management personnel
HERASES  LRAEGISENERZEN QT
EZXREAE (LB BARAA Company controlled, jointly controlled or
(“Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.") significantly influenced by management personnel

HEBEASES - HAEHKEMNEAZENHRF
EFEREEE SR EAR A (“Shanghai Huateng  Company controlled, jointly controlled or

Data Information Technology Co., Ltd.") significantly influenced by management personnel
HEBASES  HAZESSENERZEN QA

FHEBEERERGARAR Company controlled, jointly controlled or
(“Shanghai Huateng Intellect System Co., Ltd."”) significantly influenced by management personnel

HEEABES KAEGHENERZENRF
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(1) Name and relationship (Continued) (1) EBBRERGE)

36. BBt X Z ()

Name of related party

METEE

Relationship with the Group
BEAEEHNBER

BEME M (28) AR A F ("Huifu Network
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.")

EERMIREEE AR AF (“Shanghai PnR
Investment Management Co., Ltd."”)

FEENEEEEMEBRAA (“Shanghai PnR
Kangning Information Technology Co., Ltd."”)

BN EEZE R R AR AR ("Bund Wealth

Company controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by management personnel
HEBASES  HEZEGISEMERTENH R
Company controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by management personnel
HEBASES HEZEGISEMERTZENHR A
Company controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by management personnel
HEBASES HEZEGISEMERTZENHR A
Company controlled, jointly controlled or

Financial Services Co., Ltd."”) significantly influenced by management personnel

HEBASES  HEZESISEMERTZENHR A

Company controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by management personnel

HEEABES KAESSENEXRZENAF

FIBENEE KM AR QA (“Shanghai PnR
Information Technology Co., Ltd.”)

Notes: B 5 -

2017911 A308 © L85 A AL BRG
BRAFMBRAE S EEHARELE
BMEERBBERLLT -EERA LB
SAASHMBREERARNTHRE HAE
E e RaEE T o

(i) Equity interests of Shanghai Yirisheng Financial Services Co., Ltd. (i)
were disposed of to Mr, Zhou Ye, Mr. Liu Gang and Ms. Mu Hai
Jie on 30 November 2017. In the opinion of the Directors,
Shanghai Yirisheng Financial Services Co., Ltd. was no longer
regarded as a related party of the Group.

72017611 H308  MEBERMEER H P
AR BR A ) A R A 25 4 S 4G TR
A CBIMEERBERLLT -EFR
ROKEEREERSPOLRODERRAF
TEERAAEENBEH S -

(ii) Equity interests of Chengdu Financial Exchange Co., Ltd. were (ii)
disposed of to Mr. Zhou Ye, Mr. Liu Gang and Ms. Mu Hai Jie on
30 November 2017. In the opinion of the Directors, Chengdu
Financial Exchange Co., Ltd. was no longer regarded as a related
party of the Group.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB LR 5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(2) Significant related party transactions 2 EXBHMAIXS
The following transactions were carried out with related REFE R T ETORRZ0T

parties during both years:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETFTT
Advances to management mMEEASEHNBR
personnel
Mr. ZHOU Ye IR A — 136,641
Mr. LIU Gang 2090 £ & — 42,210
Ms. MU Hai Jie BeRZL = 42,210
Repayment of advances to MEEASEENEN
management personnel
Mr. ZHOU Ye IR A 219,576 16,000
Mr. LIU Gang 2090 £ & 56,521 2,000
Ms. MU Hai Jie BeRZL 56,521 2,000

Advances to related companies ] BA Bk A B 4E H B

Bund Wealth Financial Services LgINESE B F AR

Co., Ltd. BRAA = 123,861
Yisou Business Consulting LB EBE

Co., Ltd. BRAA = 110,634
Shanghai PnR Investment EEEMNEEERE

Management Co., Ltd. BRAQ A — 7,500
Shanghai PnR Kangning EEENEERFEERE

Information Technology BRAF

Co., Ltd. — 500
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Z2mERE(LS)

BRAA = 410

Shanghai PnR Information FBENE R

Technology Co., Ltd. BRAQ A — 2
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEE S X5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(2) Significant related party transactions 2 EXBEBAIXRSZ (&)
(Continued)
The following transactions were carried out with related RREFEHEBETETHRS N
parties during both years: (continued) T (%)

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A3MBLLEE
2018 2017
201845 20174F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR AREF T
Repayment of advances to mBA A R EENBEN
related companies
Shanghai PnR Investment EEEMEEERE
Management Co., Ltd. BRAF 138,338 10
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ZEmENRE(LE)
BRAF 102,936 134,704
Bund Wealth Financial Services EBNEEY SRS
Co., Ltd. BRAF 92,072 62,456
Shanghai PnR Kangning EEEMNEERE BRI
Information Technology BRAF
Co., Ltd. 500 —
Yisou Business Consulting LB SERBEA
Co., Ltd. BRAF = 110,634
Shanghai PnR Information EERE B
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAF = 2

Repayment of advances to the MERRREEZR
then shareholder

PnR Holdings Limited PnR Holdings Limited 605 —
Advances from related 22 N
companies
Huifu Network Technology BEME M (L8E)
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. HR A A 388,234 975,995
Yisou Business Consulting LB ERKHE
Co., Ltd. BRAF = 500
Chengdu Financial Exchange KEBEBEERX SR
Co., Ltd. & 1n B R A A = 333
Repayments of advances from EERBATBX
related companies
Huifu Network Technology BEHES M (EE)
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. BRA A 879,423 834,887
Yisou Business Consulting LB SERBE
Co., Ltd. R A 500 2,113
Chengdu Financial Exchange KEEREER S P L
Co., Ltd. W&t B R a = 250
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEE S X5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(2) Significant related party transactions (2 EXBHAIXS (&)
(Continued)
The following transactions were carried out with related RREFEHEBETETHRSMN
parties during both years: (continued) T (%)

Year ended 31 December

BZENAMBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Sales of goods or services HE®RARS
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Z2MERE(LS)
BRAA 1,025 —
PnR Finance Ltd. LHBENESHEE
BRAA 923 310
Shanghai PnR Information FIBENE BB
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAF 591 —
Bund Wealth Financial Services EgINESE B F AR
Co., Ltd. BRAA 326 7,106
Yisou Business Consulting LB EBE
Co., Ltd. BRAA 235 1,173
Shanghai Huateng Data FEEREBREISERK
Information Technology BRAF
Co., Ltd. 232 —
Shanghai Huateng Intellect System FBERERERES
Co., Ltd. BRAA 232 —
Shanghai PnR Investment FEEMKREER
Management Co., Ltd. BRAF 164 53
Shanghai PnR Technology EFER R
Co., Ltd. BRAA 101 —
Golden Union Technical Service CEHERMREER
Co., Ltd. SEAE 56 —
Shanghai Xunhui Network FESEMERE
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAA 50 —
Shanghai Yirisheng Financial FESAASRRY
Services Co., Ltd. BRAF = 1,417
Chengdu Financial Exchange KEEREERX SR
Co., Ltd. [ Rl N — 49
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEE S X5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(2) Significant related party transactions 2 EXBEBAIXRSZ (&)
(Continued)
The following transactions were carried out with related RREFEHEBETETHRS N
parties during both years: (continued) T (%)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Rental income HE®A
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ZEmENRE(LE)
BRAA 2,202 1,860
Shanghai Huateng Intellect FIBERERES
System Co., Ltd. BRAF 707 349
Shanghai Huateng Data EBEREBEENE
Information Technology BRAF
Co., Ltd. 707 348
Shanghai PnR Investment FEEMNKREERAR
Management Co., Ltd. A A 536 —
PnR Finance Ltd. FEENESHEAR
NG| 200 —
Golden Union Technical Service CHERMRBEER
Co., Ltd. SEAE 121 —
Bund Wealth Financial Services EgINESE B & R AR
Co., Ltd. BRAA 111 192
Chengdu Financial Exchange KEBERMEEX SR O
Co., Ltd. EgrR = N = 26
Purchases of goods or services BEERARS
Golden Union Technical Service CHERMRBEER
Co., Ltd. SEAE 99,817 122,519
Shanghai PnR Technology EHEMRIERBRAA
Co., Ltd. 2,466 5,318
Hui Fu Financial Leasing ZEmENRE(LE)
Co., Ltd. HRA A 280 —
Bund Wealth Financial Services EgINESE B R AR
Co., Ltd. BRAA = 1,088
PnR Finance Ltd. FEENESHEE
BRAA = 228
Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms Mt : ZERSHRESEE T HRE W E B IRRK
and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved. RARF#EAT -
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Bt SRR 5 (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) CEHBAEETT MY REN LR

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Due from management EREBASKE:
personnel:
Non trade-related: FEFHEE :
Mr. ZHOU Ye IR A — 219,576
Mr. LIU Gang 2090 £ & — 56,521
Ms. MU Hai lJie BEZLL = 56,521
= 332,618
Due from the then shareholder: FEWERRRKE:
Non trade-related: E 5 HHE
PnR Holdings Limited PnR Holdings Limited = 605
Due from related companies: PEUN ER B A R RRIR ¢
Non trade-related: EE S HHE
Shanghai PnR Investment EEEMEEER
Management Co., Ltd. ER QA = 138,338
Hui Fu Financial Leasing ZLBEMRE(LE)
Co., Ltd. BRAA — 102,936
Bund Wealth Financial Services EEINEE S R AR 5
Co., Ltd. BRAA — 92,072
Shanghai PnR Kangning FREMNEZEEERE
Information Technology ER QA
Co., Ltd. = 500
= 333,846
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. B TR H (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) CEHBAEE T A RE AR ()

(Continued)

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R AR¥ETT
Due from related companies: FE U BA B A R RROE ¢
Trade-related: EZHEE:
Shanghai Xunhui Network FESEMERE
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAF 59 —
Yisou Business Consulting LB SERBES
Co., Ltd. BRAA = 624
Bund Wealth Financial Services LB SERBES
Co., Ltd. BRAA = 191
Shanghai Huateng Data BN E B & B AR TS
Information Technology BRAF
Co., Ltd. e 112
Shanghai Huateng Intellect FBEREERESER
System Co., Ltd. BRAF = 112
Shanghai PnR Investment FIBERERES
Management Co., Ltd. BRAA = 53

59 1,092
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Bt SRR 5 (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) EEBAEE T Y R E A4 R (&)

(Continued)

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Due to related companies: FEASRAEE A T RKE ¢
Non-trade-related: FEFHEE :
Huifu Network Technology BEME M (L8)
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. BRAQ A — 491,189
Yisou Business Consulting LB SEEBE
Co., Ltd. BRAA = 500
e 491,689
Due to related companies: BB AT RIE
Trade-related: EZMHE
Golden Union Technical Service CEHARMREER
Co., Ltd. EHERAA 5,856 19,604
Shanghai PnR Technology EHEMBIEAER AR
Co., Ltd. 426 —
PnR Finance Ltd. EHERNESHEE
BRAF = 55
6,282 19,659
Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, PR BAEE T M AREEA . TR R
non-interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms. T B F IR KA o
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEEL X5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(4) Compensation of key management personnel (4) XEBFTEZEEBEAEME:

of the Group:

31 December

12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREFIT
Short-term employee benefits % B B 18 T 6,289 4,359
Equity-settled share option expense B T 3§ MAE st &) T B B4
53 46,622 6,862
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFHEI 392 361
Total compensation paid to key YTRHHEEZEEEAEN
management personnel RN 53,303 11,582
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EHESTHENFRBHERMBREN
note 9 to the financial statements. 39 e
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

31 December 2018

Financial assets
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and

TREE
SPABMRE RER
EEEFEANEREE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €I A9 HE
RBEHR SEEMITANKEAENT

20185 12H31H

Financial assets
at amortised cost

BRBERE
RMB'000
ARBTR

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
NAREBETE
W ABREN
RMB'000

AR TR

At
RMB’000
ARBF

other receivables (note 24) (B 5¥24) 5,391,416 — 5,391,416
Financial assets at fair value WARBEFETARR
through profit or loss (note 18) memEE(fieg) = 243,010 243,010
Contract assets (note 22) BHEE (M22) 18,688 = 18,688
Factoring assets (note 23) REEE (M ?23) 16,722 — 16,722
Due from related companies iRl N
(note 36) (P 7E36) 59 — 59
Restricted cash (note 25) RIS (M5E25) 1,610,657 = 1,610,657
Cash and cash equivalents BekREEEY
(note 25) (B 5¥25) 1,514,966 = 1,514,966
8,552,508 243,010 8,795,518
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost Total
cRERE
B#ER R a%
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R
Financial liabilities tRMER
Trade payables (note 26) E 5 & 508 (M #526) 423,739 423,739
Contract liabilities (note 22) adefE(HE2) 31,509 31,509
Financial liabilities included in other payables, s AEHMEMFIE ke R
deposits received and accruals (note 27) E:tBERME A& (MF27) 6,477,850 6,477,850
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREME R (FE29)
(note 29) 717,279 717,279
Due to related companies (note 36) FE < BA B 2 ) 7R (P 5E36) 6,282 6,282
7,656,659 7,656,659
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €@ T A58 (&)

(CONTINUED)
31 December 2017

2017412 A31H

Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
TR ERFRE HNESHERE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T ARBETT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets included in FABMARE RER

prepayments, deposits and HibEUFENSREE

other receivables (note 24) (Fi5k24) 2,878,688 - 2,878,688
Available-for-sale investments i HERE (HF19)

(note 19) — 82,423 82,423
Contract assets (note 22) ANEE (M:22) 21,288 — 21,288
Due from related companies FEAT B A A FUR

(note 36) (FiE36) 334,938 - 334,938
Due from management personnel B EE A B FUB

(note 36) (FiE36) 332,618 - 332,618
Due from the then shareholder RN E B R R AR

(note 36) (Fi536) 605 - 605
Restricted cash (note 25) SR HI3H & (M eE25) 3,216,167 — 3,216,167
Cash and cash equivalents BekReSEY

(note 25) (Fik25) 304,736 - 304,736

7,089,040 82,423 7,171,463
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost Total
SREE
RE AR At
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Financial liabilities SRAE
Trade payables (note 26) B 5 FE I 508 (fi3E26) 201,114 201,114
Financial liabilities included in other payables, — FfAEMENZE Blike R

deposits received and accruals (note 27) EEBEMERBEE (ME27) 6,098,215 6,098,215
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SRR REMER(HF29)

(note 29) 415,315 415,315
Due to related companies (note 36) JEE 1<F B Bt /) ) 70B (M 5£36) 511,348 511,348

7,225,992 7,225,992
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

31 December 2018

XAREBEBERAAEE

=]
GKEEEEAAEEAERATZERTA
S AEBEEBRTAMNEEAER AR BEELD

20185 12H31H

Carrying
amounts Fair values
BRE & AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through RAnEEFAEREN
profit or loss (note 18) & E (K1aE18) 243,010 243,010
Financial liabilities cREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITER
(note 29) (B 5E29) 717,279 718,272
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
Carrying
amounts Fair values
BREE NrfEE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale investments (note 19) A ERE (M EE19) 70,623 70,623
Financial liabilities SREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings A ERITER
(note 29) (Hf5£29) 415,315 415,271
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from related companies, amounts due from the then
shareholder, amounts due from management personnel,
contract assets, factoring assets, financial liabilities included in
other payables, deposits received and accruals, amounts due to
related companies, trade payables and contract liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the chief
finance officer is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the

38.

i
i
pa
s
>
i
i

-~
ﬁﬁf
vc

BT A
N E

1 ki
s

mii!éEEWEfﬁﬁﬁ&fiﬁgff% SR HIR
T FFATRNIE - Re R EME RIS
TREE FUEBEBQRRE BRERK
KRB BREBAERE ANEE R
BEE FTAEMEMNRE BERkeRE
FEENERARE BUBEBARRE B
SENFERGNEEOBREHNE Eﬁ(
ZETANDABEEEREENREE

AEBECXBREEGMUBREES AF
BETeMTIARAEBEABZBELER
CEREBGERNVBEENESTSR
FoRBZHMEAH CEREERS TSR

chief financial officer and the board of directors. At each TEAZEEEYPNETERANHEZEESR
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the A - EXEMFRAEEZ R E T
movements in the values of financial instruments and FRFEVEREEEETCHHERRF G

determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the board of directors twice a year for annual financial
reporting.

For the fair values of the available-for-sale investments,
management has estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. €M IEAAREBERAAEE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B &R EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy NREERBR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEEeRTAN AR BEAZE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: R
Assets measured at fair value: EARBEFENEE:
As at 31 December 2018 7A2018%12831H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTHEENRAAEETE
Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
AR R ™ IS BX BEX
ZHBE ABREaAE FTUBEEWAE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(E—EBH&) (B=FEB&) (FE=ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR®T T AR®T T

Financial assets at fair value MR R EBEE

through profit or loss RN =)
T RLE E = 219,410 23,600
As at 31 December 2017 R2017612H31H
Fair value measurement using
HKRANTEBEN AR EEGE
Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
R BT 5 SN ES/N
ZWE AERHEAE TAHERHAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(BE—E&) (BB (B=E#H)
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREETFTT AREETF T ARBFT
Available-for-sale AL ERE
investments — 70,623 11,800
During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair ReEH - -semEERaEmNS  AnE
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no B2 UERFEF - ELARF _ERHME
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and B NEEASEBLFE-ER-
liabilities.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash
and bank balances, restricted cash, contract assets, factoring
assets, other receivables, contract liabilities, trade payables and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
companies and amounts due from related companies. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. To keep the Group’s exposure to these risks at
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings set out in note 29.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its
interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings.

If the interest rate of bank and other borrowings had
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax of the Group, through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB1,040,000 and
RMB4,153,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, respectively.
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31 December 2018 201812 H31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(o)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or
unwillingness of a counterparty to meet its contractual
obligations. The Group has no concentrations of credit
risk in view of its large number of customers.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise restricted cash, other receivables,
and amounts due from related companies, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. HEREEREREK(E)

(b)

(o)

FERR
EREBRIETHTEELTEERE
THANEEELANBRRR - R
TERBREARRS  JUEERE
BEB

AEENEMEREE (ETZREXR
B2 - HAD WA R E R A
ARBE)NEERREIBRETNTE
# BREBREFNZEFTANKEE -

RBE T AR

AEENEFRRMAFTBRITREAM
B EFESTEEMEBEEREZRH
WFE-RERBEINT HEZTI

B

REBREHR  AEERBESLOKRY
BNRzemBEZIHBERET

On  Less than 3 to 12 Over
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
BRER THB
i3 3A 3Z12f8A BRI1F &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTnR ARETnR ARETR AR%TrR
31 December 2018 2018 12A31H
Interest-bearing bank and AT EIR1T R E M
other borrowings fE® = 65,896 488,194 222,232 776,322
Trade payables 2 5 RN IA 423,739 — — — 423,739
Contract liabilities ARERE 31,509 = = = 31,509
Financial liabilities included &+ A Kt JiE 5 3%
in other payables, H-BWEe
deposits received and REFTIEE M
accruals THEE 6,477,850 = = — 6,477,850
Due to related companies & { B B2 R 58 6,282 = = = 6,282
6,939,380 65,896 488,194 222,232 7,715,702
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. iIEABREEBERBK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (0 HRBESER (HE)
On Less than 3to 12 Over
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
EiE A 3E12EA HiB1E &5

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTI

31 December 2017 2017F12A31A8
Interest-bearing bank and 5t B R1T R EAb
other borrowings R0 — 62,641 330,452 37,400 430,493
Trade payables 2 5 R HIE 201,114 — — — 201,114
Financial liabilities included 5 A E 1 & £+
in other payables, RIE - BlRiES
deposits received and RIEFTIEE A
accruals TRAE 6,098,215 — — — 6,098,215
Due to related companies  J&{<f B3 Bt X 7] 208 511,348 — — — 511,348
6,810,677 62,641 330,452 37,400 7,241,170
(d) Capital management (d) EXRERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital REBEAEENFTERAGERHER
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to SERBEELENE N HEREENE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy REENTHEEBRERREER
capital ratios in order to support its business and KAk o
maximise shareholder’s value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBEIEHEERNEFBIWE FELE MR
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic NEFEMIELHARE - RERFIFARE
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, REE AEBEAEeARRREE
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to AR BT R - MR SRR B B A B
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new TR ©

shares.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Group includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, trade payables, contract liabilities,
other payables, deposits received and accruals and
amounts due to related companies less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to
owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end

of the years were as follows:

(d)

39. HEREEREREK(E)

BEXREE (E)
AEERAERAGBLXEREAN
HA BT ZRABFEBKABERM
LtEEFEZM AEBNBEFE
EREFAEBRITEEMER BHEN
RE -AHAEE HMEMKE B
Wiz & &g R IR B & BE B 2 B 5K
BREREMREEEY BEARKE
BRBFEBARGEZ REFRH
BARBELLEMT

31 December

12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBETF T
Trade payables H 5 ENRIE 423,739 201,114
Contract liabilities aHaE 31,509 82,450
Other payables, deposits received HiERNRIE BEliR®
and accruals NpEstIE A 6,619,474 6,202,314
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEERIT R HME R
borrowings 717,279 415,315
Due to related companies JE < BA Bk N B R IB 6,282 511,348
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BW:ReERBEEEY (1,514,966) (304,736)
Net debt BEFR 6,283,317 7,107,805
Equity attributable to owners HAREE AEGEER
of the parent 1,979,344 704,968
Capital and net debt EARAREBEFE 8,262,661 7,812,773
Gearing ratio EARBELE 76% 91%
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31 December 2018 2018 12H31H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. &2 &) Bt % AR &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAAEENREPROPERIRNER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T

31 December

128318
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARNEKE 643,245 497,074
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from a subsidiary FE UG BT B~ R FRIE 44 —
Prepayments, deposits and other FENHIE - Ze Rk
receivables H fth jE U 50IE 954 —
Restricted cash SRR HIIR 2 210,288 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY 998,477 —
Total current assets mEBEEME 1,209,763 —
CURRENT LIABILITIES REB8E
Other payables, deposits received and Hih R 5IE  EfiREe R
accruals FEETIE B 9,188 —

Interest-bearing bank loans and other

FHRBRITER R H AL E R

borrowings 188,383 —
Total current liabilities mEBBaEERE 197,571 —
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,012,192 —
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBAERS
LIABILITIES 1,655,437 497,074
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBREE = —
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,655,437 497,074
EQUITY e
Share capital & 7 101 —
Reserves Gk 1,655,336 497,074
TOTAL EQUITY EEAE 1,655,437 497,074
Zhou Ye Jin Yuan
e &R
Director Director
EZE EZE
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BRIl NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY IS 2k M ot

31 December 2018 201812 H31H

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL a41. #HEE B | &
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for B %R R B MR2019F3 260 BEEE it
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2019. = Rk
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DEFINITIONS

“AGM"
ERBFAE]

“Audit Committee”
(Bt ZET]

“Board”

[Exg]

"BVI"
[REBEARES]

"CG Code”
[k &8 <7 Al

“China” or "PRC”

[ Bl

“China PnR"

DEMRXT

“Company”

N/NIN

“Contractual
Arrangements”

[&H =]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Excluded Entity(ies)”
[PEET el
"Excluded Group”
[EET&EHE]
“Global Offering”

[RIREE]

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 28 May 2019
ARAAHGR2019F5 A28 RBITWEERRBEFKE

the audit committee under the Board
EEZgETNETZES

the board of Directors

E=xg

the British Virgin Islands
REHBARES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
AR BB 8+ PO P Rt O B R SE Rl

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purposes of this annual report for
geographical reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan, Macau and
Hong Kong

PEARKNME  SAFHRTSEEMRELZE(RIESHER) TEEFE RFAK
S

China PnR Co., Ltd. CEfJ X T~ ABR A F]), a company incorporated under the laws of
the PRC on 23 June 2006 with limited liability, and one of the Operating Entities
ENRKTHERAE  —RM2006F6 238 REFBEERFMEILZBERAR - BB

EREZ—

an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on
21 December 2017 under the names of “JLF R FAMRAR" and “Huifu Limited”, and
registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
7201712 21 B ADER R T A B 2 &) & [ Huifu Limited | )5 M £ 5 2 8 S 5L
R ERRER AT WERB(ATKIDE 168 ZMAE—RIEBAELQT

the series of contractual arrangements entered into by, among others, PnR Network,
China PnR and the Registered Shareholders
REPBE)EMEEG ENRXTRELRIFIT VN RGN

director(s) of the Company

KRABES

Subsidiary(ies) and operating entity(ies) excluded from the Group during the
Reorganization
REETEAESEANBENNERAR LNELER

PnR (Cayman), Paytech Holdings and/or their respective subsidiaries or operating
entities (as the case may be)
PnR (Cayman) * Paytech Holdings ¢/ Sk E S BB AR RELE R (BB AMT)

the offer of the Shares for subscription as described in the section headed “Structure
of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus
MBREBRANZHREESHRE] — M - FERG AHRE
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Bl oerinTioNs

"

"Group” or “we"

N SR ARG

"HK$" or “HKD"
oyl

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

"IFRS"

(Bl B 75 S 5 22 A1)

“1SO"

[1s0 |

“Latest Practicable Date
[ &R {T H HAJ

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Date”
[ E7h A &
“Listing Rules”

[ A5 Al

“Management Company”

DER &2

“Memorandum and Articles

of Association”

[FAB TR AH &
ERMA

"

the Company (any one or more of, as the context may require) and its subsidiaries and
operating entities
ARRAIEH(MXBER HEA—HEXEZH)NBARRELER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong

AL BR/BEAEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REFEBFITRE

the International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and
interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),
and the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)

(EE S BHmEER) BRERSAEARES RN LN LR ENBEER & 2R
ZeeRmrKBEBR LD REE

the independent sales organization
B E S

11 April 2019, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining certain
information contained in this annual report prior to its publication
2019F4R 1R BIRAFRFZEA REEHPA&HE TELSONKREATITHEH

listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
8 £ B Bk 22 P 2 i b T

15 June 2018, on which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and from which
dealings in the Shares were permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange
20186 150 R MRB 2 Em R EAFRKEEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from
time to time
Bt AP RE 5 R A (AR ET)

ChinaPnR Management Ltd., a business company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 24 August 2006, and one of the substantial shareholders of the Company,
which was held as to 60% by Mr. ZHOU Ye, 20% by Ms. MU Haijie and 20% by Mr.
LIU Gang as at the Latest Practicable Date

ChinaPnR Management Ltd. * —ZK 720068 824 H 71 4 & 4 f m Bf & sE fft A 32 /9 32
BERAG RARAFERRZ — BEREATRY HEABELEE BERLL
K 21806 55 £ 5 B35 B60% ~ 20% [20% K %5

the amended and restated memorandum of articles of association and articles of
association of the Company, conditionally adopted on 20 May 2018 with effect from
the Listing Date, and as amended from time to time

M2018F5A20B B ERME B L AR ERN AR BIKET REFMEMER
AU K ZERR AR (TSR]
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DEFINITIONS

“Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

1227 Al ¥ FARBME TR LM BTAEFETESRINRETE

“Nomination Committee” the nomination committee under the Board

REEEg] ¥ BEEgETHNIREEZES

“Operating Entities” China PnR and PnR Data, the financial results of which have been consolidated and
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company by virtue of the Contractual
Arrangements

[(BEEE] ¥ ERATRENEE  HUBEXEERBEANLZHEAS LARIMERR AR M E
NG]

“Paytech Holdings” Paytech Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on 8 May 2015 with limited liability and a member of the Excluded
Group

[ Paytech Holdings J ¥ Paytech Holdings Limited * —5K#2015F5A8H R EHA S HE X EF MR INERE
BRARF RIELTEBENKERA

“PBOC" the People’s Bank of China (F Bl A KR 1T7), the central bank of the PRC

[ B ARRTT] & FEIARRIT ARENF RIRT

“PnR Data” Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd. (E/@ERNESIEREER A

Al), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 28 April 2007 with limited
liability and one of the Operating Entities

[E 1 8045 | ¥ FPEENBERBAR AR —RMH2007F4A288 REFEEEIMEAIHNARA
Al REEBEREZ—

“PnR Holdings” PnR Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on 7 July 2006 with limited liability

[ PnR Holdings | ¥ PnR Holdings Limited * —ZX #2006 F7A7HRIEFAESHE ZE MK LHEREER
NG]

“PnR Network” or “WFOE" PnR Network Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. CEM4&EM (LE) AR AQT), a

company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 7 November 2006 with limited
liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

DER @4 sl s i ¥ EMBEE MBS BRAR  —KR2006F 11878 RIEFBEAEFMAIHER
BEME] DA BARTHEZEMB QA
“PnR (Cayman)” PnR (Cayman) Ltd., an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 21 December 2017, and a member of the Excluded
Group
[ PnR (Cayman) | ¥ PnR (Cayman) Ltd. * —XKR2017F 12 A2 1B REFAERS ZEZFMA LN EREER

AR RIFLTEEKE QA
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Bl oerinTioNs

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[BRARAEER
B M aT 2l

"Prospectus”
[BRR =R

"Registered Shareholders”

[E R AR

“Relevant Period”
[ 48 8 2R 4

“Remuneration Committee”

[FMEE &)

“Renminbi” or “RMB"
[AR¥ ]

“Reorganization”
[E 4]
“SFO"
(€7 75 M ERE 151D

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ A% 5

“Share(s)”
(A& ]

“Stock Exchange”
[B6 32 P ]

“Trixen"
[ Trixen ]

nop
[ %]

the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company as approved by the Board on
20 January 2018 as set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV of the Prospectus
EEFR2018F1 A0 HEM A AR ER AREENBRETE SR EREER
Msxm &R AR EEBRET S —&

the prospectus of the Company dated 1 June 2018 in connection with the Global
Offering
RARIHER2018F6A1HBEHERESE 2 HKRER

the registered shareholders of China PnR, namely Mr. ZHOU Ye as to 60%, Mr. LIU
Gang as to 15%, Ms. MU Haijie as to 10%, Ms. XU Zhuomin as to 5%, Mr. ZHANG
Ge as to 5% and Ms. CHEN Yan as to 5% of the shares of China PnR, respectively
EMRTHZERRE - B9 5l i ER KT ERH60% & & BE 5 4 -~ 15 1815% &) 21 5&
B FRI0% M BIERL L - FIRS% MR EH L LT~ FFIR5% 8 R K 58 4 R FFR5%H)
R o 27 +

the period commencing from the Listing Date and ended on 31 December 2018
BtmAMREE2018F12A31H LHH

the remuneration committee under the Board

EZEBETHNHFNEES

the lawful currency of the PRC

TEIAEER

the offshore and onshore reorganization as set out in “History and Reorganization —
Our Reorganization” in the Prospectus
BRERAIELREH — BAIMHRIIRBEANES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREPIFSNECER LB HRODETEEET - B AR M e %)

holder(s) of the Shares
[EELEST PN

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.0001 each
KA B R A R TE B 430.000178 7T B 8 AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERHMERRAF

Trixen Enterprises Ltd., a company established under the laws of BVI and one of the
substantial Shareholders
Trixen Enterprises Ltd. * —RBBERBHEBAHSEZEKRKUYNRAR  BREERR 2 —

per cent
RN
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